
PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

REGULAR MEETING - GOVERNING BOARD

Wednesday, May 11, 2022

Meeting Opening 4:30 p.m.
Closed Session 4:32 p.m.

Public Session 6:00 p.m.
Adjournment 9:00 p.m.

This meeting will be held virtually via Zoom.
The public may observe and address the meeting by
going to:
Join Zoom Meeting
https://pousd-org.zoom.us/j/89303207043

Meeting ID: 893 0320 7043
One tap mobile
+12532158782,,89303207043# US (Tacoma)
+13462487799,,89303207043# US (Houston)

A G E N D A

A copy of the agenda, complete with backup materials, may be reviewed in the District Office, 3450 Coffey Lane, Santa Rosa,

beginning the Monday prior to the Wednesday Board Meeting. Office hours are from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday

or as otherwise posted.  Agendas are  posted at the District Office, and on our web site at www.pousd.org.

ADA Compliance: In compliance with Government Code § 54954.2(a), the Piner-Olivet Union School District, will, on request, make

this agenda available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the American with

Disabilities Acts of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Individuals

who need this agenda in an alternative format or who need a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate

in the meeting should contact Cathy Manno, Executive Secretary to the Superintendent, Piner-Olivet Union School District, 3450

Coffey Lane, Santa Rosa, CA 95403 (707) 522-3000 or email cmanno@pousd.org at least two days before the meeting date.

www.pousd.org
1. CALL TO ORDER
2. ROLL CALL
3. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA
4. ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION
5. CLOSED SESSION

Adjournment to Closed Session during this meeting to consider and/or take action upon any of the following items:

5.1 With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to

Gov. Code Section 54957:

5.1.1 PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE

(No additional information required)

5.1.2 PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT EMPLOYMENT/APPOINTMENT

Title: Teacher, Principal

5.1.3 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Title:  Superintendent

5.2 With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54959.6:

5.2.1 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR

Name of Agency Negotiator: Dr. Steve Charbonneau

Name of organization representing employees: Piner-Olivet Educators’ Association, CTA Affiliate

5.2.2 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR

Name of Agency Negotiator: Dr. Steve Charbonneau

Name of organization representing employees: Piner-Olivet Classified Association, CSEA Affiliate.

5.2.3 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR

Name of Agency Negotiator: Dr. Steve Charbonneau

Name of organization representing employees: Confidential, Supervisory, Administrative Staff

1

https://pousd-org.zoom.us/j/89303207043


6.  RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING
7.  REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION, IF ANY
8.  FLAG SALUTE (Suspended during virtual meetings)
9.  AGENDA MODIFICATION
10.COMMUNICATIONS, PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS
Any person wishing to be heard by the Board shall first be recognized by the president. Members of the public may have up to three

minutes per speaker and up to 15 minutes per item, when more than one individual is addressing the same topic. The Board will not

comment on items unless they are agendized, however the board reserves the right to clarify or correct any misinformation stated.

Each individual speaker may only address the board one (1) time per un-agendized or agendized item. The Board may remove

disruptive individuals and/or order the room cleared for persistent disruption or statements that threaten the safety of any person(s)

at the meeting. When the room is ordered cleared due to a disturbance, further Board proceedings shall concern only matters

appearing on the agenda. Anyone desiring an item to be placed on the prepared agenda shall notify the Secretary ten (10) working

days prior to the meeting.

11. COMMENTS FROM THE GOVERNING BOARD

12.  RECOGNITION OF EXCELLENCE
Holly Miller - Retirement - Presented by Dr. Anna Moore

Deborah Berry - Retirement - Presented by Heather Graham

Lynn Matteoli - Presented by Heather Graham

Donna LeCave – Retirement - Presented by Olga Venegas

Lynn Garlock- Retirement - Presented by Kathy Harris

Will Hart – Retirement -Presented by Kathy Harris

Kathy Harris - Retirement - Presented by Tracy Henry

13.  SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT
13.1 Announcements

14.  ASSOCIATION REPORTS
14.1 POEA

14.2 POCA

15.  BOARD POLICIES
None

16.  DISCUSSION/INFORMATION ITEMS
16.1 Enrollment Study - Presented by Rob Murray, Kings Consulting (Attachment 1) (Pgs. 4-30)

16.2 Celebration of Student Academic Growth 2021-22 - Presented by Dr. Tina Rasori

17.  ACTION ITEMS
17.1 Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected Organization for Olivet Families

The Board of Trustees will review, discuss, and consider approval of the 2022-2023 Olivet Families Application as

a School-Connected Organization. A representative from the organization will be present to answer any

questions. (Action 1) (Pgs.31-72)

17.2 Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected Organization for Schaefer Families

The Board of Trustees will review, discuss, and consider approval of the 2022-2023 Schaefer Families

Application as a School-Connected Organization. A representative from the organization will be present to answer

any questions. (Action 2) (Pgs. 73-113)

17.3 Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected Organization for Jack London Families

The Board of Trustees will review, discuss, and consider approval of the 2022-2023 Jack London Families

Application as a School-Connected Organization. A representative from the organization will be present to answer

any questions. (Action 3) (Pgs. 114-138)

2



17.4 Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected Organization for Piner-Olivet Charter Parent

Club

The Board of Trustees will review, discuss, and consider approval of the 2022-2023 Piner-Olivet Charter

Parent Club Application as a School-Connected Organization.  A representative from the organization will be

present to answer any questions. (Action 4) (Pgs. 139-168)

17.5 Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected Organization for Northwest Prep

Parent-Teacher-Student Organization (PTSO)

The Board of Trustees will review, discuss, and consider approval of the 2022-2023 Northwest Prep Parent-

Teacher-Student Organization (PTSO) Application as a School-Connected Organization.  A representative

from the organization will be present to answer any questions. (Action 5) (Pgs. 169-210)

17.6 Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected Organization for Piner-Olivet Educational

Foundation

The Board of Trustees will review, discuss, and consider approval of the 2022-2023 Piner-Olivet Educational

Foundation Application as a School-Connected Organization. A representative from the organization will be

present to answer any questions. (Action 6) (Pgs. 211-241)

17.7 Approval of the Extended Learning Opportunities Program Plans for Jack London Elementary

School, Olivet Elementary Charter School,and  Schaefer Charter School.

The Board of Trustees will review, discuss, and consider approval of the Extended Learning Opportunities

Program Plans for Jack London Elementary School, Olivet Elementary Charter School,and  Schaefer Charter

School (Action 7) (Pgs. 242-253)

18.  CONSENT ITEMS
All matters listed under “consent items” are considered by the Board to be routine and will be enacted upon in one motion. The public has a right to comment on any

consent item. At the request of any member of the Board, during “agenda modifications” any item on the consent agenda shall be removed and given individual

consideration for action as a regular agenda item. Members of the public may request the Board to place a “consent item” on the regular agenda during “agenda

modifications.”

18.1 Approval of Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of April 13, 2022 (Consent 1) (Pgs. 254-257)

18.2 Approval of Personnel Action Report (Consent 2) (Pg. 258)

18.3 Approval of Vendor Warrants (Consent 3) (Pgs. 259-267)

18.4 Approval of Routine Budget Updates (Consent 4) (Pgs. 268-290)

18.5 Approval of Bond Change Order - Site Olivet Elementary Charter School, (Proposal # 1-7-23096),

POUSD Various Sites Marquee Signs (Proposal # 1-7-23012) Site NWP Charter (Proposal# 1-7-23022)

(Consent 5) (Pgs. 291-309 )

18.6 Approval of Developer Fee (Consent 6) (Pgs. 310-318)

18.7 Approval of Swimming Field Trip for Piner-Olivet Charter School  7th & 8th Grades Field Trip to

Wikiup Tennis & Swim Club on  May 16, 20122. (Consent 7) (Pgs. 319-320)

18.8 Approval of SMAA Interagency Agreement 2022 (Consent 8) (Pgs. 321-381 )

18.9 Approval of Confidential Salary Schedule (Consent 9) (Pg. 382)

18.10 Approval of Swimming Field Trip for Piner-Olivet Charter School  7th & 8th Grades Field Trip to

Wikiup Tennis & Swim Club  on September 9, 2022 (Consent 10) (Pgs. 383-384)

18.11 Approval of Contract Agreement between SRCS and POUSD for Vended Meal Services from June 3,

2022 through August 10, 2022 (Consent 9) (Pgs. 385-389)

19.   ROUND TABLE COMMENTS FROM THE GOVERNING BOARD

20.  DATES AND FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
20.1   Next Regular Board Meeting – June 8, 2022

20.2   Next Special Board Meeting – June 22, 2022

21.  PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA
22.  RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION (If Necessary)
23.  RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING
24.  REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION NOT ON THE ACTION AGENDA
25.  ADJOURNMENT

3



Demographic Analysis & 
Enrollment Projections

May 11, 2022

Presented by King Consulting

4



Agenda
• Purpose of the Study

• Demographic Analysis and Enrollment Projections
• District and Community Demographics
• Student Generation Rates and Residential Development
• Enrollment Projections

• Next Steps

25.11.2022
5



Demographic Analysis and
Enrollment Projections Summary

5.11.2022 3
6



Piner-Olivet USD 
Overview
• District enrollment peaked in 2008-09 and has decreased almost 

every year since.

• Local and regional demographics continue to indicate fewer school 
age children available to enroll.

• The upcoming expansion of Transitional Kindergarten will help to 
offset what would otherwise be a more pronounced enrollment 
decrease.

• The District can evaluate enrollment trends to find opportunities to 
attract and/or retain additional students beyond current projections.

5.11.2022 4
7



5.11.2022 5
8



District and Community 
Demographics

5.11.2022 6
9



Historical Enrollment Trends

7

Enrollment by Grade:

5.11.2022

1,475 1,450 1,419 1,415 1,422
1,355

1,261 1,278 1,236 1,222

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

12
-1

3

13
-1

4

14
-1

5

15
-1

6

16
-1

7

17
-1

8

18
-1

9

19
-2

0

20
-2

1

21
-2

2

EN
R

O
LL

M
EN

T

SCHOOL YEAR

1,167 1,135 1,112 1,102 1,099 1,046 943 960 934 919

235 231 245 247 249 238
248 253 236 228

73 84 62 66 74 71
70 65 66 75

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

12-13 13-14 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21 21-22

EN
R

O
LL

M
EN

T

SCHOOL YEAR

TK-6 7-8 9-12

10



Kindergarten and TK Trends

85.11.2022

161 163 164 162 165

123 126 126 123 128

19 20 20

16
22 20

17
17

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

12-13 13-14 14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21 21-22

EN
R

O
LL

M
EN

T

SCHOOL YEAR

Kindergarten Transitional Kindergarten

11



Community Demographics

95.11.2022

3,995 3,725 3,220

10,900 12,168 12,569

2000 2010 2020

TO
TA

L 
PO

PU
LA

TI
O

N
 B

Y 
AG

E 
G

R
O

U
P

YEAR

Under 18 Over 18

12



Student Generation Rates and
Residential Development 

5.11.2022 10
13



Student Generation Rates, 
New Construction
• Student generation rates calculate the impact of residential development.

• Recent construction is surveyed to see how many POUSD students were 
generated.  

115.11.2022

Grade Single-Family Detached SGR

TK-6 0.110
7-8 0.011

Total TK-8 0.121

14



Residential Development

125.11.2022

Name Type Units Remaining
Aria Place/Wildflower Sub Single-Family Detached 30

Courtney Estates Single-Family Detached 50
Courtney Estates Multi-Family 10

North Village II Multi-Family 120
Total 210

15



Enrollment Projections

5.11.2022 13
16



Local Births

145.11.2022

1,
18

8

1,
16

3

1,
18

2

1,
17

2

1,
12

4

1,
06

7

1,
03

8

1,
00

0

1,
00

9

99
9

95
2

93
7

88
8

84
1

85
5

87
0

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

BI
R

TH
S

YEAR

17



Ratio of Births to Kindergarten/TK

155.11.2022
• However, the TK program is about to change significantly.

0.14 0.14 0.14 0.14
0.15

0.12
0.13 0.12 0.12

0.13

0.00 0.00

0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02
0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02

0.00

0.02

0.04

0.06

0.08

0.10

0.12

0.14

0.16

0.18
20

12
-1

3

20
13

-1
4

20
14

-1
5

20
15

-1
6

20
16

-1
7

20
17

-1
8

20
18

-1
9

20
19

-2
0

20
20

-2
1

20
21

-2
2

BI
R

TH
 R

AT
IO

S

SCHOOL YEAR

Kindergarten Ratio Transitional Kindergarten Ratio

18



Full Year Transitional
Kindergarten

Details on expansion of TK

• Effective new grade level to serve all 4 year-old students in California

• Beginning in 2022-23

• District will be required to serve TK students, but students are not required to 
enroll

• Districts can enroll younger students than the requirement in 2022-23 through 
2024-25 (but these students do not generate ADA)

There are various options for the 

District to consider with where 

and how it will serve these 

students. This initial projection 

assumes all TK students will 

continue to be housed at Olivet 

Charter.

5.11.2022
19



Grade-to-Grade Migration

175.11.2022

-5.7%
-6.8%

-4.2%

-3.0%

-4.4%

-9.6%

1.3%

-2.6% -2.8%

-12.0%

-10.0%

-8.0%

-6.0%

-4.0%

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

2012>2013 2013>2014 2014>2015 2015>2016 2016>2017 2017>2018 2018>2019 2019>2020 2020>2021

PE
R

C
EN

T 
O

F 
ST

U
D

EN
TS

 G
AI

N
ED

 O
R

 L
O

ST

YEAR FROM>TO

• POUSD has a consistently high rate of negative migration from 5th to 6th grade.20



1,355

1,261 1,278
1,236 1,222 1,213 1,191 1,175 1,161 1,152

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27

EN
R

O
LL

M
EN

T

SCHOOL YEAR

POUSD Enrollment Projection

185.11.2022
21



POUSD Enrollment Projection

195.11.2022

Grade 19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23 23-24 24-25 25-26 26-27
TK 20 17 17 29 38 50 68 69
K 126 123 128 119 113 107 109 111
1 129 123 131 132 123 116 110 112
2 125 128 124 132 133 123 117 111
3 153 126 124 123 131 131 122 116
4 154 148 117 119 118 125 126 117
5 150 146 149 116 118 117 124 125
6 103 123 129 128 100 102 101 107
7 118 114 120 119 119 103 105 104
8 135 122 108 119 118 118 102 104
9 18 16 26 20 20 20 20 18

10 16 17 16 26 19 20 20 20
11 16 18 17 16 26 20 20 20
12 15 15 16 15 15 23 17 18

TK-6 960 934 919 898 874 871 877 868
7-8 253 236 228 238 237 221 207 208

9-12 65 66 75 77 80 83 77 76
Total 1,278 1,236 1,222 1,213 1,191 1,175 1,161 1,152

22



POUSD Enrollment Projection

205.11.2022

Grade 19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23 23-24 24-25 25-26 26-27
TK 20 17 17 29 38 50 68 69
K 126 123 128 119 113 107 109 111
1 129 123 131 132 123 116 110 112
2 125 128 124 132 133 123 117 111
3 153 126 124 123 131 131 122 116
4 154 148 117 119 118 125 126 117
5 150 146 149 116 118 117 124 125
6 103 123 129 128 100 102 101 107
7 118 114 120 119 119 103 105 104
8 135 122 108 119 118 118 102 104
9 18 16 26 20 20 20 20 18

10 16 17 16 26 19 20 20 20
11 16 18 17 17 26 20 20 20
12 15 15 16 15 15 23 17 18

TK-6 960 934 919 898 874 871 877 868
7-8 253 236 228 238 237 221 207 208

9-12 65 66 75 78 80 83 77 76
Total 1,278 1,236 1,222 1,214 1,191 1,175 1,161 1,152

23



POUSD Enrollment Projection

215.11.2022

Grade 19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23 23-24 24-25 25-26 26-27
TK 20 17 17 29 38 50 68 69
K 126 123 128 119 113 107 109 111
1 129 123 131 132 123 116 110 112
2 125 128 124 132 133 123 117 111
3 153 126 124 123 131 131 122 116
4 154 148 117 119 118 125 126 117
5 150 146 149 116 118 117 124 125
6 103 123 129 128 100 102 101 107
7 118 114 120 119 119 103 105 104
8 135 122 108 119 118 118 102 104
9 18 16 26 20 20 20 20 18

10 16 17 16 26 19 20 20 20
11 16 18 17 17 26 20 20 20
12 15 15 16 15 15 23 17 18

TK-6 960 934 919 898 874 871 877 868
7-8 253 236 228 238 237 221 207 208

9-12 65 66 75 78 80 83 77 76
Total 1,278 1,236 1,222 1,214 1,191 1,175 1,161 1,152

24



School Enrollment Projections

225.11.2022

Grade 19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23 23-24 24-25 25-26 26-27
K 33 34 31 32 30 29 29 30
1 35 33 38 34 34 32 30 31
2 35 36 34 39 35 35 33 31
3 46 35 35 34 39 34 34 32
4 44 46 30 34 33 37 32 33
5 49 42 50 33 38 36 40 35
6 33 37 42 49 31 36 34 38

Total 275 263 260 255 240 239 232 230

Grade 19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23 23-24 24-25 25-26 26-27
TK 20 17 17 29 38 50 68 69
K 48 42 43 40 37 36 35 37
1 46 46 48 47 42 39 38 37
2 45 45 39 47 47 41 38 37
3 50 45 44 40 47 47 41 38
4 48 43 35 41 37 43 43 38
5 43 45 39 35 39 34 40 40
6 37 33 30 30 25 29 24 29

Total 337 316 295 309 312 319 327 325
25



School Enrollment Projections

235.11.2022

Grade 19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23 23-24 24-25 25-26 26-27
K 45 47 47 44 42 39 41 40
1 48 44 45 47 43 41 38 40
2 45 47 45 44 47 43 42 38
3 57 46 37 45 44 47 42 41
4 62 59 46 39 45 45 48 42
5 58 59 52 46 37 44 43 46
6 33 53 54 48 41 33 39 39

Total 348 355 326 313 299 292 293 286

Grade 19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23 23-24 24-25 25-26 26-27
7 100 100 107 105 105 92 93 93
8 109 101 91 103 101 101 89 90

Total 209 201 198 208 206 193 182 183

26



School Enrollment Projections

245.11.2022

Grade 19-20 20-21 21-22 22-23 23-24 24-25 25-26 26-27
K 7 4 4 4 4 4

1 0 4 4 4 4 4

2 6 1 4 4 4 4

3 8 3 1 4 4 4

4 6 4 3 1 4 4

5 8 3 4 3 1 4

6 3 2 3 4 3 1
7 18 14 13 14 14 11 11 11
8 26 21 17 15 16 16 13 13
9 18 16 26 20 20 20 20 18

10 16 17 16 26 19 20 20 20
11 16 18 17 16 26 20 20 20
12 15 15 16 15 15 23 17 18

Total 109 101 143 127 133 134 125 125

27



Next Steps

5.11.2022 25
28



Next Steps

265.11.2022
29



Thank You 

5.11.2022 27
30



Piner-Olivet Union School District

Agenda Item Summary

Action Item: 17.1 Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected
Organization for Olivet Families

Regular Meeting of:  May 11, 2022 Item: Action Report Format:Oral
Attachment: Correspondence Board Policy

Presented by: Dr. Charbonneau, Superintendent

Background
This is an annual report required by BP and AR 1230.

Issue(s)

Plan/Discussion/Detail
Olivet Families will be prepared to answer any questions the Board may have of the organization.
The organization’s submission has been reviewed and all Board Policy required items were
submitted.

Fiscal Impact

Options

Recommendation
Approve.

31



2022-2023
OLIVET FAMILIES

REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION AS A
SCHOOL-CONNECTED ORGANIZATION

32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



Piner-Olivet Union School District

Agenda Item Summary

Action Item: 17.2 Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected
Organization for Schaefer Families

Regular Meeting of:  May 11, 2022 Item: Action Report Format:Oral

Presented by: Dr. Charbonneau, Superintendent

Background
This is an annual report required by BP and AR 1230.

Issue(s)

Plan/Discussion/Detail
Schaefer Families will be prepared to answer any questions the Board may have of the
organization.  The organization’s submission has been reviewed and all Board Policy required
items were submitted.

Fiscal Impact

Options

Recommendation
Approve.

Attachment: Correspondence   Board Policy

73



2022-2023
SCHAEFER FAMILIES

REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATIONAS A
SCHOOL-CONNECTED ORGANIZATION

74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



Piner-Olivet Union School District 
 

Agenda Item Summary 
 

  
Action Item:  17.3 Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected 
Organization for Jack London Families 
 
 
Regular Meeting of: May 11, 2022 Action Item Report Format:Oral 
Attachment: Correspondence Board Policy     
 
Presented by: Dr. Charbonneau, Superintendent 
 
Background 
This is an annual report required by BP and AR 1230.  
 
Issue(s) 
      
 
Plan/Discussion/Detail 
Jack London Families will be prepared to answer any questions the Board may have of the 
organization.  The organization’s submission has been reviewed and all Board Policy required 
items were submitted. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
      
 
Options 
      
 
Recommendation 
Approve. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

114



2022-2023
JACK LONDON FAMILIES

REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION AS A
SCHOOL-CONNECTED ORGANIZATION

115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



Piner-Olivet Union School District 
 

Agenda Item Summary 
 

  
Action Item:  17.4 Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected 
Organization for Piner-Olivet Charter School Parent Club 
 
 
Regular Meeting of:  May 11, 2022 Action Item Report Format:Oral 
Attachment: Correspondence Board Policy     
 
Presented by:  Dr. Charbonneau 
 
Background 
This is an annual report required by BP and AR 1230.  
 
Issue(s) 
      
 
Plan/Discussion/Detail 
The Piner-Olivet Charter School Parent Club will be prepared to answer any questions the Board 
may have of the organization.  The organization’s submission has been reviewed and all Board 
Policy required items were submitted. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
      
 
Options 
      
 
Recommendation 
Approve. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

139



 
2022-2023 

PINER-OLIVET CHARTER SCHOOL PARENT 
CLUB 

REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION AS A 
SCHOOL-CONNECTED ORGANIZATION 

 
 

140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



Piner-Olivet Union School District

Agenda Item Summary

Action Item: 17.5 Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected
Organization for Northwest Prep Parent-Teacher-Student
Organization (PTSO)

Regular Meeting of:  May 11, 2022 Item: Action Report Format:Oral
Attachment: Correspondence Board Policy

Present by: Dr. Charbonneau, Superintendent

Background
This is an annual report required by BP and AR 1230.

Issue(s)
     

Plan/Discussion/Detail
The Northwest Prep Parent-Teacher-Student Organization (PTSO)  will be prepared to answer
any questions the Board may have of the organization.  The organization’s submission has been
reviewed and all Board Policy required items were submitted.

Fiscal Impact
     

Options
     

Recommendation
Approve.

169



2022-2023
NORTHWEST PREP

PARENT-TEACHER-STUDENT
ORGANIZATION

REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION AS A
SCHOOL-CONNECTED ORGANIZATION

170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



Piner-Olivet Union School District

Agenda Item Summary

Action Item: 17.6 Approval of Authorization as a School-Connected
Organization for Piner-Olivet Educational Foundation

Regular Meeting of:  May 11, 2022 Item: Action Report Format:Oral
Attachment: Correspondence Board Policy

Presented by: Dr. Charbonneau, Superintendent

Background
This is an annual report required by BP and AR 1230.

Issue(s)
     

Plan/Discussion/Detail
Piner-Olivet Educational Foundation will be prepared to answer any questions the Board may
have of the organization.  The organization’s submission has been reviewed and all Board Policy
required items were submitted.

Fiscal Impact
     

Options
     

Recommendation
Approve.

211



 
2022-2023 

PINER-OLIVET EDUCATIONAL 
FOUNDATION 

REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION AS A 
SCHOOL-CONNECTED ORGANIZATION 

 
 

212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



Piner-Olivet Union School District 
 

Agenda Item Summary 
 

  

Action Item:  17.7 Approval of the Expanded Learning 
Opportunities Program Plans for Jack London Elementary 
School, Olivet Elementary Charter School, and Schaefer Charter 
School 
 
 

Regular Meeting of:  May 11, 2022 Action Item Report Format:Oral 

Attachment:  Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Plan Guide 

 
Presented by: Dr. Tina Rasori 
 
Background 
The Expanded Learning Opportunities Program (ELOP) provides funding for after school and 
summer school enrichment programs for transitional kindergarten through sixth grade. 
 
“Expanded learning” means before school, after school, summer, or intersession learning 
program that focus on developing the academic, social, emotional, and physical needs and 
interests of pupils through hands-on, engaging learning experiences. It is the intent of the 
Legislature that expanded learning programs are pupil-centered, results driven, include 
community partners, and complement, but do not replicate, learning activities in the regular 
school day and school year. 
   
Issue(s) 
N/A 
 
 
Fiscal Impact 
ELOP funds are $303,233-no fiscal impact to our budget.  
 
 
Recommendation 
Approve ELOP Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

242



Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Plan Guide for Piner-Olivet Union School District
  Page 1 of 11 

 
Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Plan Guide 

 
 

EXPANDED LEARNING OPPORTUNITIES PROGRAM 
PLAN GUIDE 

 
Prepared by: Expanded Learning Division 

 
California Department of Education 1430 N Street, Suite 3400 

Sacramento, CA 95814-5901 
916-319-0923 

 

---- ---- 
 

 
 

This Program Plan Template Guide is required by California Education Code (EC) Section 46120(b)(2) 
 
Note: This cover page is an example, programs are free to use their own logos and the name of their program. 
 
 
 
 

243



Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Plan Guide for Piner-Olivet Union School District
  Page 2 of 11 

 
Name of Local Educational Agency and Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Site(s) 

 
Name of Local Educational Agency or Equivalent:  Piner-Olivet Union School District-------- 
Contact Name:  Steve Charbonneau-------- 

Contact Email:  scharbonneau@pousd.org-------- 

Contact Phone:  707-522-3000-------- 
 
Instructions: Please list the school sites that your LEA selected to operate the Expanded Learning Opportunities Program 
(ELO-P). Add additional rows as needed. 

 
1. Jack London Elementary School-------- 

2. Morrice Schaefer Elementary Charter School 

3. Olivet Elementary Charter School 
 
Purpose 
This template will aid LEAs in the development of a program plan as required by EC Section 46120(b)(2). In this program 
plan, LEAs will describe program activities that support the whole child, and students’ Social and Emotional Learning (SEL) 
and development. 
 
Definitions 
“Expanded learning” means before school, after school, summer, or intersession learning programs that focus on 
developing the academic, social, emotional, and physical needs and interests of pupils through hands-on, engaging 
learning experiences. It is the intent of the Legislature that expanded learning programs are pupil-centered, results driven, 
include community partners, and complement, but do not replicate, learning activities in the regular school day and school 
year. (EC Section 8482.1[a]) 
 
“Expanded learning opportunities” has the same meaning as “expanded learning” as defined in EC Section 8482.1. 
“Expanded learning opportunities” does not mean an extension of instructional time, but rather, opportunities to engage 
pupils in enrichment, play, nutrition, and other developmentally appropriate activities. (EC Section 46120[e][1]) 
 
Instructions 
This Program Plan needs to be approved by the LEA’s Governing Board in a public meeting and posted on the LEA’s 
website. 
 
The program plan template guide is considered a living document that is periodically reviewed and adjusted to reflect the 
needs of the community, updates in the law, and to provide continuous improvement in the development of an effective 
ELO-P. 
 
The LEA is responsible for creating, reviewing, and updating the program plan every three years in accordance with EC 
Section 8482.3(g)(1). LEAs are encouraged to work collaboratively with partners and staff to develop and review the 
program plan. The LEA is responsible for the plan and the oversight of any community partners or subcontractors. The LEA 
should include any partners in the development and review of the plan. It is recommended that the plan be reviewed 
annually. 
 
The Expanded Learning Division adopted the Quality Standards for Expanded Learning in California (Quality Standards) 
and introduced requirements for Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI) to help programs engage in reflection and be 

244



Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Plan Guide for Piner-Olivet Union School District
  Page 3 of 11 

intentional about program management practices and activities delivered to students. To create the program plan, provide 
a narrative description in response to the prompts listed under each Quality Standard below. The LEA may customize and 
include additional prompts, such as describing SEL activities, or refining the plan. In addition to the narrative response, it 
may be useful to include tables, charts, or other visual representations that contribute to the understanding of the ELO-
P. LEAs are encouraged to download and reference the Quality Standards in order to provide ongoing improvements to 
the program. The Quality Standards can be found on the California Department of Education’s (CDE) Quality Standards 
and CQI web page, located at https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ex/qualstandcqi.asp. 
 

245

https://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ex/qualstandcqi.asp.


Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Plan Guide for Piner-Olivet Union School District
  Page 4 of 11 

 
1—Safe and Supportive Environment 
 
Describe how the program will provide opportunities for students to experience a safe and supportive environment. 
Include if the program will be offered on the schoolsite or off campus. If not on site, describe where in the community it 
will be and how students will be supported to get there. 

Our ELOP Program will provide opportunities for students to experience a safe and supportive environment on our 
school sites.  For summer school, the program will be located at Jack London Elementary School. For enrichment 
activities during the 2022-2023 school year, the program will be housed at each of our 3 elementary school sites 
providing activities for students at each site. 

 
2—Active and Engaged Learning 
 
Describe how the program will provide opportunities for students to experience active and engaged learning that either 
supports or supplements, but does not duplicate, the instructional day. 

The program will provide opportunities for students to experience active and engaged learning that supports and 
supplements the instructional day.  For summer school, the program will provide opportunities to be active and 
engaged through movement activities, games, book clubs groups and math games. In addition, our partner, YMCA, 
will provide multiple opportunities for students to be active and engaged throughout the summer school program. 
 
For enrichment activities during the 2022-2023 school year, the program will rotate three different activities for a 
period of time.  Each of these activities are based on input from our educational partners and student surveys.  Some 
examples include sports, arts and crafts, gardening, Makers, Zumba, etc..  We are partnering with the YMCA as well as 
possible other organizations to provide these offerings. 
 
 

 
3—Skill Building 
 

Describe how the program will provide opportunities for students to experience skill building. 

The program will provide opportunities for students to experience skill building.  For summer school, the program will 
provide opportunities to experience skill building through book clubs groups, interactive computer programs, and 
math games . In addition, our partner, YMCA, will provide multiple opportunities for students to work on skill building 
throughout the summer school program. 
 
For enrichment activities during the 2022-2023 school year, the program will not only offer three different activities 
for a period of time, the program will also offer a tutoring component.  This tutoring will be linked specifically with 
each student’s STAR Reading or Math scores to provide targeted support for student skill building in reading and 
math. 
 
 

 
4—Youth Voice and Leadership 
 

Describe how the program will provide opportunities for students to engage in youth voice and leadership. 

The program will provide opportunities for students to engage in youth voice and leadership. For summer school, the 
program will provide opportunities for students to engage in youth voice and leadership by working with other grade 

246



Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Plan Guide for Piner-Olivet Union School District
  Page 5 of 11 

levels to create a community within the summer school program.  In addition, our partner, YMCA, will provide 
multiple opportunities for students to engage in youth voice and leadership throughout the summer school program. 
 
For enrichment activities during the 2022-2023 school year, the program will provide opportunities for students to 
engage in youth voice and leadership.  Students were offered a survey to provide input on which type of activities 
they would like to have as before school and after school options.  In addition, students will be in activities that are 
multi-grade levels so they will have opportunities to work with other grade levels to create a community during the 
enrichment activities. 
 
 

 
5—Healthy Choices and Behaviors 
 
Describe how the program will provide opportunities for students to engage in healthy choices and behaviors. Describe 
how students will be served nutritious meals and/or snacks during the ELO-P hours of programing. 

The program will provide opportunities for students to engage in healthy choices and behaviors. For summer school, 
the program will provide opportunities for students to engage in healthy choices and behaviors by incorporating 
movement, community circles as well as other physical activities. In addition, our partner, YMCA, will provide multiple 
opportunities for students to engage in healthy choices and behaviors.. 
 
For enrichment activities during the 2022-2023 school year, the program will provide opportunities for students to 
engage in healthy choices and behaviors.  Students will be offered three different activities for a period of time.  Each 
of these activities include some aspect of healthy choices and behaviors such as sports, arts and crafts, gardening, 
Makers, Zumba, etc.. 
 
We are working with our partner, YMCA and the local Food Bank, to provide students with nutritious meals and/or 
snacks during the ELO-P hours of programing. 
 

 
6—Diversity, Access, and Equity 
 
Describe how the program is designed to address cultural and linguistic diversity and provide opportunities for all 
students to experience diversity, access, and equity. Describe how the ELO-P will provide access and opportunity for 
students with disabilities. 

The program is designed to address cultural and linguistic diversity and provide opportunities for all students to 
experience diversity, access, and equity.  For summer school, the program is offered to all of our unduplicated 
students.  In addition, our curriculum is culturally diverse and we provide a social-emotional component to our 
summer school program through community circles and community building activities. 
 
For enrichment activities during the 2022-2023 school year,  the program is offered to all of our unduplicated 
students.  In addition, our program provides an array of exposure to different types of activities for students to 
experience.  Each of these offerings all focus on working together, learning together and creating community.    Some 
examples of the activities offered are sports, arts and crafts, gardening, Makers, Zumba, etc.. 
 
The ELO-P will provide access and opportunities for students with disabilities to participate in both summer school 
and enrichment activities. 
 

 

247



Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Plan Guide for Piner-Olivet Union School District
  Page 6 of 11 

7—Quality Staff 
 

Describe how the program will provide opportunities for students to engage with quality staff. 

Both our summer school and enrichment activities programs will provide opportunities for students to engage with 
quality staff.  Piner-Olivet Union School District will staff the teachers, admin and office support for summer school.  
The YMCA will hire quality staff to support the summer school program.  In addition, the YMCA will hire quality staff 
to implement the enrichment program for the 2022-2023 school year.  Other organizations may be hired as well 
depending on quality staff and quality of program offerings. 

 
8—Clear Vision, Mission, and Purpose 
 

Describe the program’s clear vision, mission, and purpose. 

The program’s vision and mission are the same as our district’s vision and mission. The vision is “Inspiring joyful and 
innovative learning in an ever-changing world " and the mission is “As a community, we engage in authentic, dynamic, 
and relevant learning that develops each student’s academic, emotional and social growth.”  The purpose of the 
program is to expand learning before school, after school and during the summer which focuses on developing the 
academic, social, emotional, and physical needs and interests of pupils through hands-on, engaging learning 
experiences.  We are hoping to provide multiple opportunities to our students so they can engage in different 
activities throughout the school year to explore their interests and increase learning experiences. 

 
9—Collaborative Partnerships 
 
Describe the program’s collaborative partnerships. Local educational agencies are encouraged to collaborate with non-
LEA entities to administer and implement ELO-P programs. 

The program’s collaborative partnerships were brainstormed with our educational partners.  To determine different 
possible partnerships and activities, the program lead met with all Instructional Leadership Teams, Parent Teacher 
Organizations, School Site Councils and the District English Language Advisory Committee.  Throughout the meetings 
different ideas of organizations to partner with were discussed.  One main partnership is with the YMCA who is 
already familiar with our school sites and district.  The program is working with the YMCA during summer school and 
to help provide enrichment activities during the 2022-2023 school year. 

 
10—Continuous Quality Improvement 
 

Describe the program’s Continuous Quality Improvement plan. 

The program’s Continuous Quality Improvement Plan will be based on several different factors.  First, there will be 
check-in meetings with each of our partnering organizations.  In addition, there will be possible surveys for students 
and parents to gain insight into how the program is implemented.  Also, there will be input from different educational 
partners to determine what is working, what needs to be supported in order to continue to provide the best program 
possible for our students. 

 
11—Program Management 
 

Describe the plan for program management. 

The plan for program management is to have a lead for the program who will conduct different checks and balances 
for the program throughout the program.  For example, the program lead will have check-in meetings with each of 
our partnering organizations.  During these check in meetings, logistics of the program will be discussed and next 

248



Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Plan Guide for Piner-Olivet Union School District
  Page 7 of 11 

steps will be determined.  In addition, there will be possible surveys for students and parents to gain insight into how 
the program is implemented.  Also, there will be input from different educational partners to determine what is 
working, what needs to be supported in order to continue to provide the best program possible for our students.  The 
program lead will synthesize the data to determine next steps for the program. 

 

249



Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Plan Guide for Piner-Olivet Union School District
Page 8 of 11 

General Questions 

Existing After School Education and Safety (ASES) and 21st Community Learning Centers (21st CCLC) 
Elementary and Middle School grantees. 

ASES, 21st CCLC Elementary/Middle School, and the ELO-P should be considered a single, comprehensive program. In 
coordinating all these funding streams to move towards a single program, the expectation is that the most stringent 
requirements will be adopted for program guidance. If one or both grants are held, please describe how the ELO-P funding 
will be used to create one comprehensive and universal Expanded Learning Program. 

N/A 

Transitional Kindergarten and Kindergarten 

Programs serving transitional kindergarten or kindergarten pupils shall maintain a pupil-to-staff member ratio of no more 
than 10 to 1. (EC Section 46120[b][2][D]). Please address the proposed schedule and plan for recruiting and preparing staff 
to work in the program, including supporting them to understand how to work with younger children. How will the lower 
pupil-to-staff ratio be maintained? How will the curriculum and program be developmentally-informed to address this 
younger age group? 

Each month, Y on Wheels will have a designated TK/K program offering that will have a lower pupil to staff ratio and 
be developmentally appropriate for the younger age group.  We are working with the YMCA for the staffing of the 
program and to ensure that the curriculum and program will be developmentally-informed to address this younger 
age group. 

Sample Program Schedule 

Please submit a sample program schedule that describes how the ELO-P or other fund sources, including the California 
State Preschool Program for children enrolled in transitional kindergarten or kindergarten, will be combined with the 
instructional day to create a minimum of nine hours per day of programming (instructional day plus ELO-P or other 
supports). Also, submit a sample schedule for a minimum nine-hour summer or intersession day. 

Sample Program for 9 hours per day of programming: 

7:30-8:20 YMCA Before School Program (Breakfast and Books, Mindfulness) 
8:20-1:45 School Day 
1:45-4:30 YMCA After School Program 

Sample for Y on Wheels After School Program: 
6 weeks of programing: 
Jack London: M- Basketball, T-Crafts, Th-Gardening 
Schaefer: M-Gardening, T-Basketball, Th-Crafts 
Olivet: M-Crafts, T-Gardening, Th- Basketball 

6 weeks of programming: After School Tutoring
Jack London, Schaefer and Olivet: T/Th: 1 on 1 online tutoring 

250



Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Plan Guide for Piner-Olivet Union School District
  Page 9 of 11 

Sample schedule for 9 hour summer day: 
Summer School: June 3rd-July 15th, 2022 
 
Student Day- 7:30-6:00 
7:30-8:30-YMCA provides before school activities 
8:30-11:30-Summer School with focus on Social Emotional Learning, Math and ELA 
11:30-6:00- YMCA provides after school enrichment activities 
 

 

251



Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Plan Guide for Piner-Olivet Union School District
  Page 10 of 11 

 
Below are additional legal requirements for the ELO-P. Please ensure your Program Plan meets all of these 
legal requirements: 
 
EC Section 46120(b)(2): 
 

[LEAs] operating expanded learning opportunities programs may operate a before school component of a program, 
an after school component of a program, or both the before and after school components of a program, on one or 
multiple school sites, and shall comply with subdivisions (c), (d), and (g) of Section 8482.3, including the development 
of a program plan based on the following; 
 
(2) [LEAs] operating expanded learning opportunity programs pursuant to this section may operate a before school 
component of a program, an after school component of a program, or both the before and after school components 
of a program, on one or multiple schoolsites, and shall comply with subdivisions (c), (d), and (g) of Section 8482.3, 
including the development of a program plan based on all of the following: 
 
(A) The department’s guidance. 
 
(B) Section 8482.6. 
 
(C) Paragraphs (1) to (9), inclusive, and paragraph (12) of subdivision (c) of Section 8483.3. 
 
(D) Section 8483.4, except that programs serving transitional kindergarten or kindergarten pupils shall maintain a 
pupil-to-staff member ratio of no more than 10 to 1. 

 
EC Section 46120(b)(1)(A): 
 

On schooldays, as described in Section 46100 and Sections 46110 to 46119, inclusive, and days on which school is 
taught for the purpose of meeting the 175-instructional-day offering as described in Section 11960 of Title 5 of the 
California Code of Regulations, in-person before or after school expanded learning opportunities that, when added to 
daily instructional minutes, are no less than nine hours of combined instructional time and expanded learning 
opportunities per instructional day. 

 
EC Section 46120(b)(1)(B): 
 

For at least 30 nonschooldays, during intersessional periods, no less than nine hours of in-person expanded learning 
opportunities per day. 

 
EC Section 46120(b)(3): 
 

[LEAs] shall prioritize services provided pursuant to this section at schoolsites in the lowest income communities, as 
determined by prior year percentages of pupils eligible for free and reduced-price meals, while maximizing the number 
of schools and neighborhoods with expanded learning opportunities programs across their attendance area. 

 
EC Section 46120(b)(4): 
 

[LEAs] may serve all pupils, including elementary, middle, and secondary school pupils, in expanded learning 
opportunity programs provided pursuant to this section. 

 

252



Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Plan Guide for Piner-Olivet Union School District
  Page 11 of 11 

EC Section 46120(b)(6): 
 

[LEAs] are encouraged to collaborate with community-based organizations and childcare providers, especially those 
participating in state or federally subsidized childcare programs, to maximize the number of expanded learning 
opportunities programs offered across their attendance areas. 

 
EC Section 46120(c): 
 

A [LEA] shall be subject to the audit conducted pursuant to Section 41020 to determine compliance with subdivision 
(b). 

 
EC Section 8482.3(d): 
 

[LEAs] shall agree that snacks made available through a program shall conform to the nutrition standards in Article 2.5 
(commencing with Section 49430) of Chapter 9 of Part 27 of Division 4 of Title 2. 
 
[LEAs] shall agree that meals made available through a program shall conform to the nutrition standards of the United 
States Department of Agriculture’s at-risk afterschool meal component of the Child and Adult Care Food Program (42 
United States Code [U.S.C.] Section 1766). 

 
EC Section 8482.6: 
 

Every pupil attending a school operating a program . . . is eligible to participate in the program, subject to program 
capacity. A program established . . . may charge family fees. Programs that charge family fees shall waive the cost of 
these fees for pupils who are eligible for free or reduced-price meals, for a child that is a homeless youth, as defined 
by the federal McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. Section 11434a), or for a child who the program 
knows is in foster care. A program that charges family fees shall schedule fees on a sliding scale that considers family 
income and ability to pay. 

 
EC sections 8483.4 and 46120(b)(2)(D): 
 

The administrator of every program established pursuant to this article shall establish minimum qualifications for each 
staff position that, at a minimum, ensure that all staff members who directly supervise pupils meet the minimum 
qualifications for an instructional aide, pursuant to the policies of the school district. Selection of the program site 
supervisors shall be subject to the approval of the school site principal. The administrator shall also ensure that the 
program maintains a pupil-to-staff member ratio of no more than 20 to 1. All program staff and volunteers shall be 
subject to the health screening and fingerprint clearance requirements in current law and district policy for school 
personnel and volunteers in the school district, except that programs serving transitional kindergarten or kindergarten 
pupils shall maintain a pupil-to-staff member ratio of no more than 10 to 1. 

 
EC Section 8482.3(c)(1)(A–B): 
 

Each component of a program established pursuant to this article shall consist of the following two elements: 
 
(A) An educational and literacy element in which tutoring or homework assistance is provided in one or more of the 
following areas: language arts, mathematics, history and social science, computer training, or science. 
 
(B) An educational enrichment element that may include, but need not be limited to, fine arts, career technical 
education, recreation, physical fitness, and prevention activities. 

 
 

253



PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
3450 COFFEY LANE

SANTA ROSA, CA 95403
REGULAR MEETING – GOVERNING BOARD MINUTES

April 13, 2022

1. CALL TO ORDER
The regular meeting of the Governing Board of the Piner-Olivet Union School District was called to order at 5:05 p.m.,
Wednesday, April 13, 2022 conducted remotely as a Zoom meeting ID 84765786968. President, Mardi Hinton, presided.

2. ROLL CALL
Governing Board Staff
Mardi Hinton, President PRESENT Dr. Steve Charbonneau, Superintendent and
Cindy Pryor, Vice-President PRESENT Secretary to the Board
Janae Franicevic, Clerk PRESENT Dr. Kay Vang, Chief Business Official (CBO)
Tony Roehrick, Ed.D, Member PRESENT Cathy Manno, Executive Secretary
Toni Smith, Member PRESENT

3. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA
The following individual addressed the Board during the time for public comment on the closed session agenda: Mr.
Potter

4. ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION
The meeting adjourned to closed session at 5:19 p.m.

5. CLOSED SESSION
5.1 With respect to every item of business discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957:

5.1.1 PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE
(No additional information required)

5.1.2 PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT-EMPLOYMENT/APPOINTMENT
Title: COVID-19 Liaison, HR/Personnel Tech, Temp. Custodian, Director of Innovative Learning, Principal, Reg. Ed.
Teacher

5.1.3 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Title:  Superintendent

5.2 With respect to every item of business discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6:
5.2.1 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR

Name of Agency Negotiator: Dr. Steve Charbonneau
Name of organization representing employees:  Piner-Olivet Educators’ Association, CTA Affiliate

5.2.2 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR
Name of Agency Negotiator: Dr. Steve Charbonneau
Name of organization representing employees:  Piner-Olivet Classified Association, CSEA Affiliate

5.2.3 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR
Name of Agency Negotiator: Dr. Steve Charbonneau

 
6. RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING

The meeting reconvened to Open Session at 6:33 p.m.

7. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION, IF ANY
Ms. Hinton commented that during Closed Session direction was given to the negotiating team.

8. FLAG SALUTE (Suspended during virtual meetings)

9. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS
There were none.

10. COMMUNICATIONS, PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS
Ms. Hinton opened up communications, petitions and delegations. The following individuals addressed the Board during
the time for public comment: Ms. McDonough, Ms. Gallagher, and Mr. Bushon.

254



Regular Meeting – Governing Board
April 13, 2022
Page 2

11. COMMENTS FROM THE GOVERNING BOARD
There were none.

12. RECOGNITION OF EXCELLENCE
There were none.

13. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT
13.1 Announcements
Dr. Charbonneau thanked the staff for all of their hard work this school year.

14. ASSOCIATION REPORTS
14.1 POEA
Ms. McDonough updated the Board on the Association activities.

14.2 POCA
Ms. Wofford updated the Board on the Association activities.

15. BOARD POLICIES
There were none.

16. DISCUSSION/INFORMATION ITEMS
16.1 Summer School
Dr. Charbonneau gave an update on summer school 2022.
There were no public comments.

16.2 POUSD Initiatives and Achievements Presentation
Dr. Charbonneau gave a presentation on POUSD Initiatives and Achievements. There were no public comments.

16.3 Staffing Standards
There was a discussion about Staffing Standards. Ms. Hinton and Dr. Roehrick volunteered to work on the Staffing
Standards and bring them back to a future board meeting. The following individuals addressed the Board during the time
for public comment: Mr. Potter, Ms. Henry, and Ms. McCorkell.

16.4 Governing Board Priorities for the Budget
Ms. Hinton commented on the Governing Board priorities for the budget. There was no discussion on this item. There
were no public comments.

17. ACTION ITEMS
17.1 Approval of Resolution No. 563 Authorizing Filing of Application (s) for Preschool, Transitional Kindergarten
and Full-Day Kindergarten Facility Grant Program
Ms. Gibb, representative from Kings Consulting gave highlights of the facility grant program.  Ms. Pryor moved to
approve Resolution # 563 authorizing filing of application for Preschool, Transitional Kindergarten and Full-Day
Kindergarten Facility Grant Program, seconded by Ms. Smith, all aye.
The following individual addressed the Board during the time for public comment: Mr. Bushon
Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic- aye, Ms. Hinton- aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Dr. Roehrick- aye, Ms. Smith- aye

17.2 Approval of Developer Fee Justification Study
Ms. Gibb, representative from Kings Consulting gave highlights of the Developer Fee Justification Study. Ms. Smith
moved to approve the Developer Fee Justification Study, seconded by Ms. Franicevic, all aye.
The following individual addressed the Board during the time for public comment: Ms. Henry
Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic- aye, Ms. Hinton- aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Dr. Roehrick- aye, Ms. Smith- aye

255



Regular Meeting – Governing Board
April 13, 2022
Page 3

17.3 Consideration to Rescind the Reduction of 1.0(F.T.E.) Middle School Level (7-8) Teaching Service and 1.0
(F.T.E.)Elementary School Level Teaching Service
Ms. Franicevic moved to rescind the Reduction of 1.0 (F.T.E.) Middle School Level (7-8) Teaching Service and 1.0
(F.T.E.) Elementary School Level Teaching Services, seconded by Dr. Roehrick, all aye.
There were no public comments.
Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic- aye, Ms. Hinton – aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Dr. Roehrick – aye, Ms. Smith – aye

17.4 Acceptance of the 2020-2021 Measure L General Obligation Bond Building Fund Financial Audit Report
The 2020-2021 Measure L General Obligation Bond Building Fund Financial Audit Report was accepted on the motion
of Ms. Pryor, seconded by Ms. Smith, all aye.
There were no public comments.
Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic- aye, Ms. Hinton – aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Dr. Roehrick – aye, Ms. Smith – aye

17.5 Approval of the A-G Completion Improvement Grant Program for Northwest Prep Charter School
The A-G Completion Improvement Grant Program for Northwest Prep Charter School was approved on the motion of
Dr. Roderick, seconded by Ms. Pryor, all aye.
There were no public comments.
Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic- aye, Ms. Hinton – aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Dr. Roehrick – aye, Ms. Smith – aye

17.6 Approval of the Northwest Prep Charter School 2022-2023 Calendar
The Northwest Prep Charter School 2022-2023 calendar was approved as presented on the motion of Dr. Roehrick,
seconded by Ms. Smith, all aye.
There were no public comments.
Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic- aye, Ms. Hinton – aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Dr. Roehrick – aye, Ms. Smith – aye

17.7 Approval of the Piner-Olivet Charter School 2022-2023 Calendar
The Piner-Olivet Charter School 2022-2023 calendar was approved as presented on the motion of Ms. Smith, seconded by
Ms. Franicevic, all aye. There were no public comments.
Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic- aye, Ms. Hinton – aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Dr. Roehrick – aye, Ms. Smith – aye

17.8 Approval of the Governance Handbook
The Governance Handbook was approved on the motion of Ms. Franicevic, seconded by Ms. Smith, all aye.
There were no comments from the public.
Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic- aye, Ms. Hinton – aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Dr. Roehrick – aye, Ms. Smith – aye

17.9 Approval of the #10 Communications, Petitions and Delegations
The following narrative of the  #10 Communications, Petitions and Delegations: Any person wishing to be heard by the
Board shall first be recognized by the president. Members of the public may have up to three minutes per speaker and up
to 15 minutes per item, when more than one individual is addressing the same topic. The Board will not comment on
items unless they are agendized, however the board reserves the right to clarify or correct any misinformation stated. Each
individual speaker may only address the board one (1) time per un-agendized or agendized item. The Board may remove
disruptive individuals and/or order the room cleared for persistent disruption or statements that threaten the safety of any
person(s) at the meeting. When the room is ordered cleared due to a disturbance, further Board proceedings shall concern
only matters appearing on the agenda. Anyone desiring an item to be placed on the prepared agenda shall notify the
Secretary ten (10) working days prior to the meeting was approved on the motion of Ms. Pryor, seconded by Ms.
Franicevic.
The following individuals addressed the Board during the time for public comment: Ms. Wehrer, Ms. Henry, and Mr.
Bushon
Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic- aye, Ms. Hinton – nay, Ms. Pryor- aye, Dr. Roehrick – aye, Ms. Smith – aye (4-0)

256



Regular Meeting – Governing Board
April 13, 2022
Page 4

17.10 Approval to Continue with AB 361 Virtual Meetings
Ms. Franicevic motion to discontinue with AB 361 Virtual meeting and resume to in person Board meeting starting on
June 8th, seconded by Ms. Pryor.
The following individuals addressed the Board during the time for public comment: Ms. Sanchez, Mr. Bushon, Ms.
McDonough, Ms. Henry, Ms. Wofford, and Ms. Voight

Dr. Roehrick motion to extend the meeting to 9:15pm., seconded by Ms. Franicevic
Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic- aye, Ms. Hinton – aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Dr. Roehrick – aye, Ms. Smith – aye

18. CONSENT ITEMS
The following consent items were approved on the motion of Ms. Franicevic, seconded by Ms. Smith, all aye.
Roll call vote: Ms. Franicevic- aye, Ms. Hinton- aye, Ms. Pryor- aye, Dr. Roehrick- aye, Ms. Smith- aye
18.1 The minutes of regular Board Meeting of March 9, 2022,
18.2 The Personnel Action Report,
18.3 The vendor warrants,
18.4 The routine budget updates,
18.5 The Williams Settlement Quarterly Uniform Complaint Report Summary. Reporting period from January 1, 2022

through March 31, 2022
18.6 The lease agreement between Sonoma County Family YMCA and Piner-Olivet School District, and
18.7 The continue with AB 361 Virtual meetings, the public agency must reconsider the circumstances of the
emergency every 30 days and determine that either the state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the
members to meet safely in person; or, state or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote
social distancing. These findings must be made by majority vote. Gov. Code 54953 (e) (3).

19. ROUND TABLE COMMENTS FROM THE GOVERNING BOARD
Ms. Hinton commented that this is her last term of office.

20. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
20.1 The next regular board meeting – May 11, 2022

21.         PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA
There was no Closed Session.

22. RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION
There was no Closed Session.

23. RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING
There was no Closed Session.

24. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION NOT ON THE ACTION AGENDA
There was no Closed Session.

25. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjourned at 9:08 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Dr. Steve Charbonneau
Secretary to the Board

APPROVED:

_____
Janae Franicevic, Clerk of the Board

257



Piner-Olivet Union School District PERSONNEL ACTION REPORT 
TO: Board of Trustees Meeting of: May 11, 2022

Name Assignment Salary 
Funding 
Source Effective 

Type of 
Appointment 

Information 
Assignment Recommendation 

Cost of 
Budget 

Miller, Holly Teacher Step 23 General ED 6/2/2022 Retire Olivet Acknowledge 
Berry, Deborah Teacher Step 28 General ED 6/2/2022 Retire POCS Acknowledge 
Garlock, Lynn Teacher Step 25 General ED 6/2/2022 Retire SCH Acknowledge 
Hart, William Teacher Step 26 General ED 6/2/2022 Retire SCH Acknowledge 
Lecave, Donna Teacher Step 23 General ED 6/2/2022 Retire Jack London Acknowledge 
Beck, Terry Teacher Step 11 General ED 6/3/2022 Resigned SCH Acknowledge 
Harris, Kathy Principal Step 12 General ED 6/30/2022 Retire SCH Acknowledge 
Valenzuela, George Principal Step 10 General ED 7/14/2022 New Hire SCH Acknowledge 

258



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

VENDOR 
WARRANTS 

 

259



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 04/01/2022 through 04/30/2022

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

1888507 04/01/2022 Dossat, Alyssa 09-4313 Stale Ch# 1848057- reissue for Red Folder 

21/22

240.00 

1888508 04/01/2022 Zepeda, Jessica M 01-5202 Prof. Devel/Virtual Summit 275.00 

1888509 04/01/2022 Keobounleuang, Phetsamone 01-3402 Health reimb-Ortho 500.00 

01-5950 Postage 8.95 508.95 

1888510 04/01/2022 Aaction Rents 09-4380 Electric hammer/chisel-NWP 78.00 

rotary hammer drill-NWP 65.79 143.79 

1888511 04/01/2022 Anova Center of Education 01-5810 SPED/ NPS 2021/2022 - LJ 4,585.68 

SPED/ NPS 2021/2022 - LS 2,292.84 

SPED/ NPS 2021/2022 - SG 4,585.68 

SPED/ NPS 2021/2022 - TS 4,667.64 16,131.84 

1888512 04/01/2022 AT&T Mobility 01-5900 Mobile phone for maint super. 92.90 

1888513 04/01/2022 AT&T 01-5900 Calnet3 Billing / AT&T 153.70 

1888514 04/01/2022 California's Valued Trust 01-9574 Dental Coverage March 2022 9,384.01 

01-9575 Vision Coverage March 2022 2,507.82 11,891.83 

1888515 04/01/2022 CybrSchool LLC 09-4340 Cyberschool License 900.00 

1888516 04/01/2022 Fagen Friedman & Fulfrost LLP 01-5823 teacher supply-Olivet 7,922.50 

1888517 04/01/2022 Heinemann Publishing 01-5202 Prof. Development virtual event 533.34 

04-4310 Fountas book clubs 7,384.32 

04-5202 Prof. Development virtual event 533.33 

05-5202 Prof. Development virtual event 533.33 8,984.32 

1888518 04/01/2022 Hitmen Termite & Pest Control 01-5630 Rodent/Ants/Spider control-JL 214.00 

1888519 04/01/2022 Interstate Batteries 01-4380 toilet battery for all sites 144.54 

07-5630 toilet battery for all sites 48.18 

09-5630 toilet battery for all sites 48.18 240.90 

1888520 04/01/2022 Kenwood Lumber & Hardware 09-4380 concrete ready mix 60lb 9.83 

1888521 04/01/2022 Office Depot 01-4310 Teacher supply-JL 80.89 

04-4310 teacher supply-Olivet 132.54 

04-4350 office supply-Olivet 38.08 

07-4311 Bookcase-POCS 156.23 

Office supply-POCS 71.94 479.68 

1888522 04/01/2022 PACE Supply Corp. 01-4380 maint supply-JL 22.42 

1888523 04/01/2022 Pacific Gas & Electric 01-5510 Acct # 0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

115.57 

01-5520 Acct # 0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

363.50 

04-5510 Acct # 0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

721.02 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 8

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:40PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union 260



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 04/01/2022 through 04/30/2022

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

1888523 04/01/2022 Pacific Gas & Electric 04-5520 Acct # 0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

2,635.94 

05-5510 Acct # 0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

1,756.28 

05-5520 Acct # 0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

1,049.93 

09-5510 Acct # 0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

62.23 

09-5520 Acct # 0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

25.38 6,729.85 

1888524 04/01/2022 Jan Radke 07-5830 Counseling service 2022 2,362.50 

1888525 04/01/2022 Roberts Mechanical & Elect Inc 01-4380 Rm 15-themostat repair-Schaefer 635.92 

Rm 26-Defrost board and sensor 

repair-Schaefer

169.01 

Rm 3-themostat repair-Olivet 23.01 

01-5630 Rm 10- thermostat repair-Schaefer 170.00 

Rm 14-Replace motor and blower 

wheel-Schaefer

2,422.41 

Rm 15-themostat repair-Schaefer 918.50 

Rm 26-Defrost board and sensor 

repair-Schaefer

668.00 

Rm 3-themostat repair-Olivet 334.00 5,340.85 

1888526 04/01/2022 Sonoma Co Office Of Education 01-5828 Blow to the head form and envelopes 229.43 

1888527 04/01/2022 T-Mobile USA Inc. 01-4310 Mobile Hotspot 100.00 

1888528 04/01/2022 The Standard Insurance Co. 01-9576 Coverage for Feb 2022 174.00 

Coverage for March 2022 163.49 337.49 

1889383 04/06/2022 RESIG 04-2200 overpymt of temp disability 

12/16/21-12/24/21

950.93 

1889384 04/06/2022 Martin, Tawnya E 05-4313 Stale Chk Red Folder 21/22 re-issue 400.00 

1889385 04/06/2022 All City Management Servcs Inc 01-5880 Crossguard 2021-2022 769.86 

05-5880 Crossguard 2021-2022 769.86 

07-5880 Crossguard 2021-2022 769.86 

09-5880 Crossguard 2021-2022 769.86 3,079.44 

1889386 04/06/2022 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. 01-4310 nurse supply-JL 289.46 

recess supplies-JL 2,172.15 

07-4310 light bulb-POCS 50.28 

Nurse Supplies-POCS 297.91 2,809.80 

1889387 04/06/2022 Art & Soul Music Studios 09-5830 Music lessons Mar 2022 800.00 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 8

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:40PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union 261



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 04/01/2022 through 04/30/2022

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

1889388 04/06/2022 City Of Santa Rosa 01-5530 City Water Acct# 023537 2021 - 2022 

NWP/VC

589.25 

09-5530 City Water Acct# 023537 2021 - 2022 

NWP/VC

317.29 906.54 

1889389 04/06/2022 Clover Stornetta Farms Inc 13-4700 District wide milk 2021-2022 1,072.00 

1889390 04/06/2022 Fishman Supply 01-4370 Gloves sch nurse-JL 131.10 

microfiber towels-JL 33.56 164.66 

1889391 04/06/2022 J.M. King Consulting, Inc. dba King Consulting 25-5830 2021 Consulting Services 740.00 

1889392 04/06/2022 KYA Services LLC 21-5830 JL Bond/Landscape 31,462.16 

1889393 04/06/2022 Momentum in Teaching, LLC 07-5202 Pro Development 3,170.00 

1889394 04/06/2022 Office Depot 07-4340 Meyer printer and hard drive 82.99 

Printer brother-POCS 238.69 321.68 

1889395 04/06/2022 Recology Sonoma Marin 01-5560 Waste bin-NWP/VC 296.96 

09-5560 Waste bin-NWP/VC 159.90 456.86 

1889396 04/06/2022 Recology Sonoma Marin 01-5560 Waste bin-JL/POCS 486.65 

07-5560 Waste bin-JL/POCS 324.44 811.09 

1889397 04/06/2022 Recology Sonoma Marin 04-5560 Waste bin-Olivet 458.97 

1889398 04/06/2022 Recology Sonoma Marin 01-5560 Waste bin-SCH/DO 45.90 

05-5560 Waste bin-SCH/DO 413.07 458.97 

1889399 04/06/2022 Sonoma Media Investments 01-5825 Public Hearing 4/13 Press Demo 199.00 

1889400 04/06/2022 Van Pelt Construction Services 21-5830 various project sitewide Mar 2022 16,791.00 

1890139 04/08/2022 Nancy Morton 01-9213 Payroll Check NM 1,569.06 

1890140 04/08/2022 Aaction Rents 01-4380 Machine rental-JL/POCS 328.00 

07-4380 Machine rental-JL/POCS 218.67 546.67 

1890141 04/08/2022 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. 07-4350 Office Supplies 97.86 

1890142 04/08/2022 Clover Stornetta Farms Inc 13-4700 Milk site wide- 2021-2022 448.00 

1890143 04/08/2022 Fishman Supply 05-4370 Noble Speed Scrub 15/Schaefer 5,272.59 

1890144 04/08/2022 Friedman's Home Improvement 01-4380 bit set-DO 21.66 

Pliers long nose/Chain-Schaefer-DO 102.50 

09-4380 maintence supply/parts-NWP 43.72 167.88 

1890145 04/08/2022 H & M Landscaping Inc 01-4380 Play fiber-Olivet 151.90 

1890146 04/08/2022 Horizon 01-4380 Irrigation supplies-Olivet 434.26 

1890147 04/08/2022 JD's Appliance Repair LLC 01-4380 Staff rm refrigrepair/compressor 

replace-Olivet

530.15 

01-5630 Staff rm refrigrepair/compressor 

replace-Olivet

350.00 880.15 

1890148 04/08/2022 Kenwood Lumber & Hardware 01-4380 Leaf Rake-Olivet 21.84 

1890149 04/08/2022 KYOCERA Document Solutions Northern California, Inc 01-5632 printer maint-JL/POCS 68.75 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 3 of 8

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:40PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union 262



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 04/01/2022 through 04/30/2022

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

1890149 04/08/2022 KYOCERA Document Solutions Northern California, Inc 07-5632 printer maint-JL/POCS 45.84 114.59 

1890150 04/08/2022 Mead Clark 01-4380 Quick Seal/Gorilla glue-Olivet-DO 18.76 

1890151 04/08/2022 PACE Supply Corp. 01-4380 Urinal Hanger, 2 wax John-Olivet 16.41 

Urinal Hanger-Olivet 11.39 27.80 

1890152 04/08/2022 Positive Behavior Supports Cancelled Class Assist. SEL for Students with IEP's 4,555.00 *

Cancelled on 04/25/2022

1890153 04/08/2022 Project Wayfinder Inc 07-4340 Books for all teachers 689.08 

1890154 04/08/2022 San Diego County Superintenden t of Schools 01-5202 Equity Conference-Olga Venegas 400.00 

Equity Conference-Tina Rasori 400.00 

04-5202 Equity Conference-Anna Moore 400.00 1,200.00 

1890155 04/08/2022 Santa Rosa Fire Equipment Inc 01-4380 Fire Alarm Repair/Service 2021/2022-NWP 156.00 

01-5630 Fire Alarm Repair/Service 2021/2022-NWP 2,800.00 

09-5800 Fire alarm repair/service 2021-2022 NWP 2,000.00 4,956.00 

1890860 04/13/2022 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. 07-4310 Games for Strategic gaming 

course-Teachers-POCS

215.93 

1890861 04/13/2022 CDW Government Inc 09-4310 Chromebooks-NWP 4,714.38 

1890862 04/13/2022 Clover Stornetta Farms Inc 13-4700 Milk site wide 2021/2022 214.50 

1890863 04/13/2022 Greenacre Homes Inc 01-5810 SPED/ NPS 2021/2022 - JG 4,811.32 

1890864 04/13/2022 Kenwood Lumber & Hardware 09-4380 maint supply-NWP 6.41 

1890865 04/13/2022 Office Depot 04-4310 Toner, Cannon, Cart-Olivet 66.39 

07-4310 Basketball/Teacher supply-POCS 10.19 

07-4311 Bookcase-POCS 156.23 232.81 

1890866 04/13/2022 Pacific Gas & Electric 07-5510 Acct# 8775983334-3 POCS 743.56 

07-5520 Acct# 8775983334-3 POCS 8.24 751.80 

1890867 04/13/2022 Santa Rosa City Schools Business Services 13-4700 March Meals 2022 34,965.00 

1890868 04/13/2022 School Specialty Inc 07-4310 Credits science curriculum fossil 

kits-POCS

4,236.23-

Science curriculum fossil kits-POCS 6,015.91 1,779.68 

1890869 04/13/2022 Specialized Ed. of Calif.Inc. dba Sierra School of So 

County

01-5810 SPED/ NPS 2021/2022 - MC 3,807.30 

1890870 04/13/2022 Soliant Health, LLC 01-5830 1:1 LPN-BH 1,784.25 

1890871 04/13/2022 Weeks Drilling & Pump Co Inc 01-4380 Well service March 2021-2022 NWP 350.00 

01-5630 Well service March 2021-2022 Olivet 350.00 700.00 

1890872 04/13/2022 West County Transportation 01-5830 3rd QTR SE Transportation Costs 37,149.00 

1891588 04/15/2022 Wiggins, Kristy J 01-5201 Emp. milieage reimb. March 2022 99.80 

1891589 04/15/2022 AAA NCNU CAR CARE PLUS, INC 01-4380 Truck repair and tires 435.46 

01-5630 Truck repair and tires 110.00 545.46 

1891590 04/15/2022 Alpha Analytical Labs, Inc. 01-5830 Well water testing-Olivet 119.00 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 4 of 8

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:40PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union 263



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 04/01/2022 through 04/30/2022

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

1891591 04/15/2022 Clover Stornetta Farms Inc 13-4700 Milk site wide-2021-2022 231.00 

1891592 04/15/2022 H & M Landscaping Inc 01-4380 Play Fiber Jack London 2,021.13 

1891593 04/15/2022 Hitmen Termite & Pest Control 01-5630 Rodent & Yellow Jacket Control @ 

JL/POCS

214.00 

1891594 04/15/2022 Horizon 01-4380 Grounds supply-JL/POCS 28.39 

07-5630 Grounds supply-JL/POCS 18.92 47.31 

1891595 04/15/2022 Kelly Moore Paint Co 01-4380 Paint for maint supply-JL/POCS 65.39 

07-4380 Paint for maint supply-JL/POCS 43.60 108.99 

1891596 04/15/2022 KYOCERA Document Solutions Northern California, Inc 05-5632 Riso maint-Schaefer 14.87 

1891597 04/15/2022 Office Depot 04-4310 School Supply-Olivet 161.46 

05-4310 Foil stickers stars-Schaefer 3.81 

05-4350 office supply-Schaefer 55.23 

Ring speakers-Schaefer 65.54 

Water cups-Schaefer 64.11 

07-4310 ready to use paint-POCS 81.68 

07-4311 Tape-POCS 74.83 506.66 

1891598 04/15/2022 Plumfield Academy 01-5810 SpED NPS-KP 1,793.88 

1891599 04/15/2022 Sonoma Co Office Of Education 01-5828 Behavior forms/study 

forms/envelopes-POCS

365.99 

1892167 04/20/2022 All City Management Servcs Inc 01-5880 crossing guard 2021-2022 427.70 

05-5880 crossing guard 2021-2022 427.70 

07-5880 crossing guard 2021-2022 427.70 

09-5880 crossing guard 2021-2022 427.70 1,710.80 

1892168 04/20/2022 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. 01-4310 Professional Development books for 

teachers

190.00 

RECESS SUPPLIES 1,817.55 

01-4390 Flag for Olga 55.03 

Staff lanyard 42.57 

07-4310 ELD Curriculum 210.44 

07-4311 Professional Dev. Materials and Yearbook 

Supplies

135.90 

07-4390 Professional Dev. Materials and Yearbook 

Supplies

50.73 2,502.22 

1892169 04/20/2022 AT&T 01-5900 Calnet3 Billing / AT&T 1,249.49 

1892170 04/20/2022 Amicita Partners, Inc. dba Batteries Plus #620 01-4380 Battery for sink sensor-Sch 28.73 

1892171 04/20/2022 City Of Santa Rosa 05-5530 City Water Acct# 026852 2021 - 2022 SCH 755.27 

1892172 04/20/2022 Clover Stornetta Farms Inc 13-4700 District Wide Milk - 2021-22 412.50 

1892173 04/20/2022 Friedman's Home Improvement 09-4380 maint supply-NWP 22.05 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 5 of 8

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:40PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union 264



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 04/01/2022 through 04/30/2022

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

1892174 04/20/2022 Garibaldi Press LLC 09-4350 Wasc Materials 57.39 

1892175 04/20/2022 KYOCERA Document Solutions Northern California, Inc 09-5632 maint for printer-NWP 394.79 

1892176 04/20/2022 Mead Clark 01-4380 Paint supply-Schaefer 76.54 

1892177 04/20/2022 Office Depot 01-4310 Film sheet lmnt-JL 112.41 

Paper Craft-JL 61.64 174.05 

1892178 04/20/2022 Soliant Health, LLC 01-5830 1:1 LVN BH 1,403.00 

1892922 04/22/2022 Alpha Analytical Labs, Inc. 01-5830 Well Water Testing - NWP 2021 - 2022 109.85 

09-5830 Well Water Testing - NWP 2021 - 2022 59.15 169.00 

1892923 04/22/2022 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. 01-4350 Whiteboard for Phet 105.32 

07-4380 Safety Team Radios 95.28 

09-4350 Grad Certifcates 37.58 238.18 

1892924 04/22/2022 CDW Government Inc 09-4310 CBs for NWP 608.00 

1892925 04/22/2022 Christy White Accountancy Corp 01-5821 2020-21 Measure L Bond Audit 1,500.00 

1892926 04/22/2022 City Of Santa Rosa 01-5530 City Water Acct# 023537 2021 - 2022 NWP 294.63 

09-5530 City Water Acct# 023537 2021 - 2022 NWP 158.64 453.27 

1892927 04/22/2022 Clover Stornetta Farms Inc 13-4700 District Wide Milk 2021-2022 165.00 

1892928 04/22/2022 California's Valued Trust 01-9574 Dental coverage  for Apr. 2022 9,004.80 

01-9575 Vison coverage  for Apr. 2022 2,406.72 11,411.52 

1892929 04/22/2022 Office Depot 01-4350 Office Supply-JL 92.14 

04-4310 Teacher Supply-Olivet 1,306.81 

05-4310 Teacher Supply-Sch 525.92 1,924.87 

1892930 04/22/2022 Piner-Olivet USD 01-5890 Bank Fee POUSD revolving 104.80 

1892931 04/22/2022 PresenceLearning, Inc. 01-5830 SLP Eval. & Assessment 3,126.00 

1892932 04/22/2022 Sonoma Co Office Of Education 04-5828 Envelopes-Azura 131.10 

1893554 04/27/2022 Amazon Capital Services, Inc. 01-4380 Radios 97.22 

1893555 04/27/2022 Anova Center of Education 01-5810 SPED/NPS 2021-2022- LJ 4,585.68 

SPED/NPS 2021-2022- LS 4,585.68 

SPED/NPS 2021-2022- SG 4,585.68 13,757.04 

1893556 04/27/2022 Bill's Lock & Safe Service 09-4380 Front Office Door repair/NWP 453.39 

09-5630 Front Office Door repair/NWP 190.00 643.39 

1893557 04/27/2022 Fishman Supply 01-4370 Janitorial supply-NWP 570.89 

04-4370 Janitorial supply-NWP 781.68 

07-4370 Janitorial supply-NWP 380.59 1,733.16 

1893558 04/27/2022 Fulwider Outdoor Power Equip 01-4380 Repair and Serv. for Maint. Dept. All sites 96.21 

1893559 04/27/2022 H & M Landscaping Inc 01-4380 Play fiber for JL and POCs 3,092.87 

1893560 04/27/2022 Kelly Moore Paint Co 01-4380 Paint supply-JL/POCS 79.73 

07-4380 Paint supply-JL/POCS 53.16 132.89 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 6 of 8

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:40PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union 265



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 04/01/2022 through 04/30/2022

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

1893561 04/27/2022 KYOCERA Document Solutions Northern California, Inc 01-5632 JL/POCS - Copier Maintenance - Staff 

Room

483.77 

07-5632 JL/POCS - Copier Maintenance - Staff 

Room

322.51 806.28 

1893562 04/27/2022 Lexia Learning Systems LLC 09-4340 Reading/Powerup Lit Homestudy 

Subscription

332.88 

1893563 04/27/2022 Office Depot 01-4350 Office supply-JL 19.63 

07-4310 Teacher supply-JL 7.28 26.91 

1893564 04/27/2022 Pacific Gas & Electric 01-5510 Acct # 0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

261.66 

01-5520 Acct # 0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

323.02 

04-5510 Acct # 0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

448.41 

04-5520 Acct # 0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

1,726.16 

05-5510 Acct # 0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

1,037.47 

05-5520 Acct # 0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

949.21 

09-5510 Acct # 0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

140.90 

09-5520 Acct # 0532988800-1 

Olivet/NWP/VC/DO/SCH

23.77 4,910.60 

1893565 04/27/2022 Positive Behavior Supports 01-5830 Class Assist. SEL for Students with IEP's 4,555.00 

1893566 04/27/2022 STLR Corporation dba Ryland School Consult. 01-5830 Fiscal Services Support 14,857.50 

1893567 04/27/2022 School Nurse Supply 04-4310 nurse supplies 298.66 

1893568 04/27/2022 Shell Wex Bank 01-4362 Fuel for trucks 2021 - 2022 1,012.21 

01-5890 Fuel for trucks 2021 - 2022 67.73 1,079.94 

1893569 04/27/2022 Soliant Health, LLC 01-5830 1:1 LPN BH 1,784.25 

ACH-00019985 04/08/2022 Nancy N. Morton Cancelled 3,115.43 *

Cancelled on 04/14/2022

Total Number of Checks 122 326,655.59 

Net Issue

Cancel 

AmountCount

 2 7,670.43 

318,985.16 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 7 of 8

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:40PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union 266



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 04/01/2022 through 04/30/2022

Check 
AmountPay to the Order of

Check 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

General Fund 79 173,625.88 01

Olivet Charter School 13 18,175.80 04

Schaefer Charter School 12 14,094.19 05

Piner Olivet Charter School 26 13,440.92 07

Charter School Fund 25 13,147.21 09

Cafeteria 7 37,508.00 13

Building Fund 2 48,253.16 21

Capital Facilities Fund 1 740.00 25

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 120 318,985.16 

.00 

318,985.16 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 8 of 8

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:40PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union 267



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BUDGET UPDATES 
 

268



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

JE # BR22-00947 JE Trans Date 04/04/2022 JE Posted 04/04/2022 Comment F05-3212 budget Revision
3,313.00 05- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 DRInstructional M,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

3,000.00 05- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 000- XTRA CRTeachers' Sals,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

200.00 05- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Strs,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

44.00 05- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

15.00 05- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

54.00 05- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

3,313.00 3,313.00 

JE # BR22-00948 JE Trans Date 04/04/2022 JE Posted 04/04/2022 Comment F01-3212 Budget Revision
538.00 01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 104- 0000 DRInstructional M,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

500.00 01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 600- 0000 DRInstructional M,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

1,000.00 01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 104- XTRA CRTeachers' Sals,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

15.00 01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 104- XTRA CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

5.00 01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 104- XTRA CRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

18.00 01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 104- XTRA CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

1,038.00 1,038.00 

JE # BR22-00949 JE Trans Date 04/04/2022 JE Posted 04/04/2022 Comment F07-3212 Budget Revision
2,414.00 07- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 DRInstructional M,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

2,000.00 07- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 000- XTRA CRTeachers' Sals,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

339.00 07- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Strs,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

29.00 07- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

10.00 07- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

36.00 07- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

2,414.00 2,414.00 

JE # BR22-00950 JE Trans Date 04/04/2022 JE Posted 04/04/2022 Comment F09-0000 Increase budget for remainder of 2021-22
1,984.00 09- 0000- 0- 1305- 1000- 1130- 000- SG01 CRTeachers' Sals,Instruction,Elective,Supp Grnt-G1

18.00 09- 0000- 0- 1305- 1000- 3331- 000- SG01 CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Elective,Supp Grnt-G1

14.00 09- 0000- 0- 1305- 1000- 3601- 000- SG01 CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Elective,Supp Grnt-G1

2,016.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00951 JE Trans Date 04/04/2022 JE Posted 04/04/2022 Comment F05-3212 Budget Revision
666.00 05- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 DRInstructional M,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

500.00 05- 3212- 0- 0000- 3700- 2230- 000- XTRA CRXtra,Food Services,Undistributed,Extra work

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 1 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821269



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

JE # BR22-00951 JE Trans Date 04/04/2022 JE Posted 04/04/2022 Comment F05-3212 Budget Revision(continued)
115.00 05- 3212- 0- 0000- 3700- 3202- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Pers,Food Services,Undistributed,Extra work

31.00 05- 3212- 0- 0000- 3700- 3312- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Oasd,Food Services,Undistributed,Extra work

8.00 05- 3212- 0- 0000- 3700- 3332- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Medi,Food Services,Undistributed,Extra work

3.00 05- 3212- 0- 0000- 3700- 3502- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Sui,Food Services,Undistributed,Extra work

9.00 05- 3212- 0- 0000- 3700- 3602- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Wcom,Food Services,Undistributed,Extra work

666.00 666.00 

JE # BR22-00952 JE Trans Date 04/04/2022 JE Posted 04/04/2022 Comment F01-3212 Budget Revision
11,474.00 01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 104- 0000 DRBenefits - Strs,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

9,509.00 01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 600- XTRA CRTeachers' Sals,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

138.00 01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 600- XTRA CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

48.00 01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 600- XTRA CRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

170.00 01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 600- XTRA CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

1,609.00 01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 600- XTRA CRBenefits - Strs,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

11,474.00 11,474.00 

JE # BR22-00953 JE Trans Date 04/04/2022 JE Posted 04/04/2022 Comment F01-0000 Ortho reimbursement
500.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 3402- 600- 0000 CRH & W Benefits,Other General A,Undistributed,Not Required

500.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00954 JE Trans Date 04/04/2022 JE Posted 04/04/2022 Comment F04-0000 Budget Increase to Clear Negatives
1,361.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 000- CELT CRTeachers' Sals,Instruction,Regular Educati,Celdt Testing

686.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1149- 000- SUBS CRTeacher Substit,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

582.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 2100- 000- 0000 CRInstructional A,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

299.00 04- 0000- 0- 0000- 8300- 2900- 000- 0000 CROther Classifie,Security,Undistributed,Not Required

163.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3421- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

79.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3311- 000- SUBS CRBenefits - Oasd,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

49.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3431- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

25.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 000- CELT CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Celdt Testing

20.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- CELT CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Celdt Testing

18.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3311- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Oasd,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

10.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3441- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

6.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 000- CELT CRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Celdt Testing

2.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 2 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821270



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

3,300.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00955 JE Trans Date 04/04/2022 JE Posted 04/04/2022 Comment F05-0000 Budget Increase to Clear Negatives
1,928.00 05- 0000- 0- 0000- 8300- 2900- 000- 0000 CROther Classifie,Security,Undistributed,Not Required

1,315.00 05- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3421- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

302.00 05- 0000- 0- 0000- 8300- 3202- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Pers,Security,Undistributed,Not Required

121.00 05- 0000- 0- 0000- 8300- 3312- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Oasd,Security,Undistributed,Not Required

68.00 05- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3431- 000- SUBS CRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

34.00 05- 0000- 0- 0000- 8300- 3602- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Wcom,Security,Undistributed,Not Required

30.00 05- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3431- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

28.00 05- 0000- 0- 0000- 8300- 3332- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Medi,Security,Undistributed,Not Required

17.00 05- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3311- 000- SUBS CRBenefits - Oasd,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

16.00 05- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 000- SUBS CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

14.00 05- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- SUBS CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

10.00 05- 0000- 0- 0000- 8300- 3502- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Sui,Security,Undistributed,Not Required

10.00 05- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3441- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

3.00 05- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3441- 000- SUBS CRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

1.00 05- 0000- 0- 0000- 8300- 3452- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Security,Undistributed,Not Required

3,897.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00956 JE Trans Date 04/04/2022 JE Posted 04/04/2022 Comment F07-0000 Budget Increase to Clear Negatives
325.00 07- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 2100- 000- SG03 CRInstructional A,Instruction,Regular Educati,Supp Grnt-G3

264.00 07- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3401- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

150.00 07- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1100- 000- 0000 CRTeachers' Salar,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

75.00 07- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3202- 000- SG03 CRBenefits - Pers,Instruction,Regular Educati,Supp Grnt-G3

62.00 07- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3311- 000- SUBS CRBenefits - Oasd,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

36.00 07- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 000- SG03 CRBenefits - Oasd,Instruction,Regular Educati,Supp Grnt-G3

24.00 07- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Strs,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

8.00 07- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 000- SG03 CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Supp Grnt-G3

5.00 07- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 000- SG03 CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Supp Grnt-G3

2.00 07- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 000- SG03 CRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Supp Grnt-G3

1.00 07- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

1.00 07- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

953.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00957 JE Trans Date 04/05/2022 JE Posted 04/05/2022 Comment GASB 68 Accounting Valuation Report
700.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7100- 5800- 000- FEES CROther Svcs & Op,Board & Superin,Undistributed,FEES

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 3 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821271



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

700.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00958 JE Trans Date 04/05/2022 JE Posted 04/05/2022 Comment Special Ed Revenue Revision based on P-1
11,547.00 01- 6500- 0- 5001- 0000- 8792- 000- 0000 CRTrans Of Apport,Special Educati

61,471.00 01- 6500- 0- 5001- 0000- 8097- 000- 0000 CRProperty Taxes,Special Educati

27,034.00 01- 3310- 0- 5001- 0000- 8181- 000- 0000 DRSp Ed-entitleme,Sp Ed-idea Bas

7,203.00 01- 3310- 0- 5001- 0000- 8181- 600- PRSC CRSp Ed-entitleme,Sp Ed-idea Bas

3,495.00 01- 3315- 0- 5001- 0000- 8182- 000- 0000 CRSp Ed-discretio,Sp Ed-idea Pres

27,034.00 83,716.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00959 JE Trans Date 04/05/2022 JE Posted 04/05/2022 Comment F01-8150 Budget Increase for Jack London
1,000.00 01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5630- 104- 0000 DRRepairs,Maintenance,Undistributed,Not Required

1,000.00 01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 4380- 104- 0000 CRMaintenance Sup,Maintenance,Undistributed,Not Required

1,000.00 1,000.00 

JE # BR22-00960 JE Trans Date 04/07/2022 JE Posted 04/07/2022 Comment F01-8150 Budget Revision
81.00 01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 4380- 101- 0000 CRMaintenance Sup,Maintenance,Undistributed,Not Required

81.00 01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 4380- 600- 0000 DRMaintenance Sup,Maintenance,Undistributed,Not Required

4,100.00 01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 4380- 104- 0000 CRMaintenance Sup,Maintenance,Undistributed,Not Required

2,100.00 01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5830- 104- 0000 DRProfessional/co,Maintenance,Undistributed,Not Required

1,000.00 01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5630- 104- 0000 DRRepairs,Maintenance,Undistributed,Not Required

1,000.00 01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5630- 103- 0000 DRRepairs,Maintenance,Undistributed,Not Required

4,181.00 4,181.00 

JE # BR22-00961 JE Trans Date 04/12/2022 JE Posted 04/12/2022 Comment Asbestos 3-year Reinspection
27,000.00 01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5830- 600- 0000 CRProfessional/co,Maintenance,Undistributed,Not Required

27,000.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00962 JE Trans Date 04/13/2022 JE Posted 04/13/2022 Comment F07-0000 Increase budget to cover PO#B22-00037
366.00 07- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5828- 000- 0000 CRGraphics,School Administ,Undistributed,Not Required

366.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00963 JE Trans Date 04/13/2022 JE Posted 04/13/2022 Comment F01-6500 Budget Revision (Positive Behavior Supports)
8,200.00 01- 6500- 0- 5760- 3110- 5830- 600- 0000 CRProfessional/co,Guidance & Coun,Spec Ed, 5-22,Not Required

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 4 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821272



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

8,200.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00964 JE Trans Date 04/13/2022 JE Posted 04/13/2022 Comment F01-3315 Prior Year Revenue
9,587.00 01- 3315- 0- 5001- 0000- 8182- 000- AR00 DRSp Ed-discretio,Sp Ed-idea Pres

12,952.00 01- 3315- 0- 5001- 0000- 8182- 000- PY00 DRSp Ed-discretio,Sp Ed-idea Pres

22,539.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00965 JE Trans Date 04/13/2022 JE Posted 04/13/2022 Comment F01-6547 SpED Early Inter Preschool Grant Allocation
41,388.00 01- 6547- 0- 5001- 0000- 8590- 000- 0000 DRAll Other State,Sp Ed Int Pres

41,388.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00966 JE Trans Date 04/13/2022 JE Posted 04/13/2022 Comment F01-6500 Budget Revision to clear negatives
90.00 01- 6500- 0- 5770- 1110- 3432- 600- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Spec Ed-separat, Spec Ed - K-12, Not Require

17.00 01- 6500- 0- 5770- 1120- 3432- 600- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Spec Ed-resourc, Spec Ed - K-12, Not Require

107.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00967 JE Trans Date 04/14/2022 JE Posted 04/14/2022 Comment Increase Budget - NWP Printer Maintenance
247.00 09- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5632- 000- 0000 DRCopier Costs,School Administ,Undistributed,Not Required

.00 247.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00968 JE Trans Date 04/14/2022 JE Posted 04/14/2022 Comment Increase Budget - NWP Printer Maintenance
247.00 09- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5632- 000- 0000 CRCopier Costs,School Administ,Undistributed,Not Required

247.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00969 JE Trans Date 04/14/2022 JE Posted 04/14/2022 Comment Increase Budget - NWP Printer Maintenance
247.00 09- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 5632- 000- 0000 CRCopier Costs,School Administ,Undistributed,Not Required

247.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00970 JE Trans Date 04/14/2022 JE Posted 04/14/2022 Comment F05-3010 Budget Revision to Clear Negatives
11.00 05- 3010- 0- 1570- 1000- 3432- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Reading,Not Required

11.00 05- 3010- 0- 1570- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 DRInstructional M,Instruction,Reading,Not Required

11.00 11.00 

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 5 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821273



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

JE # BR22-00971 JE Trans Date 04/14/2022 JE Posted 04/14/2022 Comment F01-3315 Prior Year Revenue
9,587.00 01- 3315- 0- 5001- 0000- 8182- 000- AR00 CRSp Ed-discretio,Sp Ed-idea Pres

12,952.00 01- 3315- 0- 5001- 0000- 8182- 000- PY00 CRSp Ed-discretio,Sp Ed-idea Pres

.00 22,539.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00972 JE Trans Date 04/14/2022 JE Posted 04/14/2022 Comment F01-6547 Budget Set Up
41,388.00 01- 6547- 0- 5731- 1110- 5830- 600- 0000 CRProfessional/co,Spec Ed-separat,Non-intensive P,Not Required

41,388.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00973 JE Trans Date 04/14/2022 JE Posted 04/14/2022 Comment F01-3315 Decrease budget based on revised allocation
3,495.00 01- 3315- 0- 5731- 1110- 5830- 600- 0000 DRProfessional/co,Spec Ed-separat,Non-intensive P,Not Required

.00 3,495.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00974 JE Trans Date 04/14/2022 JE Posted 04/14/2022 Comment F01-3310 Increase Expenditures w/Revised Allocation
19,831.00 01- 3310- 0- 5730- 1110- 5830- 600- 0000 CRProfessional/co,Spec Ed-separat,Spec Ed - Presc,Not Required

19,831.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00975 JE Trans Date 04/14/2022 JE Posted 04/14/2022 Comment F01-6500 Decrease Budget
19,831.00 01- 6500- 0- 5730- 1110- 5830- 600- 0000 DRProfessional/co,Spec Ed-separat,Spec Ed - Presc,Not Required

.00 19,831.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00976 JE Trans Date 04/15/2022 JE Posted 04/15/2022 Comment F09-0000 Increase local revenue
700.00 09- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8699- 000- 0000 DRAll Other Local,Unrestricted/no

700.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00977 JE Trans Date 04/15/2022 JE Posted 04/15/2022 Comment F05-0000 Increase budget for SRC water bill
3,000.00 05- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 5530- 000- 0000 CRWater,Operations,Undistributed,Not Required

3,000.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00978 JE Trans Date 04/18/2022 JE Posted 04/18/2022 Comment SpED Psych contract - Debra Groff
4,875.00 01- 6500- 0- 5770- 3120- 5830- 600- 0000 CRProfessional/co,Psychological S, Spec Ed - K-12, Not Require

4,875.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 6 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821274



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

JE # BR22-00979 JE Trans Date 04/18/2022 JE Posted 04/18/2022 Comment F01-6500 Increase budget for NPS contract
3,000.00 01- 6500- 0- 5770- 1180- 5810- 600- 0000 CRNon-public Scho,Spec Ed-nonpubl, Spec Ed - K-12, Not Require

3,000.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00980 JE Trans Date 04/19/2022 JE Posted 04/19/2022 Comment F09-0000 Increase Budget for Buses
40.00 09- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5806- 000- FT01 CRFT transport,Instruction,Regular Educati,FT - Goal 1

40.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00981 JE Trans Date 04/19/2022 JE Posted 04/19/2022 Comment F01-0000 Increase Budget for Measure L Bond
500.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7190- 5821- 600- 0000 CRAudit Costs,External Financ,Undistributed,Not Required

500.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00982 JE Trans Date 04/19/2022 JE Posted 04/19/2022 Comment F01-0000 Increase Budget for Measure L Bond
40.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7190- 5821- 600- 0000 CRAudit Costs,External Financ,Undistributed,Not Required

40.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00983 JE Trans Date 04/20/2022 JE Posted 04/20/2022 Comment F09-0000 Budget for NWP Grad Cap and Gown
760.00 09- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 CRInstructional M,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

760.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00984 JE Trans Date 04/20/2022 JE Posted 04/20/2022 Comment F25-9010 Increase Revenue Budget
60,000.00 25- 9010- 0- 0000- 0000- 8681- 000- 0000 DRMitigation/deve,Non-Agency

60,000.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00985 JE Trans Date 04/21/2022 JE Posted 04/21/2022 Comment Increase budget to cover Bill's Lock & Safe invoice
400.00 09- 0000- 0- 0000- 8110- 4380- 000- 0000 CRMaintenance Sup,Maintenance,Undistributed,Not Required

400.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00986 JE Trans Date 04/21/2022 JE Posted 04/21/2022 Comment F04-3215 Budget Increase to Clear Negatives
99.00 04- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 000- XTRA CRTeachers' Sals,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

6.00 04- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 3311- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Oasd,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

2.00 04- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

2.00 04- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 7 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821275



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

JE # BR22-00986 JE Trans Date 04/21/2022 JE Posted 04/21/2022 Comment F04-3215 Budget Increase to Clear Negatives(continued)
1.00 04- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

110.00 04- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 DRInstructional M,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

110.00 110.00 

JE # BR22-00987 JE Trans Date 04/21/2022 JE Posted 04/21/2022 Comment Increase budget to cover invoices
20,000.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 5830- 600- 0000 CRProfessional/co,Other General A,Undistributed,Not Required

20,000.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00988 JE Trans Date 04/21/2022 JE Posted 04/21/2022 Comment F05-3212 Budget Revision
3,216.00 05- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 000- XTRA CRTeachers' Sals,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

56.00 05- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

45.00 05- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

16.00 05- 3212- 0- 0000- 3140- 3432- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Health Services,Undistributed,Not Required

16.00 05- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

3,349.00 05- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 DRInstructional M,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

3,349.00 3,349.00 

JE # BR22-00989 JE Trans Date 04/21/2022 JE Posted 04/21/2022 Comment F04-0000 Budget Revision to Clear Negatives
1,410.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1149- 000- SUBS CRTeacher Substit,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

713.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 000- XTRA CRTeachers' Sals,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

600.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3421- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

121.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Strs,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

58.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3311- 000- SUBS CRBenefits - Oasd,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

39.00 04- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3422- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Operations,Undistributed,Not Required

13.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

11.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

9.00 04- 0000- 0- 0000- 8300- 3432- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Security,Undistributed,Not Required

4.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

2.00 04- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3312- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Oasd,Operations,Undistributed,Not Required

2,980.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00990 JE Trans Date 04/21/2022 JE Posted 04/21/2022 Comment Increase Budget for Interest obj 8660
1,200.00 25- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8660- 000- 0000 DRInterest,Unrestricted/no

500.00 07- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8660- 000- 0000 DRInterest,Unrestricted/no

500.00 04- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8660- 000- 0000 DRInterest,Unrestricted/no

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 8 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821276



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

JE # BR22-00990 JE Trans Date 04/21/2022 JE Posted 04/21/2022 Comment Increase Budget for Interest obj 8660(continued)
500.00 05- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8660- 000- 0000 DRInterest,Unrestricted/no

100.00 14- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8660- 000- 0000 DRInterest,Unrestricted/no

50.00 13- 5310- 0- 0000- 0000- 8660- 000- 0000 DRInterest,Child Nutrition

50.00 17- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8660- 000- 0000 DRInterest,Unrestricted/no

2,900.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00991 JE Trans Date 04/21/2022 JE Posted 04/21/2022 Comment F25 - Decrease budget
1,200.00 25- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8660- 000- 0000 CRInterest,Unrestricted/no

.00 1,200.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00992 JE Trans Date 04/21/2022 JE Posted 04/21/2022 Comment F01-3212 Budget Revision to Clear Negatives
1,050.00 01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 104- XTRA CRTeachers' Sals,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

82.00 01- 3212- 0- 0000- 3140- 3432- 104- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Health Services,Undistributed,Not Required

19.00 01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 104- XTRA CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

14.00 01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 104- XTRA CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

5.00 01- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 104- XTRA CRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

1,170.00 01- 3212- 0- 0000- 7200- 4400- 600- 0000 DREquipment Under,Other General A,Undistributed,Not Required

1,170.00 1,170.00 

JE # BR22-00993 JE Trans Date 04/21/2022 JE Posted 04/21/2022 Comment F01-3212 Budget Revision to Clear Negatives
1.00 01- 3212- 0- 0000- 2700- 3502- 104- 0000 CRBenefits - Sui,School Administ,Undistributed,Not Required

1.00 01- 3212- 0- 0000- 8110- 4380- 101- 0000 DRMaintenance Sup,Maintenance,Undistributed,Not Required

1.00 1.00 

JE # BR22-00994 JE Trans Date 04/22/2022 JE Posted 04/22/2022 Comment F07-3212 Budget Revision
2,000.00 07- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 000- XTRA CRTeachers' Sals,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

339.00 07- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Strs,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

29.00 07- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

10.00 07- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

36.00 07- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

2,414.00 07- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 DRInstructional M,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

2,414.00 2,414.00 

JE # BR22-00995 JE Trans Date 04/21/2022 JE Posted 04/22/2022 Comment F04-3215 Budget Revision

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 9 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821277



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

JE # BR22-00995 JE Trans Date 04/21/2022 JE Posted 04/22/2022 Comment F04-3215 Budget Revision(continued)
1.00 04- 3215- 0- 0000- 3700- 3502- 000- XTRA DRBenefits - Sui,Food Services,Undistributed,Extra work

4.00 04- 3215- 0- 0000- 3700- 3332- 000- XTRA DRBenefits - Medi,Food Services,Undistributed,Extra work

4.00 04- 3215- 0- 0000- 3700- 3602- 000- XTRA DRBenefits - Wcom,Food Services,Undistributed,Extra work

17.00 04- 3215- 0- 0000- 3700- 3312- 000- XTRA DRBenefits - Oasd,Food Services,Undistributed,Extra work

60.00 04- 3215- 0- 0000- 3700- 3202- 000- XTRA DRBenefits - Pers,Food Services,Undistributed,Extra work

266.00 04- 3215- 0- 0000- 3700- 2230- 000- XTRA DRXtra,Food Services,Undistributed,Extra work

316.00 04- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 DRInstructional M,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

553.00 04- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 000- XTRA CRTeachers' Sals,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

94.00 04- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Strs,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

8.00 04- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

3.00 04- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

10.00 04- 3215- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

668.00 668.00 

JE # BR22-00996 JE Trans Date 04/21/2022 JE Posted 04/22/2022 Comment F05-3212 Budget Revision
2,000.00 05- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 000- XTRA CRTeachers' Sals,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

113.00 05- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Strs,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

29.00 05- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

10.00 05- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

36.00 05- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

2,188.00 05- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 DRInstructional M,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

2,188.00 2,188.00 

JE # BR22-00997 JE Trans Date 04/22/2022 JE Posted 04/22/2022 Comment Bond Projects Change Order for Marquees & NWP
1,797.00 21- 0000- 0- 0000- 8500- 6150- 000- 0000 CRSite Support Co,Facilities Acqu,Undistributed,Not Required

34,142.00 21- 0000- 0- 0000- 8500- 6100- 000- 0000 CRSites & Improve,Facilities Acqu,Undistributed,Not Required

7,266.00 21- 0000- 0- 0000- 8500- 6100- 209- 0000 CRSites & Improve,Facilities Acqu,Undistributed,Not Required

383.00 21- 0000- 0- 0000- 8500- 6150- 209- 0000 CRSite Support Co,Facilities Acqu,Undistributed,Not Required

43,588.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00998 JE Trans Date 04/24/2022 JE Posted 04/24/2022 Comment Westcoast Solar Engery Annual Service
2,000.00 01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5830- 103- 0000 CRProfessional/co,Maintenance,Undistributed,Not Required

2,000.00 01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5830- 102- 0000 CRProfessional/co,Maintenance,Undistributed,Not Required

300.00 01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5830- 104- 0000 CRProfessional/co,Maintenance,Undistributed,Not Required

1,040.00 01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5830- 109- 0000 CRProfessional/co,Maintenance,Undistributed,Not Required

336.00 01- 8150- 0- 0000- 8110- 5830- 209- 0000 CRProfessional/co,Maintenance,Undistributed,Not Required

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 10 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821278



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

5,676.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-00999 JE Trans Date 04/24/2022 JE Posted 04/24/2022 Comment 2021-22 P-2 Property Taxes
39,660.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8044- 000- 0000 DRSupplemental Ta,Unrestricted/no

53,221.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8045- 000- 0000 CREd Revenue Augm,Unrestricted/no

39,660.00 53,221.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01000 JE Trans Date 04/24/2022 JE Posted 04/24/2022 Comment F01-3010 Budget Revision to Clear Negative
17.00 01- 3010- 0- 1570- 1000- 3432- 104- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Reading,Not Required

17.00 01- 3010- 0- 1570- 1000- 4310- 104- 0000 DRInstructional M,Instruction,Reading,Not Required

17.00 17.00 

JE # BR22-01001 JE Trans Date 04/24/2022 JE Posted 04/24/2022 Comment F04-3010 Budget Revision to Clear Negatives
12.00 04- 3010- 0- 1570- 1000- 3432- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Reading,Not Required

2.00 04- 3010- 0- 1570- 1000- 3442- 000- 0000 DRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Reading,Not Required

10.00 04- 3010- 0- 1570- 1000- 4340- 000- 0000 DRComputer Sftwar,Instruction,Reading,Not Required

12.00 12.00 

JE # BR22-01002 JE Trans Date 04/24/2022 JE Posted 04/24/2022 Comment F04-4035 Budget Revision
35.00 04- 4035- 0- 0000- 7210- 7310- 000- 0000 DRDir Supp/indr C,General Admin C,Undistributed,Not Required

35.00 04- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 1100- 000- 0000 CRTeachers' Salar,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

35.00 35.00 

JE # BR22-01003 JE Trans Date 04/24/2022 JE Posted 04/24/2022 Comment F04 Indirect Cost
35.00 04- 0000- 0- 0000- 7210- 7310- 000- 0000 CRDir Supp/indr C,General Admin C,Undistributed,Not Required

35.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01004 JE Trans Date 04/24/2022 JE Posted 04/24/2022 Comment F05-3010 Budget Revision to Clear Negatives
95.00 05- 3010- 0- 1570- 1000- 3202- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Pers,Instruction,Reading,Not Required

95.00 05- 3010- 0- 1570- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 DRInstructional M,Instruction,Reading,Not Required

95.00 95.00 

JE # BR22-01005 JE Trans Date 04/24/2022 JE Posted 04/24/2022 Comment F05-3010 Budget Revision

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 11 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821279



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

JE # BR22-01005 JE Trans Date 04/24/2022 JE Posted 04/24/2022 Comment F05-3010 Budget Revision(continued)
543.00 05- 3010- 0- 0000- 7210- 7310- 000- 0000 DRDir Supp/indr C,General Admin C,Undistributed,Not Required

543.00 05- 0000- 0- 0000- 7210- 7310- 000- 0000 CRDir Supp/indr C,General Admin C,Undistributed,Not Required

543.00 05- 3010- 0- 1570- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 CRInstructional M,Instruction,Reading,Not Required

1,086.00 543.00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01006 JE Trans Date 04/24/2022 JE Posted 04/24/2022 Comment F13 P-EBT revenue
614.00 13- 5810- 0- 0000- 0000- 8290- 000- 0000 DRAll Other Feder,Other Federal

614.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01007 JE Trans Date 04/24/2022 JE Posted 04/24/2022 Comment F13-5310 Budget Revision to Clear Negatives
75.00 13- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 2200- 000- 0000 CRClassified Supp,Food Services,Undistributed,Not Required

17.00 13- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 3202- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Pers,Food Services,Undistributed,Not Required

5.00 13- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 3312- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Oasd,Food Services,Undistributed,Not Required

1.00 13- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 3332- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Medi,Food Services,Undistributed,Not Required

1.00 13- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 3602- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Wcom,Food Services,Undistributed,Not Required

1.00 13- 5310- 0- 0000- 3700- 3452- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Food Services,Undistributed,Not Required

100.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01008 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F01-3213 Budget Revision to Clear Negatives
4.00 01- 3213- 0- 0000- 8210- 3422- 104- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Operations,Undistributed,Not Required

4.00 01- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 104- 0000 DRInstructional M,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

4.00 4.00 

JE # BR22-01009 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F04-3213 Budget Revision to Cover Negatives
5.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 8210- 3422- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Operations,Undistributed,Not Required

5.00 04- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 4390- 000- 0000 DROther Supplies,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

5.00 5.00 

JE # BR22-01010 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F04-3213 Budget Revision
6,172.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 7200- 2900- 600- 0000 DROther Classifie,Other General A,Undistributed,Not Required

1,366.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 7200- 3202- 600- 0000 DRBenefits - Pers,Other General A,Undistributed,Not Required

384.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 7200- 3312- 600- 0000 DRBenefits - Oasd,Other General A,Undistributed,Not Required

89.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 7200- 3332- 600- 0000 DRBenefits - Medi,Other General A,Undistributed,Not Required

601.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 7200- 3422- 600- 0000 DRH & W Benefits/,Other General A,Undistributed,Not Required

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 12 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821280



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

JE # BR22-01010 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F04-3213 Budget Revision(continued)
91.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 7200- 3432- 600- 0000 DRH & W Benefits/,Other General A,Undistributed,Not Required

18.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 7200- 3442- 600- 0000 DRH & W Benefits/,Other General A,Undistributed,Not Required

2.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 7200- 3452- 600- 0000 DRH & W Benefits/,Other General A,Undistributed,Not Required

30.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 7200- 3502- 600- 0000 DRBenefits - Sui,Other General A,Undistributed,Not Required

111.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 7200- 3602- 600- 0000 DRBenefits - Wcom,Other General A,Undistributed,Not Required

8,864.00 04- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 CRInstructional M,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

8,864.00 8,864.00 

JE # BR22-01011 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F04-3213 Budget Revision - Custodian
7,575.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 8210- 2200- 000- 0000 DRClassified Supp,Operations,Undistributed,Not Required

3,238.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 8210- 3202- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Pers,Operations,Undistributed,Not Required

877.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 8210- 3312- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Oasd,Operations,Undistributed,Not Required

205.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 8210- 3332- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Medi,Operations,Undistributed,Not Required

71.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 8210- 3502- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Sui,Operations,Undistributed,Not Required

253.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 8210- 3602- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Wcom,Operations,Undistributed,Not Required

12,219.00 04- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 CRInstructional M,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

12,219.00 12,219.00 

JE # BR22-01012 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F04-3213 Budget Revision - COVID Liaison
525.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 7200- 2930- 600- XTRA DROthrClXtra,Other General A,Undistributed,Extra work

330.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 7200- 3202- 600- XTRA DRBenefits - Pers,Other General A,Undistributed,Extra work

33.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 7200- 3312- 600- XTRA DRBenefits - Oasd,Other General A,Undistributed,Extra work

7.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 7200- 3332- 600- XTRA DRBenefits - Medi,Other General A,Undistributed,Extra work

3.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 7200- 3502- 600- XTRA DRBenefits - Sui,Other General A,Undistributed,Extra work

9.00 04- 3213- 0- 0000- 7200- 3602- 600- XTRA DRBenefits - Wcom,Other General A,Undistributed,Extra work

907.00 04- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 CRInstructional M,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

907.00 907.00 

JE # BR22-01013 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F04-3213 Budget Revision - Floating Teacher
9,116.00 04- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 1100- 000- 0000 DRTeachers' Salar,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

1,543.00 04- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Strs,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

132.00 04- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

46.00 04- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

163.00 04- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

11,000.00 04- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 CRInstructional M,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 13 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821281



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

11,000.00 11,000.00 

JE # BR22-01014 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F04-3213 Budget Revision - PA Sub
8,280.00 04- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 2140- 000- SUBS DRInstr Aides - S,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

1,897.00 04- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 3202- 000- SUBS DRBenefits - Pers,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

513.00 04- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 000- SUBS DRBenefits - Oasd,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

120.00 04- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 000- SUBS DRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

42.00 04- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 3502- 000- SUBS DRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

148.00 04- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 000- SUBS DRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

11,000.00 04- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 CRInstructional M,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

11,000.00 11,000.00 

JE # BR22-01015 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F07-1400 EPA Budget Revision
1.00 07- 1400- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

2.00 07- 1400- 0- 1110- 1000- 3421- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

1.00 07- 1400- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

358.00 07- 1400- 0- 1110- 1000- 1100- 000- 0000 CRTeachers' Salar,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

362.00 07- 1400- 0- 0000- 0000- 8012- 000- 0000 DREPA Rev,EPA

724.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01016 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F09-1400 EPA Revise Revenue Allocation per Q3
9,870.00 09- 1400- 0- 0000- 0000- 8012- 000- 0000 CREPA Rev,EPA

.00 9,870.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01017 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F09-1400 EPA Revise Expenses per Q3
9,870.00 09- 1400- 0- 1110- 1000- 1100- 000- 0000 DRTeachers' Salar,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

.00 9,870.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01018 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F01-1400 EPA Revise Allocation per Q3
10,406.00 01- 1400- 0- 0000- 0000- 8012- 000- 0000 CREPA Rev,EPA

10,406.00 01- 1400- 0- 1110- 1000- 1100- 104- 0000 DRTeachers' Salar,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

.00 20,812.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01019 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F07-3010 Budget Revision

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 14 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821282



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

JE # BR22-01019 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F07-3010 Budget Revision(continued)
52.00 07- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3432- 000- 0000 DRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

23.00 07- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 3442- 000- 0000 DRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

75.00 07- 3010- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 CRInstructional M,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

75.00 75.00 

JE # BR22-01020 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F01-4203 Budget Revision to Clear Negatives
85.00 01- 4203- 0- 4760- 1000- 2100- 600- 0000 DRInstructional A,Instruction,Bilingual,Not Required

18.00 01- 4203- 0- 4760- 1000- 3202- 600- 0000 DRBenefits - Pers,Instruction,Bilingual,Not Required

6.00 01- 4203- 0- 4760- 1000- 3312- 600- 0000 DRBenefits - Oasd,Instruction,Bilingual,Not Required

1.00 01- 4203- 0- 4760- 1000- 3332- 600- 0000 DRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Bilingual,Not Required

109.00 01- 4203- 0- 4760- 1000- 3432- 600- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Bilingual,Not Required

2.00 01- 4203- 0- 4760- 1000- 3452- 600- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Bilingual,Not Required

1.00 01- 4203- 0- 4760- 1000- 3602- 600- 0000 DRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Bilingual,Not Required

111.00 111.00 

JE # BR22-01021 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F04-3212 Budget Revision to Clear Negatives
1,224.00 04- 3212- 0- 0000- 2700- 2440- 000- 0000 CRClerical&office,School Administ,Undistributed,Not Required

76.00 04- 3212- 0- 0000- 2700- 3312- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Oasd,School Administ,Undistributed,Not Required

19.00 04- 3212- 0- 0000- 2700- 3602- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Wcom,School Administ,Undistributed,Not Required

18.00 04- 3212- 0- 0000- 2700- 3332- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Medi,School Administ,Undistributed,Not Required

13.00 04- 3212- 0- 0000- 2700- 3502- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Sui,School Administ,Undistributed,Not Required

10.00 04- 3212- 0- 0000- 3140- 3432- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Health Services,Undistributed,Not Required

1,247.00 04- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 2100- 000- 0000 DRInstructional A,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

76.00 04- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3312- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Oasd,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

19.00 04- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3602- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

18.00 04- 3212- 0- 1110- 1000- 3332- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

1,360.00 1,360.00 

JE # BR22-01022 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F05-32132 Budget Revision to Clear Negatives
5.00 05- 3213- 0- 0000- 8210- 3422- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Operations,Undistributed,Not Required

5.00 05- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 DRInstructional M,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

5.00 5.00 

JE # BR22-01023 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F07-3213 Budget Revision to Clear Negatives
3.00 07- 3213- 0- 0000- 8210- 3422- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Operations,Undistributed,Not Required

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 15 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821283



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

JE # BR22-01023 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F07-3213 Budget Revision to Clear Negatives(continued)
3.00 07- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 DRInstructional M,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

3.00 3.00 

JE # BR22-01024 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F09-3213 Budget Revision to Clear Negatives
2.00 09- 3213- 0- 0000- 8210- 3422- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Operations,Undistributed,Not Required

2.00 09- 3213- 0- 1110- 1000- 4310- 000- 0000 DRInstructional M,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

2.00 2.00 

JE # BR22-01025 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F05-7425 Budget Revision to Clear Negatives
84.00 05- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 3201- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Pers,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

23.00 05- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 3311- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Oasd,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

107.00 05- 7425- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 000- 0000 DRTeachers' Sals,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

107.00 107.00 

JE # BR22-01026 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F01-1100 Budget Revision to Clear Negatives
300.00 01- 1100- 0- 1110- 1000- 4313- 104- 0000 CRTeacher Allowan,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

10.00 01- 1100- 0- 0000- 3140- 4310- 104- 0000 DRInstructional M,Health Services,Undistributed,Not Required

218.00 01- 1100- 0- 0000- 3140- 2200- 104- 0000 DRClassified Supp,Health Services,Undistributed,Not Required

50.00 01- 1100- 0- 0000- 3140- 3202- 104- 0000 DRBenefits - Pers,Health Services,Undistributed,Not Required

14.00 01- 1100- 0- 0000- 3140- 3312- 104- 0000 DRBenefits - Oasd,Health Services,Undistributed,Not Required

3.00 01- 1100- 0- 0000- 3140- 3332- 104- 0000 DRBenefits - Medi,Health Services,Undistributed,Not Required

1.00 01- 1100- 0- 0000- 3140- 3502- 104- 0000 DRBenefits - Sui,Health Services,Undistributed,Not Required

4.00 01- 1100- 0- 0000- 3140- 3602- 104- 0000 DRBenefits - Wcom,Health Services,Undistributed,Not Required

300.00 300.00 

JE # BR22-01027 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/25/2022 Comment F09-1100 Budget Revision
38.00 09- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 4313- 000- 0000 CRTeacher Allowan,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

38.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01028 JE Trans Date 04/26/2022 JE Posted 04/26/2022 Comment F01-0000 Increase budget
500.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 5890- 600- 0000 CRBank Fees,Other General A,Undistributed,Not Required

500.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 16 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821284



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

JE # BR22-01029 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/26/2022 Comment F09-0000 Budget Revision to Clear Negatives
9,870.00 09- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1100- 000- 0000 CRTeachers' Salar,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

850.00 09- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 000- XTRA CRTeachers' Sals,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

211.00 09- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 000- CELT CRTeachers' Sals,Instruction,Regular Educati,Celdt Testing

144.00 09- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Strs,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

60.00 09- 0000- 0- 1305- 1000- 3311- 000- SG01 CRBenefits - Oasd,Instruction,Elective,Supp Grnt-G1

59.00 09- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 000- CELT CRBenefits - Strs,Instruction,Regular Educati,Celdt Testing

15.00 09- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

13.00 09- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

8.00 09- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3422- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Operations,Undistributed,Not Required

8.00 09- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 000- CELT CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Celdt Testing

7.00 09- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- CELT CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Celdt Testing

4.00 09- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 000- XTRA CRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Extra work

2.00 09- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 000- CELT CRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Celdt Testing

11,251.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01030 JE Trans Date 04/28/2022 JE Posted 04/28/2022 Comment Increase Budget to Cover Negatives & Annual Debt Disclosu
5,000.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 5830- 600- 0000 CRProfessional/co,Other General A,Undistributed,Not Required

5,000.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01031 JE Trans Date 04/28/2022 JE Posted 04/28/2022 Comment F01-1400 EPA Revise Allocation per Q3
10,406.00 01- 1400- 0- 0000- 0000- 8012- 000- 0000 DREPA Rev,EPA

10,406.00 01- 1400- 0- 1110- 1000- 1100- 104- 0000 CRTeachers' Salar,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

20,812.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01032 JE Trans Date 04/28/2022 JE Posted 04/28/2022 Comment F07-1400 EPA Budget Revision
1.00 07- 1400- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

2.00 07- 1400- 0- 1110- 1000- 3421- 000- 0000 DRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

1.00 07- 1400- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

358.00 07- 1400- 0- 1110- 1000- 1100- 000- 0000 DRTeachers' Salar,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

362.00 07- 1400- 0- 0000- 0000- 8012- 000- 0000 CREPA Rev,EPA

.00 724.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01033 JE Trans Date 04/28/2022 JE Posted 04/28/2022 Comment F09-1400 EPA Revise Revenue Allocation per Q3
9,870.00 09- 1400- 0- 0000- 0000- 8012- 000- 0000 DREPA Rev,EPA

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 17 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821285



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

9,870.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01034 JE Trans Date 04/28/2022 JE Posted 04/28/2022 Comment F09-1400 EPA Revise Expenses per Q3
9,870.00 09- 1400- 0- 1110- 1000- 1100- 000- 0000 CRTeachers' Salar,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

9,870.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01035 JE Trans Date 04/29/2022 JE Posted 04/29/2022 Comment F09-0000 Budget Revision
9,870.00 09- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1100- 000- 0000 DRTeachers' Salar,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

.00 9,870.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01036 JE Trans Date 04/29/2022 JE Posted 04/29/2022 Comment F05-0000 Ice Skating
992.00 05- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5808- 000- FT03 CRField Trip Fees,Instruction,Regular Educati,Field Trips-G3

992.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01037 JE Trans Date 04/29/2022 JE Posted 04/29/2022 Comment Bus Transportation for field trip
340.00 01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 5806- 104- FT03 CRFT transport,Instruction,Regular Educati,Field Trips-G3

340.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01038 JE Trans Date 04/29/2022 JE Posted 04/29/2022 Comment F01-4035 Budget Revision for Teacher Induction
2,900.00 01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 1100- 104- 0000 DRTeachers' Salar,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

491.00 01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 104- 0000 DRBenefits - Strs,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

42.00 01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 104- 0000 DRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

15.00 01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 104- 0000 DRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

52.00 01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 104- 0000 DRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

3,500.00 01- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 5830- 104- t 2pd CRProfessional/co,Instruction,Regular Educati,Title II PD

3,500.00 3,500.00 

JE # BR22-01039 JE Trans Date 04/29/2022 JE Posted 04/29/2022 Comment F04-4035 Budget Revision for Teacher Induction
5,801.00 04- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 1100- 000- 0000 DRTeachers' Salar,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

982.00 04- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Strs,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

84.00 04- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

29.00 04- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

104.00 04- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

7,000.00 04- 4035- 0- 1110- 1000- 5830- 000- t 2pd CRProfessional/co,Instruction,Regular Educati,Title II PD

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 18 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821286



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

7,000.00 7,000.00 

JE # BR22-01040 JE Trans Date 04/29/2022 JE Posted 04/29/2022 Comment F01-0000 Revenue Increase for Village Charter Lease
9,912.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8677- 101- VI LG DRInteragency Svc,Unrestricted/no

9,912.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01041 JE Trans Date 04/29/2022 JE Posted 04/29/2022 Comment F01-0000 Revenue Increase for Village Charter Lease
9,912.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8677- 101- VI LG CRInteragency Svc,Unrestricted/no

.00 9,912.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01042 JE Trans Date 04/29/2022 JE Posted 04/29/2022 Comment F01-0000 Village Charter
7,875.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8677- 101- VI LG DRInteragency Svc,Unrestricted/no

28,350.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 0000- 8650- 101- VI LG CRLeases & Rental,Unrestricted/no

7,875.00 28,350.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01043 JE Trans Date 04/29/2022 JE Posted 04/29/2022 Comment F01-0000 Budget Revision to Clear Negatives
2,900.00 01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1100- 104- 0000 CRTeachers' Salar,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

975.00 01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 600- CELT CRTeachers' Sals,Instruction,Regular Educati,Celdt Testing

491.00 01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 104- 0000 CRBenefits - Strs,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

400.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7100- 5800- 000- FEES CROther Svcs & Op,Board & Superin,Undistributed,FEES

162.00 01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1130- 104- CELT CRTeachers' Sals,Instruction,Regular Educati,Celdt Testing

154.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 5510- 101- 0000 CRNatural Gas Exp,Operations,Undistributed,Not Required

100.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 5201- 600- 0000 CRMileage Reimbur,Other General A,Undistributed,Not Required

52.00 01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 104- 0000 CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

38.00 01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 104- 0000 CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

38.00 01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3311- 104- SUBS CRBenefits - Oasd,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

20.00 01- 0000- 0- 4760- 1000- 3422- 600- SG04 CRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Bilingual,Supp Grnt-4

16.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3422- 101- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Operations,Undistributed,Not Required

14.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3422- 104- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Operations,Undistributed,Not Required

14.00 01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 104- SUBS CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

11.00 01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 104- SUBS CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

9.00 01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 104- 0000 CRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

6.00 01- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3311- 668- 0000 CRBenefits - Oasd,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

3.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 3432- 600- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Other General A,Undistributed,Not Required

2.00 01- 0000- 0- 0000- 7200- 3312- 600- 0000 CRBenefits - Oasd,Other General A,Undistributed,Not Required

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 19 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821287



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

5,405.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01044 JE Trans Date 04/29/2022 JE Posted 04/29/2022 Comment F04-0000 Budget Revision to Clear Negatives
5,321.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1100- 000- 0000 CRTeachers' Salar,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

906.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Strs,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

95.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

68.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

42.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3421- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

25.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3501- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Sui,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

6,457.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01045 JE Trans Date 04/29/2022 JE Posted 04/29/2022 Comment F05-0000 Budget Revision to Clear Negatives
63.00 05- 0000- 0- 0000- 8300- 3202- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Pers,Security,Undistributed,Not Required

60.00 05- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3421- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

38.00 05- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3422- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Operations,Undistributed,Not Required

37.00 05- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3311- 000- SUBS CRBenefits - Oasd,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

34.00 05- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3601- 000- SUBS CRBenefits - Wcom,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

28.00 05- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3331- 000- SUBS CRBenefits - Medi,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

25.00 05- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 000- SUBS CRBenefits - Strs,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

9.00 05- 0000- 0- 0000- 2700- 3442- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,School Administ,Undistributed,Not Required

3.00 05- 0000- 0- 0000- 8210- 3312- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Oasd,Operations,Undistributed,Not Required

3.00 05- 0000- 0- 0000- 8300- 3432- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Security,Undistributed,Not Required

2.00 05- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3431- 000- 0000 CRH & W Benefits/,Instruction,Regular Educati,Not Required

302.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01046 JE Trans Date 04/29/2022 JE Posted 04/29/2022 Comment F07-0000 Budget Revision to Clear Negatives
34.00 07- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3311- 000- SUBS CRBenefits - Oasd,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

34.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01047 JE Trans Date 04/29/2022 JE Posted 04/29/2022 Comment F04-0000 Increase Budget for Certificated Subs
1,000.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 1149- 000- SUBS CRTeacher Substit,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

160.00 04- 0000- 0- 1110- 1000- 3101- 000- SUBS CRBenefits - Strs,Instruction,Regular Educati,Substitutes

1,160.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01048 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/30/2022 Comment F04-3212 Budget Revision - OM

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 20 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821288



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

JE # BR22-01048 JE Trans Date 04/25/2022 JE Posted 04/30/2022 Comment F04-3212 Budget Revision - OM(continued)
334.00 04- 3212- 0- 0000- 2700- 2440- 000- 0000 CRClerical&office,School Administ,Undistributed,Not Required

368.00 04- 3212- 0- 0000- 2700- 3202- 000- 0000 DRBenefits - Pers,School Administ,Undistributed,Not Required

21.00 04- 3212- 0- 0000- 2700- 3312- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Oasd,School Administ,Undistributed,Not Required

5.00 04- 3212- 0- 0000- 2700- 3332- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Medi,School Administ,Undistributed,Not Required

2.00 04- 3212- 0- 0000- 2700- 3502- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Sui,School Administ,Undistributed,Not Required

6.00 04- 3212- 0- 0000- 2700- 3602- 000- 0000 CRBenefits - Wcom,School Administ,Undistributed,Not Required

368.00 368.00 

JE # BR22-01049 JE Trans Date 04/30/2022 JE Posted 04/30/2022 Comment F25-9010 Community Playground
13,999.00 25- 9010- 0- 0000- 8500- 5630- 104- 0000 CRRepairs,Facilities Acqu,Undistributed,Not Required

11,343.00 25- 9010- 0- 0000- 8100- 4311- 102- 0000 CRStandard Suppli,Plant Maintenan,Undistributed,Not Required

10,111.00 25- 9010- 0- 0000- 8100- 4311- 103- 0000 CRStandard Suppli,Plant Maintenan,Undistributed,Not Required

35,453.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01050 JE Trans Date 04/30/2022 JE Posted 04/30/2022 Comment F01-6500 Increase Budget to cover RVP
3,495.00 01- 6500- 0- 5731- 1110- 5830- 600- 0000 CRProfessional/co,Spec Ed-separat,Non-intensive P,Not Required

3,495.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01051 JE Trans Date 04/30/2022 JE Posted 04/30/2022 Comment Revise Budget for NTWRK TECH - Direct Costs to charters
2,622.00 01- 1100- 0- 1230- 1000- 5750- 600- 0000 DRDir Costs For I,Instruction,Computer Instru,Not Required

4,370.00 04- 1100- 0- 1230- 1000- 5750- 000- 0000 DRDir Costs For I,Instruction,Computer Instru,Not Required

1,748.00 05- 1100- 0- 1230- 1000- 5750- 000- 0000 CRDir Costs For I,Instruction,Computer Instru,Not Required

1,748.00 6,992.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01052 JE Trans Date 04/30/2022 JE Posted 04/30/2022 Comment Revise Budget for NTWRK TECH - Direct Costs to charters
2,622.00 01- 1100- 0- 1230- 1000- 5750- 600- 0000 CRDir Costs For I,Instruction,Computer Instru,Not Required

4,370.00 04- 1100- 0- 1230- 1000- 5750- 000- 0000 CRDir Costs For I,Instruction,Computer Instru,Not Required

1,748.00 05- 1100- 0- 1230- 1000- 5750- 000- 0000 DRDir Costs For I,Instruction,Computer Instru,Not Required

6,992.00 1,748.00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01053 JE Trans Date 04/30/2022 JE Posted 04/30/2022 Comment Correct Tech Direct Cost
2,622.00 01- 1100- 0- 0000- 7700- 5750- 600- 0000 DRDir Costs For I,Data Processing,Undistributed,Not Required

4,370.00 04- 1100- 0- 0000- 7700- 5750- 600- 0000 DRDir Costs For I,Data Processing,Undistributed,Not Required

1,748.00 05- 1100- 0- 0000- 7700- 5750- 600- 0000 CRDir Costs For I,Data Processing,Undistributed,Not Required

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 21 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821289



Transfer of Budget AppropriationsLedger06a

Effective 04/04/2022 through 04/30/2022 Fiscal Year 2022

From ToDescriptionAccount

1,748.00 6,992.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01054 JE Trans Date 04/30/2022 JE Posted 04/30/2022 Comment F01-1100 Budget Revision - NTWRK TECH
2,622.00 01- 1100- 0- 0000- 7700- 2400- 600- 0000 DRClerical & Offi,Data Processing,Undistributed,Not Required

.00 2,622.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01055 JE Trans Date 04/30/2022 JE Posted 04/30/2022 Comment F01-1100 Budget Revision - NTWRK TECH
2,622.00 01- 1100- 0- 0000- 7700- 2400- 600- 0000 CRClerical & Offi,Data Processing,Undistributed,Not Required

2,622.00 .00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01056 JE Trans Date 04/30/2022 JE Posted 04/30/2022 Comment Correct Tech Direct Cost
2,622.00 01- 1100- 0- 0000- 7700- 5750- 600- 0000 CRDir Costs For I,Data Processing,Undistributed,Not Required

4,370.00 04- 1100- 0- 0000- 7700- 5750- 600- 0000 CRDir Costs For I,Data Processing,Undistributed,Not Required

1,748.00 05- 1100- 0- 0000- 7700- 5750- 600- 0000 DRDir Costs For I,Data Processing,Undistributed,Not Required

6,992.00 1,748.00 Net increase to Appropriations

JE # BR22-01057 JE Trans Date 04/30/2022 JE Posted 04/30/2022 Comment F01-1100 Budget Revision
300.00 01- 1100- 0- 0000- 3140- 2200- 104- 0000 DRClassified Supp,Health Services,Undistributed,Not Required

.00 300.00 Net decrease to Appropriations

385,588.00 630,245.00 Total for Org 043 

Net increase to AppropriationsOrg 043 Net <Decrease> in Estimated Fund Balance 217,289.00-

Selection Grouped by Org, Fiscal Year, JE# - Sorted by JE Item #, (Org = 43, JE Type = R, Starting Post Date = 4/1/2022, Ending Post Date = 4/30/2022, 

Unposted JEs? = N, End Bud Bal? = O, JE# Page Break? = N, Description? = A, Recap? = N) Page 22 of 22

Generated for Kay Vang (KVANG), May  2 2022 12:38PM043 - Piner-Olivet Union
 6815821290



PREPARED FOR

04/18/2022

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary

Ray Green

707-484-2974

1-7-23096

 6

ray.green@vpcsonline.com

OES-Front-Landscape

Contact

Scott Day

1800 E. McFadden Ave.        

Santa Ana, CA

Scott.Day@theKYAgroup.com

Pages CA LICENSE #984827 B + C15

DIR #1000003379

Proposal Number

925-404-9634

CMAS: 4-20-78-0089C

291



Proposal: Date:
Terms:

1-7-23096

3450 Coffey Ln

95403

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary
April 18, 2022

c/o:
RA:

RA Phone:
RA Email:

Site:
Address:

Piner-Olivet Union Elementary
Scott Day
925-404-9634
Scott.Day@theKYAgroup.com
Olivet Elementary
1825 Willowside rd
95401

Base Contract:

Contract Terms:

4-20-78-0089C

February 10, 2025

Feb 26, 2020 - Feb 10, 2025

To:

Site Qualifications and General Scope of Work DIR # 1000003379

Santa Rosa
California

CMAS:
Net 30

Priced per CMAS- KYA GSA-(4-20-78-0089C)

Supply and Apply metal header board around pine trees 

Supply and Apply weed block 16,000 SF

Supply and Apply parking bumpers

Remove Tree from south property line  

Remove brush from south property line  

Remove brush from north property line  

 Minor Re-Grading in disturbed areas

Excludes:

Permits

Sales tax rate will be based upon the shipping address. Price is good for 30 days from date of 

quote.
Notes:

Initials

1-7-23096

This is a legal agreement - please read carefully 

Complete and Initial all pages Proposal Number

2292



SCOPE OF WORK - PRICING

OES-Front-Landscape Quantity U/M Price Value

 30,454.00 SF $0.31 $9,440.74MIRAFI HP270 (SQ FT)

 3,000.00 LF $2.80 $8,400.00COMPOSITE HEADER BOARD 2" X 4" X 20'

 150.00 EA $50.00 $7,500.00LANDSCAPE STAPLES - 6"

 590.00 CY $91.30 $53,867.00CLASS 2 AGGREGATE BASE- PERMEABLE

 350.00 EA $50.00 $17,500.00COMPOSITE HEADER STAKES

 9,932.00 SF $2.30 $22,843.60Removal of Existing Surface

 200.00 HRS $128.25 $25,650.00General Laborer Journeyman

 8,700.00 SF $2.30 $20,010.00Aggregate Base Application

 2,000.00 SF $1.23 $2,460.00Substrate Compaction

 1.00 EA $2,297.10 $2,297.10Bonding Fee

Total Price $169,968.44

Initials

1-7-23096

This is a legal agreement - please read carefully 

Complete and Initial all pages Proposal Number

3293



1) Proposal: 

The above proposal is valid for 30 days from the date first set forth above. After 30 days, we reserve the right to increase prices due to the 

rise in cost of raw materials, fuel or other cost increases. When applicable, KYA Services LLC reserves the right to implement a surcharge 

for significant increases in raw materials, including, but not limited to; fuel, and materials. Due to the duration of time between proposals, 

contracts and final furnishing, KYA Services LLC reserves the right to implement this surcharge when applicable.

2) Purchase:

By executing this proposal, or submitting a purchase order pursuant to this proposal (which shall incorporate the terms of this agreement 

specifically by reference) which is accepted by KYA Services LLC. (the “Company”), the purchaser identified above (“you” or the 

“Purchaser”) agrees to purchase the materials and the services to be provided by the “Company”, as detailed in the Pricing  and “General 

Scope of Work”sections in this agreement, above.

3) Standard Exclusions:

Unless specifically included, this agreement does not include, and Company will not provide services, labor or materials for any of the 

following work: (a) removal or disposal of any material containing asbestos or any hazardous materials as  defined by 

the EPA; neither we nor our installers are responsible for the handling, removal or abatement of asbestos contained floor  material or 

adhesive. Further, our policy is to request an Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act (AHERA) report prior to

proceeding with any floor material or floor adhesive removal. We and our installers consider it the owners responsibility to

produce this report prior to  executing this contract. (b) moving Owner’s property around the installation site. (c) repair or replacement of 

any Purchaser or Owner- supplied materials. (d) repair of concealed underground utilities not located on prints, supplied to Company by 

Owner during the bidding process, or physically staked out of by the Owner, and which are damaged during construction; or (e) repair of 

damage to existing surfaces that could occur when construction equipment and vehicles are being used in the normal course of 

construction.

4) Insurance Requirements: 

Company is not required to provide any insurance coverage in excess of Company’s standard insurance. A copy of the Company’s 

standard insurance is available for your review prior to acceptance of the Company’s proposal.

5) Payment; 

Terms of payment are defined in the “Pricing” details section and are specific to this contract. For purposes of this agreement, 

“Completion” is defined as being the point at which the materials have been furnished. In any event where Completion cannot 

be effected due to delays or postponements caused by the Purchaser or Owner, final payment (less 10% retainage) is due within 30 days 

of the date when the Completion was scheduled, had the delay not occurred. All payments must be made to KYA Services LLC 1800 E 

McFadden Ave, Santa Ana, CA 92705. If the Purchaser or Owner fails or delays in making any scheduled milestone payments , the 

Company may suspend the fulfilment of its obligations hereunder until such payments are made, or Company may be relieved of its 

obligations hereunder if payment is more than 60 days past due. Company may use

all remedies available to it under current laws, including but not limited to filing of liens against the property and using a collection agency 

or the courts to secure the collection of the outstanding debt. 

6) Lien Releases: 

Upon request by Owner, Company will issue appropriate partial lien releases as corresponding payments are received from Purchaser, 

but prior to receiving final payment from Purchaser or Owner, Company will provide a full release of liens upon receipt of final payment. In 

accordance with state laws, Company reserves the right to place a lien on the property if final payment has not been received 10 days 

prior to the filing deadline for liens.

7) Site Plan Approval, Permit/s, Permit Fees, Plans, Engineering Drawings and Surveying: 

Site plan approval, permits, permit fees, plans, engineering drawings and surveying are specifically excluded from this  agreement and the 

Services unless specified under the

“General Scope of Work”. The Company does not in any way warrant or represent that a permit or site plan approval for construction will 

be obtained. Sealed engineered drawings that are required but not included in the “General Scope of Work”  will result in additional cost to 

Purchaser.

8) Manufacturing and Delivery: 

Manufacturing lead-time and delivery varies depending on the product purchased.

CONDITIONS AND WARRANTY

Any job that is accepted prior to December 31st of the current year and scheduled to install after December 31st of the current year is 

subject to  price increase

Initials

1-7-23096

This is a legal agreement - please read carefully 

Complete and Initial all pages Proposal Number

4294



9) Returned Product, Deposits and/ or Cancelled Order:

From date of shipment from our facility, all returned product(s) and cancelled orders are subject to a 50% restocking fee. No returns are 

available following this date. All deposits are non-refundable.

10) Concealed Conditions: 

“Concealed conditions” include, without limitation to, water, gas, sprinkler, electrical and sewage lines, post tension cables, and steel 

rebar. Observations that were able to be made either by visual inspection or by drawings and/or plans submitted by Owner at the time 

this agreement was approved. If additional Concealed Conditions are discovered once work has commenced which were not visible at 

the time this proposal was approved, Company will stop work and indicate these unforeseen Concealed Conditions to Purchaser or 

Owner so that Purchaser and Company can execute  a change order for any additional work. In any event, any damage caused by or to 

unforeseen Concealed Conditions is the sole responsibility of the Purchaser and Company shall not be held liable for any such damage. 

Soil conditions are assumed to be soil that does not contain any water, hard rock (such as limestone, caliche, etc.), rocks bigger than 

4inches in diameter or any other condition that will require additional labor, equipment and/or materials not specified by the purchaser or 

Owner in the bidding process. 

Any condition requiring additional labor, equipment, and/or materials to complete the drilling or concrete operations will require a change 

order before Company will complete the process. Any variation will incur additional charges.

11) Changes in the Work:

During the course of this project, Purchaser may order changes in the work (both additions and deletions). The cost of these changes will 

be determined by the Company, and a change order must be completed and signed by both the Purchaser    and the Company, which 

will detail the “General Scope of the Change Order”. Should any change be essential to the completion of the project, and the Purchaser 

refuses to authorize such change order, then Company will be deemed to have performed its part of the project, and the project and 

Services will be terminated. Upon such termination, Company will submit a final billing to Purchaser for payment, less labor allowance for 

work not performed but including additional    charges incurred due to the stoppage. No credit will be allowed for materials sold and 

supplied, which will remain the property of the Purchaser.

12) Warranty; Limitations of Liability: 

Company warrants that all Company-supplied labor and Services will be performed in a good and workmanlike manner. Purchaser shall 

notify the Company in writing detailing any defects in Service for which a warranty claim is being made.

COMPANY SHALL NOT IN ANY EVENT BE LIABLE FOR INDIRECT, SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE OR 

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES IN ANY ACTION ARISING FROM OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER BASED IN CONTRACT, 

TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), INTENDED CONDUCT OR OTHERWISE, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, DAMAGES 

RELATING TO LOSS OF PROFITS, INCOME OR GOODWILL, REGARDLESS OF WHETHER COMPANY HAS 

BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.

IN NO EVENT WILL COMPANY’S LIABILITY FOR MONETARY DAMAGES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT EXCEED THE FEES

 PAID OR DUE AND PAYABLE FOR THE SERVICE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT (OR RELEVANT PURCHASE ORDER).

The warranties or the materials are contained in a separate document between Company and the ultimate Owner of the materials, which 

will be provided to Owner at the time of completion of work.

13) Indemnification:

To the fullest extent permitted by law. Purchaser shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Company and its consultants, agents and 

employees or any of them from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorney’s fees, relating 

to furnishing of the materials or performance of the Services, provided that such claim, damage,    loss or expense is attributable to 

bodily injury to, sickness, disease or death of a person, or injury to or destruction of   tangible property, but only to the extent caused by 

the negligent acts or omissions of the Purchaser or its agents, employees, or subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly employed by 

them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss or expense is caused in part 

by a party indemnified hereunder. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge or reduce other rights or obligations of 

indemnity that would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in Section 13.

14) Delegation: Subcontractors: 

The Services and furnishing of materials may be performed by subcontractors under appropriate agreements with the Company 

Initials

1-7-23096

This is a legal agreement - please read carefully 

Complete and Initial all pages Proposal Number

5295



15) Force Majeure: Impracticability: 

The Company shall not be charged with any loss or damage for failure or delay in delivering or furnishing of materials when  such failure or 

delay is due to any cause beyond the control of the Company, due to compliance with governmental   regulations, or orders, or due to any 

acts of God, lockouts, slowdowns, wars or shortages in transportation, materials or labor.

16) Dispute Resolution:

Any controversy or claim arising out of or related to this agreement must be settled by binding arbitration administered in  Santa Ana, CA 

by a single arbitrator selected by the parties or by the American Arbitration Association, and conducted in accordance with the construction 

industry arbitration rules. Judgement upon the award may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

17) Entire Agreement; No Reliance: 

This agreement represents and contains the entire agreement between the parties. Prior discussion or verbal representations by the 

parties that are not contained in this agreement are not part of this agreement. Purchaser hereby acknowledges that it has not received or 

relied upon any statements or representations by Company or its agents which are not expressly stipulated herein, including without 

limitation any statements as to the materials, warranties or services provided hereunder.

18) No Third-Party Beneficiaries: 

This agreements creates no third party rights or obligations between Company and any other person, including any Owner who is not also 

a Purchaser. It is understood and agreed that the parties do not intend that any third party should be a beneficiary of this agreement.

19) Governing Law: 

This agreement will be constructed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

20) Assignment: 

Purchaser may not assign this agreement, by operation of law or otherwise, without the prior written consent of the Company. The 

agreements shall be binding upon and ensure to the benefit of the Company and the Purchaser, and their successors and permitted 

assigns. 

Executed to be effective as of the

date executed by the Company:

Signature:

By: (Print)

Date:

Title:

Signature:

By: (Print)

Title:

Date:

Accepted by:

Scott Day

Scott Day

Regional Advisor 

KYA Services LLC

April 18, 2022

Initials

1-7-23096

This is a legal agreement - please read carefully 

Complete and Initial all pages Proposal Number

6296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



 
CONTRACT COVER SHEET 

FROM: Sabrina Dawson 

SMAA Region 1 LEC Coordinator 

Sonoma County Office of Education 

sdawson@scoe.org 

707-524-2765 

 INITIALED: 

 

DATE: 

    

AGREEMENT: School-Based Medi-Cal Administrative Activities (SMAA) 2022 Interagency 

Agreement  

COMMENTS: Interagency Agreement between LEA and SCOE for activities related to the SMAA 

Program.  

If there are any questions please contact me.    

 

 

 

04 / 21 / 2022

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

321



SCHOOL-BASED MEDI-CAL ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIVITIES (SMAA) 
Region 1 LEC Interagency Agreement  

 
It is agreed by Piner-Olivet Union School District (Local Education Agency, “LEA”) and Sonoma County Office of 
Education, acting as the Local Education Consortium (“LEC”) for Region 1 (“SCOE”), as follows: 

RECITALS 

1. By approving AB 2780 (1998) the California Legislature and Governor, have authorized direct local 
education agency billing to the California Department of Health Care Services (“DHCS”) through local educational 
consortium (“LEC”) under Welfare & Institutions Code § 14132.47. 

2. SCOE is the LEC for Region 1 in Northern California. 

3. LEA appointed SCOE as its representative under the School-Based Medi-Cal Administrative Activities 
(SMAA) program in concert with other school LEA’s in Region 1. 
 
4.  The parties make this Agreement to ensure coordination among LEA, SCOE and DHCS as set forth below. 
 
 
AGREEMENT 
  
1. SCOE RESPONSIBILITIES.  SCOE shall have all of the responsibilities of a LEC as stated in Exhibit “A” 
hereto and incorporated by this reference and as they may be amended by DHCS from time to time.  

2. LEA RESPONSIBILITIES. 

2.1 Maintain SCOE as its LEC for SMAA claims arising during the term of this Agreement. 
 

2.2 Designate a LEA employee to act as local LEA SMAA Coordinator and liaison with LEC to 
oversee the responsibilities identified in Exhibit “B”. 

 
2.3 Ensure attendance by LEA SMAA Coordinator, and other staff as requested, at all SMAA regional 

meetings and trainings set up by the LEC. 
 

2.4 Cooperate with SCOE and its subcontractors, DHCS and federal officials in administering the 
SMAA program, including, but not limited to, all reviews and audits. 

 
2.5 For a minimum period of five years after the end of the quarter in which the LEC receives 

reimbursement from the DHCS for expenditures incurred, revision of such reimbursement, or if an 
audit is in process, throughout the audit’s duration, or the final resolution of all audit exceptions, 
deferrals, and/or disallowances whichever is greater, retain SMAA records, which disclose the 
type, and extent of SMAA performed by staff and the costs for such staff. Maintain files that are 
consistent with procedures outlined by DHCS and LEC and ensure that audit files are kept current. 

 
2.6 Account for the activities of staff conducting MAA activities in accordance with the provisions of 

W & I Code 14132.47 via the state-approved time survey instrument. 

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

322



Page 2 of 15

2.7 Ensure all participating LEA staff claiming reimbursement through Title XIX Medi-Cal 
administrative claiming are kept informed of applicable SMAA information and requirements for 
claiming. 

 
2.8 Account for any claimed costs resulting from data provided for time survey participants, any direct 

charges or the development of transportation rates. 
 

2.9 Ensure no duplicative billings. 
 

2.10 LEA will work directly with SCOE regarding preparation of quarterly invoices. LEA must submit 
its completed invoices in a DHCS approved format directly to LEC within twelve (12) months 
after the end of each quarter.   

 
2.11 Certify the non-federal match for Title XIX funds claimed for SMAA conducted by LEA.  

Certification will be made on the Costs and Revenues Worksheets for each quarterly invoice 
submitted through LEC to DHCS for payment. 

 
2.12 Comply with all the applicable laws governing the confidentiality of client information, for clients 

served under this Agreement.  Applicable laws include, but are not limited to, 42 USC Section 
1320c-9, 42 CFR Section 41,300, Welfare and Institutions Code, Section 14100.2 and 22 CCR 
Section 51009. 

 
2.13 Complete quarterly Random Moment Time Surveys (RMTS) as required by program guidelines.  

LEA will maintain a minimum response rate of eighty-five percent (85%) of the moments 
assigned per time study quarter, unless exception applies.  If the LEA is unable to maintain the 
required response rate and no exception applies, LEA will have sanctions applied according to the 
state School-Based Medi-Cal Administrative Activities (SMAA) manual. 

 
2.14 LEA must either participate in the LEA billing program and submit billing data at least annually to 

DHCS or be subject to limitations in SMAA coding for targeted case management (code 8). 
 

2.15  LEA shall submit to SCOE appropriate student enrollment data when requested by the LEC for 
submission to DHCS to compute the LEAs Medi-Cal percentage to be used on the quarterly 
SMAA invoices. 

 
2.16 Abide by timelines for time survey submission and review as identified in Exhibit “B”. 
 
2.17  Adhere to timelines established by the DHCS and the LEC for completion of program 

documentation (e.g. invoices, Random Moment Time Survey (RMTS) participant (TSP) list 
certification, coding reports, preparation of invoice workbooks, etc.). The LEA’s failure to 
maintain program required compliance and perform its duties and responsibilities on a timely basis 
may result in delayed and/or disallowed reimbursements. 

 
2.18 LEA agrees to comply with the confidentiality and other requirements associated with the use of 

the RMTS software platform.  RMTS software platform may be accessed only by employees of 
the LEA for RMTS purposes.  LEA shall be responsible for any unauthorized use and understands 
that the LEA may be held liable. 

 
2.19 LEA shall be responsible for monitoring, reviewing and verifying required documentation for any 

coded moment.  LEA is responsible for making sure that participant responses are accurate and all 
necessary documentation for the claim exists. LEA shall bear the liability related to direct service 
documentation and participation in the LEA Billing Option Program. 

 
2.20 LEA shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C § 12101, et. seq.), which 

prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, and section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973 as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794 (d)) as identified in Exhibit “C.” 

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

323



Page 3 of 15

3. FEES  
LEA shall be responsible for paying all fees in accordance with Exhibit “D” – Fees. 

4. TERMS/TERMINATION.  This Agreement shall apply to any SMAA claims arising on or after  
July 1, 2022.  The term of this Agreement shall commence until termination of this Agreement by giving ninety- 
(90) calendar days written notice to the other party. 

5. PROTECTION OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. Consistent with applicable law, each party shall 
safeguard and keep confidential all pupil records and other confidential information and shall not disclose, use, or 
copy the same except as necessary to perform its obligations hereunder.  Each party shall be responsible for any 
breach of the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement by its employees and independent contractors.  Each party 
shall execute other documents as necessary to comply with applicable confidentiality laws. 

6. DATA SHARING 

6.1 Pursuant to Education Code section 49076(a)(2)(G) and 34 CFR sections 99.31(a)(1) and 99.7(a)(3)(iii), 
the LEA is permitted to share information from student records with SCOE in its capacity as a consultant 
with a legitimate educational interest as set forth in this Agreement.   
 

6.2 The sharing of data under this Agreement will from time to time include the collection and maintenance 
by SCOE of educational records that contain personally identifiable information on students of the LEA.
SCOE is bound by the same regulations and laws for access and management of this data as the LEA, 
and will conform to all legal requirements.  SCOE and the LEA agree that the disclosure of information 
under this Agreement must comply with the requirements of Education Code sections 49073 et seq., the 
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) (20 U.S.C. § 1232g; 34 CFR Part 99, as amended), 
and any other applicable state and federal laws and regulations regarding educational records, data 
privacy and confidentiality, and further agree to adhere to the requirements of such laws and regulations 
in carrying out their responsibilities under this Agreement, as detailed in the Data Privacy Provisions, 
attached hereto as Exhibit “E”.  
 

6.3 Both parties understand that certain federal and state programs and laws, including the free and reduced 
lunch program and laws governing the provision of special education services, have additional legal 
requirements for data security, and both parties agree to maintain full compliance with such 
requirements, as detailed in the Data Privacy Provisions.   
 

6.4 Ownership of Data.  SCOE and the LEA agree that each party will continue to maintain ownership of its 
source data.  Each party agrees that it will not alter the other party’s source data, and is not responsible 
for any errors therein.  The LEA understands that though SCOE may notify it of issues it discovers with 
the source data, the LEA is responsible for any corrections required to its own data.  LEA acknowledges 
that accurate reports rely upon accurate source data being maintained by LEA.  Each party owns or 
controls its data systems and the work product generated by such systems.   

6.5 SCOE agrees to notify LEA and obtain explicit permission for sharing of any data requested which falls 
outside the legal terms of this Agreement, unless such data is otherwise regularly publicly shared and 
available. 
 

6.6 Data Security.  Both parties agree to maintain appropriate security protocols in the transfer or 
transmission of any data, including ensuring that data may only be viewed or accessed by parties legally 
allowed to do so.  Both parties agree to maintain appropriate network and other data security to protect 
any data in its possession.  Each party agrees to notify the other if it has any reason to believe there has 
been a breach of data security relevant to the data subject to this agreement, and any data has been lost, 
tampered with, or otherwise illegally accessed.  Any notifications required by law in the event of a breach 
in data security will be the responsibility of the agency defined as responsible for such reporting.   

6.7 Outside Agencies.  Both LEA and SCOE have periodic need to share student data, as legally allowed, 
with public agencies (including the Department of Health Care Services and the California Department 

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

324



Page 4 of 15

of Education) needing access to such data to provide services to students. SCOE and the LEA understand 
that the sharing of data for use in such systems will greatly streamline the process of getting important 
services to students. Education Code sections 49076 and 49076.5, as amended, provide specific legal 
conditions under which data may be accessed by or shared with public agencies.  

6.8 SCOE agrees that no data will be made accessible to any such agency for any purpose other than those 
limited to the data required and relevant to the program’s services, and only under conditions allowed 
by law, and only with specific prior written approval of LEA. 

 
7. ACCURACY OF DATA.  LEA shall be responsible for providing accurate, complete data in a timely 
fashion. SCOE shall not be responsible for any delays or failures to prepare claims due to LEA’s failure to provide 
accurate, complete, or correct data.  The LEC shall assign a code to a moment based on the presumption that the 
response from the participant is accurate, all necessary documentation for the claim exists, and the service has been 
provided to an eligible recipient.  The LEC shall not be responsible for monitoring, reviewing, or verifying 
documentation for any coded moment.  The LEC shall not be liable for any audit exception or federal disallowance 
related to direct service documentation and shall not be responsible for recouping any amount of funds paid to an 
LEA for participation in the LEA Billing Option Program. 

8. PROGRAM NAME AND NUMBER FOR FEDERAL CLAIMING.  Title 31 – Money and Finance, 
Subtitle V – General Assistance Administration, Chapter 75 – Requirements for Single Audits, section 7502, 
requires each pass-through entity provide the sub-recipient program names and any identifying numbers from which 
such assistance is derived.  The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for this federal program is 
93.778, Medical Assistance Program (Medi-Cal). 

9. SUBCONTRACTING:  The LEA agrees that the LEC may, in its sole discretion, perform duties under this 
Agreement through an independent contractor or contract with another region for services the LEC is unable to 
perform due to staffing or other restrictions.  Any subcontractor will be selected by the LEC and will be subject to 
the terms on this Agreement. 

10. INSURANCE.  Both SCOE and LEA will insure their activities either through a self-insurance program, 
policy of insurance, or a combination of self-insurance and policy of insurance.   

10.1 A Public Liability Insurance.  If an insurance policy is utilized, general comprehensive public 
liability insurance encompassing personal injury and replacement value property damage insurance shall be 
provided in an amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit personal injury and property damage 
for each occurrence. 

10.2 Endorsements.  If a policy of public liability insurance is utilized as specified above, it shall be 
endorsed with the following specific language: 

Each party is named as additional insured for all liability arising out of the operations by or on behalf of the 
named insured, and this policy protects the additional insured, its officers, agents and employees against 
liability for bodily injuries, deaths or property damage or destruction arising in any respect directly or 
indirectly in the performance of the Agreement. 
 
The Public Liability Policy specified above shall be endorsed with the following specific language: 

 
10.2.1 The inclusion of more than one insured shall not operate to impair the rights of one insured 

against another insured and the coverage afforded shall apply as though separate policies 
have been issued to each insured. 

 
10.2.2 The insurance provided is primary and no insurance held or owned by SCOE shall be called 

upon to contribute to a loss. 
 

10.2.3 Coverage provided by this policy shall not be reduced or be canceled without a thirty (30) 
day written notice given by certified mail. 

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

325



Page 5 of 15

10.2.4 The certificates must state that the insurance is under an occurrence based, and not a 
claims-made, policy (policies). 

 
10.3 Documentation.  Certificates of insurance showing the limits of insurance provided, certified 
copies of all policies, and signed copies of the specified endorsements for each policy shall be submitted to 
each party and approved prior to receipt of the notice to proceed. 

10.4 Worker’s Compensation Insurance.  Before educational services commence, the parties shall 
furnish to each other satisfactory proof that all employees have, for the period covered, full compensation 
insurance and Employer's Liability with limits of at least $1,000,000 with an insurance carrier satisfactory 
to the parties for all persons whom they may employ in carrying out the work contemplated under this 
Agreement in accordance with the Act of the Legislature of the State of California, known as the "Workers' 
Compensation and Insurance and Safety Act," approved May 6, 1913, and all Acts amendatory or 
supplemental thereto.  Such insurance shall be maintained in full force and effect during the period covered 
by the construction Agreement.  In the event either party is self-insured, it shall furnish a Certificate of 
Permission to Self-Insure, signed by the Department of Industrial Relations Administration of Self-
Insurance, Sacramento, California. 

11. INDEMNITY.   LEA shall assume the defense of, indemnify, and save harmless SCOE, the Sonoma 
County Superintendent of Schools, the Sonoma County Board of Education, each member of the Board, and their 
officers, agents and employees from all claims of any kind arising out of the intentional or willful misconduct or 
negligent acts, errors, or omissions of the LEA or LEA’s agents or employees in the performance of this Agreement.  
This indemnification obligation is not limited in any way or by any limitation on the amount or type of damages or 
compensation payable to the Indemnitees, or any of them under workers' compensation acts, disability benefits acts, 
or other employee benefits acts.  This indemnification obligation survives the performance of services under this 
Agreement or any termination under the provisions of this Agreement. 

SCOE shall assume the defense of, indemnify, and save harmless LEA, the LEA’s Governing Board, each member 
of the Board, and LEA’s officers, agents and employees from all claims of any kind arising out of the intentional 
and willful misconduct or negligent acts, errors, or omissions of SCOE or SCOE's agents or employees in the 
performance of this Agreement.  This indemnification obligation is not limited in any way or by any limitation on 
the amount or type of damages or compensation payable to the Indemnitees, or any of them, under workers' 
compensation acts, disability benefits acts, or other employee benefits acts.  This indemnification obligation survives 
the performance of services under this Agreement or any termination under the provisions of this Agreement. 

12. METHOD AND PLACE OF GIVING NOTICE, SUBMITTING BILLS AND MAKING PAYMENTS.  
All notices, bills and payments shall be made in writing and may be given by personal delivery or by U.S. mail, 
postage prepaid.  Notice, bills and payments sent by mail shall be addressed as follows: 

  
SCOE:   School-Based Medi-Cal Administrative Activities/SMAA Program 
   LEC Coordinator – Region 1 

Sonoma County Office of Education 
   5340 Skylane Boulevard 
   Santa Rosa, CA 95403 
 
13. MERGER.  This writing is intended both as the final expression of the Agreement between the parties 
hereto with respect to the included terms and as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the Agreement.  
No modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless and until such modification is evidenced by a writing 
signed by both parties. 

14. NONDISCRIMINATION.  The parties hereto shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, 
rules and regulations in regard to nondiscrimination in employment and the provision of services because of race, 
color, ancestry, national origin, religion, sex, marital status, age, medical condition, disability or other prohibited 
basis.  All nondiscrimination rules or regulations required by law to be included in this Agreement are incorporated 
by this reference. 

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

326



Page 6 of 15

15. LEGAL REPRESENTATION.  The parties to this Agreement are both advised and represented by School 
& College Legal Services.  Each party is advised that it may seek independent legal counsel to review this 
Agreement on its behalf.  Each party specifically waives any conflict of interest in School & College Legal Services' 
formulation of this Agreement.  In the event of any dispute between the parties, School & College Legal Services, 
and any staff attorney of that office, now or at the time of the dispute, shall not represent either party in that dispute 
in any respect. 

16. DEFINITIONS.  A “vendor” means a dealer, distributor, merchant, or other seller providing goods and 
services that are required for the conduct of a federal program.  These goods and services may be for an 
organization’s own use or for the use of beneficiaries of the federal program.  Additional guidance on distinguishing 
between a sub-recipient and a vendor is provided in OMG Circular A-133. 

WHEREFORE, the parties named below agree as stated above. 

LOCAL EDUCATIONAL AGENCY (LEA) REGION 1 LEC 
 

Piner-Olivet Union School District SONOMA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

Authorized Representative Authorized Representative 
 
By: Tami Pallingston  By: Greg Medici 
 
Title: Director of Student Support Service Title: Deputy Superintendent Business Services 
 
Signature: Signature: 
 
Date: Date:

The LEA should retain a copy of this Agreement in your files. 

Contract Agreement 2022 forward until terminated.  

04 / 25 / 202204 / 24 / 2022

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

327



Page 7 of 15

This page intentionally left blank 

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

328



Page 8 of 15

EXHIBIT A 
To 

SCHOOL-BASED MEDI-CAL ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIVITIES (SMAA) 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

 
 
LOCAL EDUCATIONAL CONSORTIUM (LEC) RESPONSIBILITES 
 
1. Information Flow 

1.1. Receive and review all SMAA related correspondence, including information and policy directives from 
the Department of Health Services (DHCS), the California Department of Education (CDE) and 
information from the Host County Liaison mandated by state law.  

1.2. Ensure that pertinent information is forwarded to SMAA Coordinators in a timely manner. 
1.3. Respond promptly to requests for information from DHCS, the CDE, and the Host County Liaisons.  
1.4. Ensure that all SMAA program related correspondence directed to and sent from the LEA’s is routed 

through the LEC. 
1.5. Inform the Host County Liaison of changes in LEC/LEA contact information. 
1.6. Oversee and coordinate PCG (Public Consulting Group) and Madera County Superintendent of School. 
1.7. (MCSOS) contracts with Sonoma County Office of Education, (SCOE) for services to the LEA. 
1.8. Represent the LEA in communication with DHCS for approvals and invoice payments. 
 

2. Program Policy 
2.1. Explain SMAA policies and program requirements. 
2.2. Assist LEA Coordinator with compliance. 
2.3. Actively participate in policy discussion and provide input for decision making and problem resolution 

through the state LEC Advisory Committee and related Work Groups. 
2.4. Inform the DHCS about regional SMAA issues requiring policy clarifications. 

3. Training and Technical Assistance 
3.1. Attend statewide SMAA training sessions conducted by the DHCS, the CDE, or program related 

contractors. 
3.2. Develop, arrange and provide regional trainings for the LEA in a timely manner to maintain compliance 

with SMAA policies and program requirements. 
3.3. Provide regular SMAA updates to LEA Coordinators and fiscal staff through county meetings and email 

communication. 
3.4. Identify areas for LEA training needs within the region.  Ensure regional training or local technical 

assistance is provided when necessary.  
 

4. Review and Coordination of Program Required Documents  
4.1. Be actively involved with each LEA in the time survey reviews and audit file compliance. 
4.2. Maintain compliance with LEC/DHCS SMAA Contracts, Host County/LEC Agreements and Participation 

Fee payments, etc. 
4.3. Ensure the processing of LEC/LEA subcontractor agreements.  
4.4. Oversee the preparation and timely submittal of SMAA Invoices. Review claims so as not to duplicate 

reimbursements received from other payment mechanisms. 
4.5. Develop, establish, and maintain SMAA program monitoring procedures, information, and documents 

 
5. Random Moment Time Survey 

5.1. As mandated by the DHCS, provide a software platform (also referred to as the “RMTS System”) through 
a third party administrator, through which the LEA shall utilize the random moment time survey (RMTS) 
process.  Although the LEC will make every reasonable effort to facilitate use of the software platform, 
the LEC is not responsible for problems resulting from software platform or system errors. 

5.2. Code all RMTS moments and make available to the LEA its quarterly coding results for their review and 
certification.  Coding will be based on the assumption that the responses received from the LEA are 
accurate and all necessary documentation exists to support response.  The LEC shall not be responsible for 
monitoring, reviewing or verifying documentation for any coded moment.  

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

329



Page 9 of 15

6. Other 
6.1. Provision of other duties required and necessary for compliance of the SMAA program on behalf of all 

school LEA’s in Region 1 LEC. 

  

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

330



Page 10 of 15

EXHIBIT B 
To 

SCHOOL-BASED MEDI-CAL ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIVITIES (SMAA) 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

 
 
LEA SMAA COORDINATOR RESPONSIBLITIES  
 

1. Participate in all state mandatory time survey trainings, and LEC Coordinator trainings and meetings. 

2. Ensure that all staff participating in RMTS meet all applicable requirements and regulations as determined 
by the SMAA and LEA BOP programs. 

 
3. Ensure TSP lists are accurate for all required information including name, email address, cost pool, job 

category, job title and work schedule (shift).   
 

4. Responsible for timely certification of TSP list (Staff Pool List) in the RMTS System. 
 

5. Ensure LEA TSPs participating in time surveying participate in annual trainings conducted by the LEC or 
with the LEA coordinator.   

 
6. Monitor LEA time surveying and ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

 
7. Monitor TSP list for changes occurring during the quarter that require changes in the RMTS System. 

 
8. Be actively involved in the preparation, review, and compliance requirements of program-required 

documents including SMAA Audit Materials, SMAA Contracts, and SMAA Invoices.  
 

9. Establish and maintain appropriate audit files/systems. 
 

10. Oversee documentation necessary for completion of SMAA invoices, ensuring that claims do not duplicate 
reimbursements received from other payment mechanisms and that invoices are submitted in a timely 
manner. 

 
11. Receive and review all SMAA-related correspondence, including information and policy directives from 

the LEC and the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS). 
 

12. Ensure staff is surveying to appropriate SMAA activities as defined by their job classification. 
 

13. Ensure pertinent information is forwarded to appropriate program/staff in a timely manner. 
 

14. Facilitate relationships and network with the programs/staff participating in SMAA. 
 

15. Respond promptly to requests for information from the LEC and DHCS. 
 

16. Inform the LEC of changes in SMAA Coordinator information. 
 

17. Actively participate in policy discussion and provide constructive input for decision-making and problem 
resolution through the LEC. 

 
18. Review quarterly time survey Coding Reports and submit Review Certification form to LEC. 

 
19. Monitor, review and verify required documentation for any coded moment.    

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

331



Page 11 of 15

EXHIBIT C 
 

To 
SCHOOL-BASED MEDI-CAL AMINISTRATIVE ACTIVITIES (SMAA) 

INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 
 
 

 
ALTERNATE FORMAT 
 
1. LEA assures SCOE and the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS), that it complies with the American 

with Disabilities Act (ADA), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability, aswell as all applicable 
regulations and guidelines pursuant to the ADA. 
 

2. LEA will ensure that deliverables developed produced pursuant to this Agreement comply with federal and 
state laws, regulations or requirements regarding accessibility and effective communication, including the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C § 12101, et. seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
disability, and section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794 (d)). Specifically, 
electronic and printed documents intended as public communications must be produced to ensure the visual-
impaired, hearing-impaired, and other special needs audiences are provided material information in the 
formats needed to provide the most assistance in making informed choices. These formats include but are 
not limited to braille, large font, and audio. 
 

3. LEA must develop a plan to meet these alternative format requirements as described by DHCS. The LEA 
will ensure that the plan developed to meet the alternative format requirements is available for the LEC to 
review at any time. And the LEC reserves the right to request a copy of the plan to review at any time.  

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

332



Page 12 of 15

EXHIBIT D 
To 

SCHOOL-BASED MEDI-CAL ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIVITIES (SMAA) 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

 
 
FEES & PAYMENTS 
  

1. SMAA Program Fees  

SCOE, as identified as the regional LEC, will collect fees on a quarterly basis from each LEA in the Region 
following the California School-Based Medi-Cal Administrative Activities (SMAA) Program Standardized Fee 
Structure below. The rate is determined per quarter based on services provided, as determined by the LEC, and 
all fees charged will be at least in the amount of the LEC’s actual costs.  

 
 

Statewide SMAA Fee Structure Fee/TSP 
1 Base Rate (Standard) 

The rate consists of the expenses incurred by the LEC to run the SMAA program. It includes but not 
limited to: Salaries & Benefits, DHCS Fees, Travel, and Misc. Office Expenses. 

$24.00 

2 Base Rate (Reduced)* 
The rate consists of the expenses incurred by the LEC to run the SMAA program. It includes but not 
limited to: Salaries & Benefits, DHCS Fees, Travel, and Misc. Office Expenses. 

$14.00 

 
Service Components Fee/TSP 

3 RMTS Web-Based Platform 
The rate consists of fees incurred in-house or paid by the LEC to third-party vendors for running the 
RMTS Platform via the internet, which is configured to meet current DHCS/CMS system 
requirements. 

$2.00 

4 TSP List Development Assistance 
The rate consists of fees incurred in-house or paid by the LEC to a third-party to perform Quality 
Assurance (QA) on Time Survey Participant (TSP) lists, which includes, but is not limited to, 
identification of duplicate and missing information, verification of staff job classifications, and 
calendar verification of student non-attendance days. 

$1.00 

5 Quality Assurance Assistance of Program
The rate consists of fees incurred in-house or paid by the LEC to a third-party to perform QA on 
TSP’s. Including but not limited to entering or reviewing TSP list in the RMTS platform. 

$1.00 

6 QA Assistance - TSP Lists and Calendars, Financials, Invoicing 
The rate consists of fees incurred in-house or paid by the LEC to a third-party to review the invoice 
and perform cost analyses of all invoice documents to ensure that all costs meet the standards for 
Certified Public expenditures; including reviewing or entering TSP List into RMTS platform. 

$9.00 

7 LEC Technical Assistance 
The rate consists of fees incurred in-house or paid by the LEC to a third- party to assist the LEC 
with DHCS compliance inside the platform. 

$1.00 

8 Invoicing Component 
The rate consists of preparing the invoice template, collect the data from the districts, and perform 
QA analysis on the data. 

$5.00 

9 Invoicing Component 
The rate consists of preparing the invoice template, collect, review, and verify the data from the 
districts, preparation of final invoice for signature and submittal, work with LEAs for timely 
reporting, and policy support for DHCS-related policy updates. 

$18.00 

10 LEA Data Match 
The rate consists of the expenses incurred by the LECs to define the Medi-Cal Eligibility Rate. 

$1.00 

11 Audit Support Documentation Storage 
The rate consists of providing electronic secure storage via web-based platform.

$1.00 

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

333



Page 13 of 15

12 Additional Fees: Sample per Pool 
The rate consists of fees incurred in-house or paid by the LEC to a third party for generating 
moments, including a review of moments and clarifying questions. 

$1.00 

13 Additional Fees: Coding 
The rate consists of fees incurred in-house or paid by the LEC to a third party for coding of random 
moments. 

$1.00 

14 Additional Fees: Consortia Fee 
The rate for Region 1 is for sites that utilize SCOE for creating the invoicing workbook.  

$1.00 

*An LEA meets the criteria for the Reduced Base Rate if the LEA meets one of the following criteria for 
the quarter:  
• The quarterly TSP count is less than or equal to 50 
• A Medi-Cal Eligibility Rate (MER) is < 30%  
• In a Rural Area** 

**Region 1 is using the definition of Rural as defined for the eligibility of the Small, Rural School 
Achievement Program (SRSA) and Rural and Low-Income School Program (RLRS) through Every 
Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) that includes the Rural Educational Achievement Program (REAP). 
From the Office of Elementary and Secondary Education: To be considered rural, all schools within 
the LEA must have a school locale code of 41, 42, or 43 (assigned by the Department’s National 
Center for Education Statistics (NCES)) or be located in an area of the State defined as rural by a 
governmental agency of the State. 

 
 
2.  Records, Payment of Fees and Payments to LEA 

2.1 SMAA Program Fees shall be identified in the LEA’s fiscal year payment report.  

2.2 Before disbursement to LEA, LEA agrees that SCOE shall 1) deduct SMAA Program fees 
from LEA’s SMAA reimbursement as provided above. In the event LEA’s SMAA 
reimbursement is insufficient to pay for the fees, SCOE, in its discretion, may deduct the 
remaining sum due from LEA’s subsequent SMAA reimbursements.  

 
2.3 In the event DHCS disallows a disbursement previously made based upon LEA’s SMAA 

invoices 1) LEA shall not be entitled to a reimbursement of SCOE fees except to the extent 
the disallowance is the result of SCOE’s error and SCOE is unable to correct the error, 2) 
LEA shall be solely responsible for repayment of disallowed SMAA reimbursements and, (3) 
except to the extent the disallowance is the result of SCOE’s error and SCOE is unable to 
correct the error, LEA shall be solely responsible for interest and other charges, if any,  on the 
disallowed reimbursements.   

 
2.4 SCOE shall make payment to LEA at least twice annually unless DHCS has deferred any 

payments for the program.  
 

2.5 The LEC will be held harmless from any federal disallowance of SMAA claim payments 
made to the LEA by the State.  Since SCOE will be required to pay DHCS for any 
disallowance on behalf of the LEA, SCOE, in its discretion, may deduct from LEA’s 
subsequent SMAA reimbursements, if any, a sum equal to the disallowed SMAA 
reimbursement(s), plus any related interest and charges, for repayment purposes. 

 
    

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

334



Page 14 of 15

EXHIBIT E 
To 

SCHOOL-BASED MEDI-CAL ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIVITIES (SMAA) 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 

 
 
DATA PRIVACY PROVISIONS 
 
1. SCOE shall not use any information in a Pupil Record for any purpose other than those required or 

specifically permitted by the Agreement.  For the purposes of this Agreement, a "Pupil Record" or "Pupil 
Records" include any information directly related to a pupil that is maintained by the LEA or acquired 
directly from the pupil through the use of instructional software or applications assigned to the pupil by a 
teacher or other LEA employees. A "Pupil Record" or "Pupil Records" does not include de-identified 
information that, on its own or in aggregate, cannot be used to identify an individual pupil. 
  

2. All Pupil Records obtained by SCOE from LEA continue to be the property of and under the control of the 
LEA.  The LEA retains exclusive control over student and staff data, including determining who may 
access data and how it may be used for legitimate authorized purposes.   
 
 

3. SCOE shall provide a means by which its employees, when so authorized, can search and export Pupil 
Records through reasonable procedures to the LEA such that the LEA can respond to a parent, legal 
guardian or eligible student who seeks review personally identifiable information on the pupil's records or 
correct erroneous information.   
 

4. SCOE may not distribute Pupil Records to any third party without LEA’s express written consent or as 
permitted by this Agreement, unless required by law.  Unless permitted by this Agreement, use of 
subcontractors and subcontractor access to Pupil Records must be approved in writing by the LEA.  SCOE 
will ensure that approved subcontractors adhere to all provisions of this Agreement. 
  

5. SCOE shall take actions to ensure the security and confidentiality of Pupil Records, including but not 
limited to designating and training responsible individuals on ensuring the security and confidentiality of 
Pupil Records. 
 
5.1 SCOE shall maintain all data obtained or generated pursuant to this Agreement in a secure 

computer environment and not copy, reproduce or transmit data obtained pursuant to this 
Agreement except as necessary to fulfill the purpose of the original request.  SCOE shall warrant 
that security measures are in place to help protect against loss, misuse and alteration of the data 
under SCOE's control.  When the service is accessed using a supported web browser, Secure 
Socket Layer ("SSL") or equivalent technology protects information, using both server 
authentication and data encryption to help ensure that data are safe, secure and available to only 
authorized users. SCOE shall host content pursuant to the service in a secure server environment 
that uses a firewall and other advanced technology in an effort to prevent interference or access 
from outside intruders. Where applicable, the service will require unique account identifiers, 
usernames and passwords that must be entered each time a client or user signs on. 
 

6. SCOE certifies that Pupil Records shall not be retained or available to the SCOE or any such third party 
that the SCOE has contracted with for the purpose of providing the services following the completion of the 
terms of this Agreement.  SCOE shall destroy or return to the LEA all Pupil Records obtained pursuant to 
this Agreement when such Pupil Records are no longer required for the services, or within a reasonable 
period of time.  Nothing in this Agreement authorizes the SCOE to maintain personally identifiable data 
beyond the time period reasonably needed to complete the disposal of Pupil Records following the services.  
  

7. Upon becoming aware of any unlawful or unauthorized access to Pupil Records stored on equipment used 
by SCOE or in facilities used by SCOE, SCOE will take the following measures:  
 

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

335



Page 15 of 15

7.1 promptly notify the LEA  of the suspected or actual incident;  
 

7.2 promptly investigate the incident and provide LEA with detailed information regarding the 
incident, including the identity of affected users; and  

7.3 assist the LEA in notifying affected users, affected parents and legal guardians of commercially 
reasonable steps to mitigate the effects and to minimize any damage resulting from the incident. 

 
 

8. SCOE shall require all employees and agents who have access to Pupil Records to comply with all 
applicable provisions of FERPA laws with respect to the data shared under this Agreement. SCOE agrees 
to require and maintain an appropriate confidentiality agreement from each employee or agent with access 
to Pupil Records pursuant to this Agreement. LEA has authorized the following SCOE employees to access 
the Pupil Records: 
 
LEC MAA Coordinator 
Accounting Technician II 

 
9. The terms and conditions of the Agreement and any addenda are incorporated herein by reference.  This 

Exhibit shall govern the treatment of student records in order to comply with the privacy protections, 
including those found in FERPA (12 U.S.C. 1232g), Children’s Online Privacy Protection Act (15 U.S.C. 
6501-6502), Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment (20 U.S.C. 1232h), Section 49073.1 of the Education 
Code, and Chapter 22.2 of Division 8 of the Business and Professions Code.  In the event there is a conflict 
between the terms of this Exhibit and the Agreement or any other agreement or contract document(s) 
pertaining to the Agreement, the terms of this Exhibit shall apply.  Notwithstanding the above statement, all 
other provisions of the Agreement shall remain unaffected. 
 

10. LEA shall be subject to the Department of Health Care Services Agreement for Disclosure and Use of 
Medi-Cal Data (“DUA”), including all subsequent addendums, which are attached hereto (Attachment A) 
and incorporated by this reference and shall be under same obligations as SCOE under the DUA. The terms 
and conditions of the DUA and any addenda are incorporated herein by this reference. In the event there is 
a conflict between the terms of this Exhibit and the DUA, including any addenda, the terms of the DUA 
shall apply. 

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

336



ATTACHMENT A 

To 

SCHOOL-BASED MEDI-CAL ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIVITIES (SMAA)

INTERANGENCY AGREEMENT 

Department of Health Care Services Disclosure and Use of Medi-Cal Data 

with the Sonoma County Office of Education, Region 1 

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

337



 AMENDMENT TO DUA No.2020-2023 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH CARE SERVICES 
ADDENDUM TO

AGREEMENT FOR DISCLOSURE AND USE OF MEDI-CAL DATA 

User Name: Sonoma County Office of Education

The Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) and Sonoma County 
Office of Education agree, effective February 1, 2022, this addendum 
amends the Agreement for Disclosure and Use of Medi-Cal Data 2020-
2023 as follows: 

6. The Parties mutually agree that data files furnished by DHCS will be
used solely for the following purposes:

a. To allow the LEC/LGA to verify the Medi-Cal eligibility of
beneficiaries in order to establish the Medi-Cal Eligibility Ratio (MER). The 
data listed in Attachment A is the minimum amount needed for this 
purpose.

b. To allow the LEC/LGA to know when an enrolled Medi-Cal
beneficiary has requested to receive Medi-Cal information in an alternative 
format.  

Further, this addendum amends and incorporates the amended Attachment 
A: Data Match Record Layout into the Agreement for Disclosure and Use of 
Medi-Cal Data, enclosed herein. 

Except as amended herein, all other terms and conditions of the 
Agreement for Disclosure and Use of Medi-Cal Data shall remain in full 
force and effect. 

Doc ID: a0ead098ccc9a06deb46f2139125fd482f4719f9

DocuSign Envelope ID: 95E899E5-7778-477A-8BBC-EA8FEB56C837

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

338



          AMENDMENT TO DUA No.2020-2023 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH CARE SERVICES  

Data Use Agreement 

 
Attachment A 

Data Match Record Layouts 
 
The following table illustrates the Data Match Record Layout for the input file.  

FIELD SIZE POSITION COLUMN HEADING 
Social Security Number 9 1-9 SSN 
Last Name 20 10-29 Last Name 
First Name 15 30-44 First Name 
Middle Initial 1 45 Middle Initial 
Date of Birth (CCYYMMDD) 8 46-53 DOB 
Sex 1 54 Sex (Optional) 
Provider Id 9 55-63 Provider Id 
School Name 20 64-83 School Name 
User data 20 84-103 User Data 
County Code 2 104-105 County Code 

Doc ID: a0ead098ccc9a06deb46f2139125fd482f4719f9

DocuSign Envelope ID: 95E899E5-7778-477A-8BBC-EA8FEB56C837

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

339



          AMENDMENT TO DUA No.2020-2023 

The following table illustrates the Data Match Record Layout for the output file, which is a csv 

(comma-separated value) file that is easily opened in Excel. 

FIELD SIZE POSITION COLUMN HEADING 
Double Quotes 1 1  
Social Security Number 9 2-10 SSN
Double Quotes 3 11-13  
Last Name 20 14-33 Last Name 
Double Quotes 3 34-36  
First Name 15 37-51 First Name 
Double Quotes 3 52-54  
Middle Initial 1 55 Middle Initial
Double Quotes 3 56-58  
Date of Birth (CCYYMMDD) 8 59-66 DOB 
Double Quotes 3 67-69
Sex 1 70 Sex (Optional) 
Double Quotes 3 71-73  
Provider Id 9 74-82 Provider Id 
Double Quotes 3 83-85  
School Name 20 86-105 School Name 
Double Quotes 3 106-108  
User data 20 109-128 User Data 
Double Quotes 3 129-131  
County Code 2 132-133 County Code 
Double Quotes 3 134-136  
Beneficiary Identification Card Number 14 137-150 BIC Number

Double Quotes 3 151-153
Beneficiary Identification Card Issue Date 
(CCYYMMDD) 

8 154-161 BIC Issue Date 

Double Quotes 3 162-164  
Match Indicator 1 165 Match or No Match 

Double Quotes 3 166-168  
Record Eligibility Indicator 1 169 Eligible or Not 

Double Quotes 3 170-172  
Eligibility Indicator 1 173 Eligible this month 

Double Quotes 3 174-176  
Share of Cost Amount 5 177-181 Share of Cost Amount 

Doc ID: a0ead098ccc9a06deb46f2139125fd482f4719f9

DocuSign Envelope ID: 95E899E5-7778-477A-8BBC-EA8FEB56C837

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

340



          AMENDMENT TO DUA No.2020-2023 

Double Quotes 3 182-184  

Cert Day 2 185-186 Share of Cost Met 

Double Quotes 3 187-189  

OHC Indicator 1 190 Other Health Care 

Double Quotes 3 191-193  

FIELD SIZE POSITION COLUMN HEADING 
Eligibility Indicator 1 194 Eligible Prior Jan 

Double Quotes 3 195-197  

Share of Cost Amount 5 198-202 Share of Cost Amount 

Double Quotes 3 203-205  

Cert Day 2 206-207 Share of Cost Met 

 

Double Quotes 3 208-210  

OHC Indicator 1 211 Other Health Care

Double Quotes 3 212-214  

Eligibility Indicator 1 215 Eligible Prior Feb 

Double Quotes 3 216-218  

Share of Cost Amount 5 219-223 Share of Cost Amount 

Double Quotes 3 224-226  

Cert Day 2 227-228 Share of Cost Met 

 

Double Quotes 3 229-231  

OHC Indicator 1 232 Other Health Care 

Double Quotes 3 233-235  

Doc ID: a0ead098ccc9a06deb46f2139125fd482f4719f9

DocuSign Envelope ID: 95E899E5-7778-477A-8BBC-EA8FEB56C837

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

341



          AMENDMENT TO DUA No.2020-2023 

Eligibility Indicator 1 236 Eligible Prior Mar 

Double Quotes 3 237-239  

Share of Cost Amount 5 240-244 Share of Cost Amount 

 

Double Quotes 3 245-247  

Cert Day 2 248-249 Share of Cost Met 

 

Double Quotes 3 250-252  

OHC Indicator 1 253 Other Health Care 

Double Quotes 3 254-256  

Eligibility Indicator 1 257 Eligible Prior Apr 

Double Quotes 3 258-260  

Share of Cost Amount 5 261-265 Share of Cost Amount 

 

Double Quotes 3 266-268  

Cert Day 2 269-270 Share of Cost Met 

 

Double Quotes 3 271-273  

OHC Indicator 1 274 Other Health Care 

Double Quotes 3 275-277  

Eligibility Indicator 1 278 Eligible Prior May 

Double Quotes 3 279-281  

Share of Cost Amount 5 282-286 Share of Cost Amount 

Double Quotes 3 287-289  

FIELD SIZE POSITION COLUMN HEADING 
Cert Day 2 290-291 Share of Cost Met 

Doc ID: a0ead098ccc9a06deb46f2139125fd482f4719f9

DocuSign Envelope ID: 95E899E5-7778-477A-8BBC-EA8FEB56C837

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

342



          AMENDMENT TO DUA No.2020-2023 

 

Double Quotes 3 292-294  

OHC Indicator 1 295 Other Health Care 

Double Quotes 3 296-298  

Eligibility Indicator 1 299 Eligible Prior Jun 

Double Quotes 3 300-302  

Share of Cost Amount 5 303-307 Share of Cost Amount 

Double Quotes 3 308-310  

Cert Day 2 311-312 Share of Cost Met 

Double Quotes 3 313-15  

OHC Indicator 1 316 Other Health Care 

Double Quotes 3 317-319  

Eligibility Indicator 1 320 Eligible Prior Jul 

Double Quotes 3 321-323  

Share of Cost Amount 5 324-328 Share of Cost Amount 

Double Quotes 3 329-331  

Cert Day 2 332-333 Share of Cost Met 

Double Quotes 3 334-336  

OHC Indicator 1 337 Other Health Care 

Double Quotes 3 338-340  

Eligibility Indicator 1 341 Eligible Prior Aug 

Double Quotes 3 342-344  

Share of Cost Amount 5 345-349 Share of Cost Amount

Double Quotes 3 350-352  

Cert Day 2 353-354 Share of Cost Met 

Double Quotes 3 355-357  

Doc ID: a0ead098ccc9a06deb46f2139125fd482f4719f9

DocuSign Envelope ID: 95E899E5-7778-477A-8BBC-EA8FEB56C837

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

343



          AMENDMENT TO DUA No.2020-2023 

OHC Indicator 1 358 Other Health Care 

Double Quotes 3 359-361  

Eligibility Indicator 1 362 Eligible Prior Sep 

Double Quotes 3 363-365  

Share of Cost Amount 5 366-370 Share of Cost Amount 

Double Quotes 3 371-373  

Cert Day 2 374-375 Share of Cost Met 

Double Quotes 3 376-378  

OHC Indicator 1 379 Other Health Care 

Double Quotes 3 380-382  

Eligibility Indicator 1 383 Eligible Prior Oct 

Double Quotes 3 384-386  

Share of Cost Amount 5 387-391 Share of Cost Amount 

Double Quotes 3 392-394  

Cert Day 2 395-396 Share of Cost Met 

Double Quotes 3 397-399  

FIELD SIZE POSITION COLUMN HEADING 
OHC Indicator 1 400 Other Health Care 

Double Quotes 3 401-403  

Eligibility Indicator 1 404 Eligible Prior Nov

Double Quotes 3 405-407  

Share of Cost Amount 5 408-412 Share of Cost Amount 

Double Quotes 3 413-415  

Cert Day 2 416-417 Share of Cost Met 

Double Quotes 3 418-420  

OHC Indicator 1 421 Other Health Care 

Doc ID: a0ead098ccc9a06deb46f2139125fd482f4719f9

DocuSign Envelope ID: 95E899E5-7778-477A-8BBC-EA8FEB56C837

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

344



          AMENDMENT TO DUA No.2020-2023 

Double Quotes 3 422-424  

Eligibility Indicator 1 425 Eligible Prior Dec 

Double Quotes 3 426-428  

Share of Cost Amount 5 429-433 Share of Cost Amount 

Double Quotes 3 434-436  

Cert Day 2 437-438 Share of Cost Met 

Double Quotes 3 439-441  

OHC Indicator 1 442 Other Health Care 

Double Quotes 3 443-445  

Meds Current Date CCYYMMDD 8 446-453 Report Date 

Double Quotes 3 454-456  

FFP Eligible 1 457 FFP Qualified 

Double Quotes 3 458-460  

Alternative Format Requested 41 461-501 Type of Alt. Format 

Double Quotes 1 502  

Blank Spaces 835 503-1337  

Doc ID: a0ead098ccc9a06deb46f2139125fd482f4719f9

DocuSign Envelope ID: 95E899E5-7778-477A-8BBC-EA8FEB56C837

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

345



          AMENDMENT TO DUA No.2020-2023 

The undersigned individual hereby attests that he/she is authorized to enter 
into this Agreement on behalf of the User and agrees to the terms of the 
addendum. 

User Name: ______________________________________________ 

Print Name of Authorized Representative 

Title of Authorized Representative 

Address 

Signature of Authorized Representative 

Date 

The undersigned individual hereby attests that she is authorized to enter 
into this Agreement on behalf of DHCS and agrees to the terms of the 
addendum. 

Regina Zerne 
Staff Services Manager II, School Based Claiming Services Section 
Medi-Cal Claiming Services Section 
Local Governmental Financing Division 
Department of Health Care Services 
1501 Capitol Avenue, MS 2628 
Sacramento, California 95899-7413 

Signature of DHCS Representative 

Enclosure: Attachment A: Data Match Record Layout (Amended)

Sabrina Dawson

Greg Medici

Deputy Superintendent Business Services

Sonoma County Office of Education, 5340 Skylane Blvd, Santa Rosa, CA 95403

01 / 25 / 2022

Doc ID: a0ead098ccc9a06deb46f2139125fd482f4719f9

DocuSign Envelope ID: 95E899E5-7778-477A-8BBC-EA8FEB56C837

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

346



Audit Trail

Title


File Name


Document ID


Audit Trail Date Format


Status

Please sign DUA Amendment for Region 1 LEC SMAA

Sonoma LEC DUA Amendment Paragraph 6.pdf and 1 other

a0ead098ccc9a06deb46f2139125fd482f4719f9

MM / DD / YYYY

Signed

01 / 25 / 2022

16:41:35 UTC

Sent for signature to Greg Medici (gmedici@scoe.org) from

sdawson@scoe.org

IP: 209.129.224.1

01 / 25 / 2022

22:39:50 UTC

Viewed by Greg Medici (gmedici@scoe.org)

IP: 209.129.224.1

01 / 25 / 2022

22:44:42 UTC

Signed by Greg Medici (gmedici@scoe.org)

IP: 209.129.224.1

The document has been completed.01 / 25 / 2022

22:44:42 UTC

DocuSign Envelope ID: 95E899E5-7778-477A-8BBC-EA8FEB56C837

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

347



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

348



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

349



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

350



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

351



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

352



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

353



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

354



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

355



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

356



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

357



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

358



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

359



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

360



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

361



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

362



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

363



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

364



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

365



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

366



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

367



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

368



Page 1 of 6

DHCS HIPAA BAA 11/19

1. This Agreement has been determined to constitute a business associate relationship under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) and its implementing privacy and security regulations
at 45 Code of Federal Regulations, Parts 160 and 164 (collectively, and as used in this Agreement)

2. The term “Agreement” as used in this document refers to and includes both this Business Associate
Addendum and the contract to which this Business Associate Agreement is attached as an exhibit, if any.

3. For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Business Associate” shall have the same meaning as set forth in
45 CFR section 160.103.

4. The Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) intends that Business Associate may create, receive,
maintain, transmit or aggregate certain information pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, some of which
information may constitute Protected Health Information (PHI) and/or confidential information protected by
Federal and/or state laws.

4.1 As used in this Agreement and unless otherwise stated, the term “PHI” refers to and includes both “PHI”
as defined at 45 CFR section 160.103 and Personal Information (PI) as defined in the Information 
Practices Act at California Civil Code section 1798.3(a). PHI includes information in any form, including 
paper, oral, and electronic.

4.2 As used in this Agreement, the term “confidential information” refers to information not otherwise defined 
as PHI in Section 4.1 of this Agreement, but to which state and/or federal privacy and/or security 
protections apply.

5. Contractor (however named elsewhere in this Agreement) is the Business Associate of DHCS acting on
DHCS's behalf and provides services or arranges, performs or assists in the performance of functions or
activities on behalf of DHCS, and may create, receive, maintain, transmit, aggregate, use or disclose PHI
(collectively, “use or disclose PHI”) in order to fulfill Business Associate’s obligations under this Agreement.
DHCS and Business Associate are each a party to this Agreement and are collectively referred to as the
"parties.”

6. The terms used in this Agreement, but not otherwise defined, shall have the same meanings as those terms
in HIPAA. Any reference to statutory or regulatory language shall be to such language as in effect or as
amended.

7. Permitted Uses and Disclosures of PHI by Business Associate. Except as otherwise indicated in this
Agreement, Business Associate may use or disclose PHI only to perform functions, activities or services
specified in this Agreement on behalf of DHCS, provided that such use or disclosure would not violate HIPAA
if done by DHCS.

7.1 Specific Use and Disclosure Provisions. Except as otherwise indicated in this Agreement, Business
Associate may use and disclose PHI if necessary for the proper management and administration of the 
Business Associate or to carry out the legal responsibilities of the Business Associate. Business 
Associate may disclose PHI for this purpose if the disclosure is required by law, or the Business 
Associate obtains reasonable assurances from the person to whom the information is disclosed that it 
will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purposes for 
which it was disclosed to the person, and the person notifies the Business Associate of any instances 
of which it is aware that the confidentiality of the information has been breached.

8. Compliance with Other Applicable Law

8.1 To the extent that other state and/or federal laws provide additional, stricter and/or more protective
(collectively, more protective) privacy and/or security protections to PHI or other confidential information 
covered under this Agreement beyond those provided through HIPAA, Business Associate agrees:

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

369



Page 2 of 6

DHCS HIPAA BAA 11/19

8.1.1 To comply with the more protective of the privacy and security standards set forth in applicable state 
or federal laws to the extent such standards provide a greater degree of protection and security than 
HIPAA or are otherwise more favorable to the individuals whose information is concerned; and

8.1.2 To treat any violation of such additional and/or more protective standards as a breach or security 
incident, as appropriate, pursuant to Section 18. of this Agreement.

8.2 Examples of laws that provide additional and/or stricter privacy protections to certain types of PHI
and/or confidential information, as defined in Section 4. of this Agreement, include, but are not limited 
to the Information Practices Act, California Civil Code sections 1798-1798.78, Confidentiality of 
Alcohol and Drug Abuse Patient Records, 42 CFR Part 2, Welfare and Institutions Code section 5328, 
and California Health and Safety Code section 11845.5.

8.3 If Business Associate is a Qualified Service Organization (QSO) as defined in 42 CFR section 2.11, 
Business Associate agrees to be bound by and comply with subdivisions (2)(i) and (2)(ii) under the 
definition of QSO in 42 CFR section 2.11.

9. Additional Responsibilities of Business Associate

9.1 Nondisclosure.  Business Associate shall not use or disclose PHI or other confidential information other
than as permitted or required by this Agreement or as required by law.

9.2 Safeguards and Security.

9.2.1 Business Associate shall use safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the 
confidentiality, integrity, and availability of PHI and other confidential data and comply, where 
applicable, with subpart C of 45 CFR Part 164 with respect to electronic protected health 
information, to prevent use or disclosure of the information other than as provided for by this 
Agreement. Such safeguards shall be, at a minimum, at Federal Information Processing 
Standards (FIPS) Publication 199 protection levels.

9.2.2 Business Associate shall, at a minimum, utilize an industry-recognized security framework when 
selecting and implementing its security controls, and shall maintain continuous compliance with 
its selected framework as it may be updated from time to time. Examples of industry-recognized 
security frameworks include but are not limited to 

9.2.2.1 NIST SP 800-53 – National Institute of Standards and Technology Special Publication 
800-53

9.2.2.2 FedRAMP – Federal Risk and Authorization Management Program

9.2.2.3 PCI – PCI Security Standards Council

9.2.2.4 ISO/ESC 27002 – International Organization for Standardization / International 
Electrotechnical Commission standard 27002

9.2.2.5 IRS PUB 1075 – Internal Revenue Service Publication 1075

9.2.2.6 HITRUST CSF – HITRUST Common Security Framework

9.2.3 Business Associate shall maintain, at a minimum, industry standards for transmission and storage 
of PHI and other confidential information.

9.2.4 Business Associate shall apply security patches and upgrades, and keep virus software up-to-
date, on all systems on which PHI and other confidential information may be used.

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

370



Page 3 of 6

DHCS HIPAA BAA 11/19

9.2.5 Business Associate shall ensure that all members of its workforce with access to PHI and/or
other confidential information sign a confidentiality statement prior to access to such data. The 
statement must be renewed annually.  

9.2.6 Business Associate shall identify the security official who is responsible for the development and 
implementation of the policies and procedures required by 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C.

9.3 Business Associate’s Agent. Business Associate shall ensure that any agents, subcontractors,
subawardees, vendors or others (collectively, “agents”) that use or disclose PHI and/or confidential 
information on behalf of Business Associate agree to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to 
Business Associate with respect to such PHI and/or confidential information.

10. Mitigation of Harmful Effects. Business Associate shall mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful
effect that is known to Business Associate of a use or disclosure of PHI and other confidential information in
violation of the requirements of this Agreement.

11. Access to PHI. Business Associate shall make PHI available in accordance with 45 CFR section 164.524.

12. Amendment of PHI. Business Associate shall make PHI available for amendment and incorporate any
amendments to protected health information in accordance with 45 CFR section 164.526.

13. Accounting for Disclosures. Business Associate shall make available the information required to provide
an accounting of disclosures in accordance with 45 CFR section 164.528.

14. Compliance with DHCS Obligations. To the extent Business Associate is to carry out an obligation of
DHCS under 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart E, comply with the requirements of the subpart that apply to DHCS
in the performance of such obligation.

15. Access to Practices, Books and Records. Business Associate shall make its internal practices, books,
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI on behalf of DHCS available to DHCS upon reasonable
request, and to the federal Secretary of Health and Human Services for purposes of determining DHCS’
compliance with 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart E.

16. Return or Destroy PHI on Termination; Survival. At termination of this Agreement, if feasible, Business
Associate shall return or destroy all PHI and other confidential information received from, or created or
received by Business Associate on behalf of, DHCS that Business Associate still maintains in any form and
retain no copies of such information. If return or destruction is not feasible, Business Associate shall notify
DHCS of the conditions that make the return or destruction infeasible, and DHCS and Business Associate
shall determine the terms and conditions under which Business Associate may retain the PHI. If such return
or destruction is not feasible, Business Associate shall extend the protections of this Agreement to the
information and limit further uses and disclosures to those purposes that make the return or destruction of
the information infeasible.

17. Special Provision for SSA Data. If Business Associate receives data from or on behalf of DHCS that was
verified by or provided by the Social Security Administration (SSA data) and is subject to an agreement
between DHCS and SSA, Business Associate shall provide, upon request by DHCS, a list of all employees
and agents and employees who have access to such data, including employees and agents of its agents, to
DHCS.

18. Breaches and Security Incidents. Business Associate shall implement reasonable systems for the
discovery and prompt reporting of any breach or security incident, and take the following steps:

18.1 Notice to DHCS.

18.1.1 Business Associate shall notify DHCS immediately upon the discovery of a suspected breach 
or security incident that involves SSA data. This notification will be provided by email upon 

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

371



Page 4 of 6

DHCS HIPAA BAA 11/19

discovery of the breach. If Business Associate is unable to provide notification by email, then 
Business Associate shall provide notice by telephone to DHCS.

18.1.2 Business Associate shall notify DHCS within 24 hours by email (or by telephone if Business
Associate is unable to email DHCS) of the discovery of: 

18.1.2.1 Unsecured PHI if the PHI is reasonably believed to have been accessed or acquired 
by an unauthorized person; 

18.1.2.2 Any suspected security incident which risks unauthorized access to PHI and/or other 
confidential information; 

18.1.2.3 Any intrusion or unauthorized access, use or disclosure of PHI in violation of this 
Agreement; or

18.1.2.4 Potential loss of confidential data affecting this Agreement.

18.1.3 Notice shall be provided to the DHCS Program Contract Manager (as applicable), the DHCS 
Privacy Office, and the DHCS Information Security Office (collectively, “DHCS Contacts”)
using the DHCS Contact Information at Section 18.6. below. 

Notice shall be made using the current DHCS “Privacy Incident Reporting Form” (“PIR Form”;
the initial notice of a security incident or breach that is submitted is referred to as an “Initial 
PIR Form”) and shall include all information known at the time the incident is reported. The 
form is available online at
http://www.dhcs.ca.gov/formsandpubs/laws/priv/Pages/DHCSBusinessAssociatesOnly.aspx.

Upon discovery of a breach or suspected security incident, intrusion or unauthorized access,
use or disclosure of PHI, Business Associate shall take:

18.1.3.1 Prompt action to mitigate any risks or damages involved with the security incident or 
breach; and

18.1.3.2 Any action pertaining to such unauthorized disclosure required by applicable Federal
and State law. 

18.2 Investigation. Business Associate shall immediately investigate such security incident or confidential 
breach.  

18.3 Complete Report. To provide a complete report of the investigation to the DHCS contacts within ten
(10) working days of the discovery of the security incident or breach. This “Final PIR” must include
any applicable additional information not included in the Initial Form. The Final PIR Form shall include
an assessment of all known factors relevant to a determination of whether a breach occurred under
HIPAA and other applicable federal and state laws. The report shall also include a full, detailed
corrective action plan, including its implementation date and information on mitigation measures
taken to halt and/or contain the improper use or disclosure. If DHCS requests information in addition
to that requested through the PIR form, Business Associate shall make reasonable efforts to provide
DHCS with such information. A “Supplemental PIR” may be used to submit revised or additional
information after the Final PIR is submitted. DHCS will review and approve or disapprove Business
Associate’s determination of whether a breach occurred, whether the security incident or breach is
reportable to the appropriate entities, if individual notifications are required, and Business Associate’s
corrective action plan.

18.3.1 If Business Associate does not complete a Final PIR within the ten (10) working day 
timeframe, Business Associate shall request approval from DHCS within the ten (10) working 
day timeframe of a new submission timeframe for the Final PIR. 

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

372



Page 5 of 6

DHCS HIPAA BAA 11/19

18.4 Notification of Individuals. If the cause of a breach is attributable to Business Associate or its
agents, Business Associate shall notify individuals accordingly and shall pay all costs of such 
notifications, as well as all costs associated with the breach. The notifications shall comply with 
applicable federal and state law. DHCS shall approve the time, manner and content of any such 
notifications and their review and approval must be obtained before the notifications are made.

18.5 Responsibility for Reporting of Breaches to Entities Other than DHCS. If the cause of a breach 
of PHI is attributable to Business Associate or its subcontractors, Business Associate is responsible 
for all required reporting of the breach as required by applicable federal and state law.

18.6 DHCS Contact Information. To direct communications to the above referenced DHCS staff, the 
Contractor shall initiate contact as indicated here. DHCS reserves the right to make changes to the 
contact information below by giving written notice to Business Associate. These changes shall not 
require an amendment to this Agreement. 

DHCS Program 
Contract Manager

DHCS Privacy Office DHCS Information Security Office

See the Scope of Work 
exhibit for Program 
Contract Manager 
information. If this 
Business Associate 
Agreement is not 
attached as an exhibit to 
a contract, contact the 
DHCS signatory to this 
Agreement.  

Privacy Office
c/o: Office of HIPAA Compliance
Department of Health Care Services
P.O. Box 997413, MS 4722 
Sacramento, CA 95899-7413

Email: incidents@dhcs.ca.gov

Telephone:  (916) 445-4646

Information Security Office
DHCS Information Security Office
P.O. Box 997413, MS 6400
Sacramento, CA 95899-7413

Email:  incidents@dhcs.ca.gov

19. Responsibility of DHCS.  DHCS agrees to not request the Business Associate to use or disclose PHI in
any manner that would not be permissible under HIPAA and/or other applicable federal and/or state law.

20. Audits, Inspection and Enforcement

20.1 From time to time, DHCS may inspect the facilities, systems, books and records of Business Associate
to monitor compliance with this Agreement. Business Associate shall promptly remedy any violation 
of this Agreement and shall certify the same to the DHCS Privacy Officer in writing. Whether or how 
DHCS exercises this provision shall not in any respect relieve Business Associate of its responsibility 
to comply with this Agreement. 

20.2 If Business Associate is the subject of an audit, compliance review, investigation or any proceeding 
that is related to the performance of its obligations pursuant to this Agreement, or is the subject of any 
judicial or administrative proceeding alleging a violation of HIPAA, Business Associate shall promptly 
notify DHCS unless it is legally prohibited from doing so.

21. Termination

21.1 Termination for Cause. Upon DHCS’ knowledge of a violation of this Agreement by Business
Associate, DHCS may in its discretion: 

21.1.1  Provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the violation and terminate this 
Agreement if Business Associate does not do so within the time specified by DHCS; or

21.1.2  Terminate this Agreement if Business Associate has violated a material term of this 
Agreement. 

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

373



Page 6 of 6

DHCS HIPAA BAA 11/19

21.2 Judicial or Administrative Proceedings. DHCS may terminate this Agreement if Business 
Associate is found to have violated HIPAA, or stipulates or consents to any such conclusion, in any 
judicial or administrative proceeding.

22. Miscellaneous Provisions

22.1   Disclaimer. DHCS makes no warranty or representation that compliance by Business Associate with
this Agreement will satisfy Business Associate’s business needs or compliance obligations. Business 
Associate is solely responsible for all decisions made by Business Associate regarding the 
safeguarding of PHI and other confidential information. 

22.2. Amendment.

22.2.1 Any provision of this Agreement which is in conflict with current or future applicable Federal or 
State laws is hereby amended to conform to the provisions of those laws. Such amendment of 
this Agreement shall be effective on the effective date of the laws necessitating it, and shall be 
binding on the parties even though such amendment may not have been reduced to writing and 
formally agreed upon and executed by the parties.

22.2.2 Failure by Business Associate to take necessary actions required by amendments to this 
Agreement under Section 22.2.1 shall constitute a material violation of this Agreement. 

22.3 Assistance in Litigation or Administrative Proceedings. Business Associate shall make itself and 
its employees and agents available to DHCS at no cost to DHCS to testify as witnesses, or otherwise, 
in the event of litigation or administrative proceedings being commenced against DHCS, its directors, 
officers and/or employees based upon claimed violation of HIPAA, which involve inactions or actions 
by the Business Associate.

22.4  No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to or shall confer, upon any 
third person any rights or remedies whatsoever.

22.5 Interpretation. The terms and conditions in this Agreement shall be interpreted as broadly as
necessary to implement and comply with HIPAA and other applicable laws.

22.6 No Waiver of Obligations. No change, waiver or discharge of any liability or obligation hereunder 
on any one or more occasions shall be deemed a waiver of performance of any continuing or other 
obligation, or shall prohibit enforcement of any obligation, on any other occasion.

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

374



Certificate Of Completion

Envelope Id: 6057AADB7B0441959B9A3A1487694765 Status: Completed

Subject: Please DocuSign: Sonoma_PPA.pdf, Sonoma_DUA.pdf, Sonoma_Attachments.pdf

Source Envelope: 

Document Pages: 33 Signatures: 3 Envelope Originator: 

Certificate Pages: 5 Initials: 0 Thai Nguyen

AutoNav: Enabled

EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled

Time Zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada)

1501 Capitol Ave

Sacramento, CA  95814-5005

Thai.Nguyen@dhcs.ca.gov

IP Address: 158.96.4.13

Record Tracking

Status: Original

             6/8/2020 2:06:29 PM

Holder: Thai Nguyen

             Thai.Nguyen@dhcs.ca.gov

Location: DocuSign

Security Appliance Status: Connected Pool: FedRamp

Storage Appliance Status: Connected Pool: Department of Health Care Services (CA 

DHCS)

Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Robert Ducay

Robert.Ducay@dhcs.ca.gov

Assistant Deputy Director, Health Care Financing

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None) Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style

Using IP Address: 158.96.4.13

Sent: 6/8/2020 2:25:12 PM

Viewed: 6/8/2020 2:30:07 PM 

Signed: 6/8/2020 2:31:19 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Accepted: 6/8/2020 2:30:07 PM
      ID: 3d5444bd-7424-44c6-beca-b775d91218df

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp

Iveda Williams

Iveda.Williams@dhcs.ca.gov

SSA

Department of Health Care Services

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 6/8/2020 2:31:30 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Thai Nguyen

thai.nguyen@dhcs.ca.gov

SSA

Department of Health Care Services

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 6/8/2020 2:31:30 PM

Resent: 6/8/2020 2:31:38 PM

Viewed: 6/8/2020 3:27:27 PM 

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

375



Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps

Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 6/8/2020 2:31:30 PM

Certified Delivered Security Checked 6/8/2020 2:31:30 PM

Signing Complete Security Checked 6/8/2020 2:31:30 PM

Completed Security Checked 6/8/2020 2:31:30 PM

Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure

Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

376



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

377



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

378



Doc ID: 8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

379



Audit Trail

Title


File Name


Document ID


Audit Trail Date Format


Status

Please Sign: Piner-Olivet Union SD SMAA Interagency...

Contract Cover Sheet - Sabrina Only.docx and 1 other

8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

MM / DD / YYYY

Signed

04 / 21 / 2022

22:09:26 UTC

Sent for signature to Sabrina Dawson (sdawson@scoe.org),

Tami Pallingston (tpallingston@pousd.org) and Greg Medici

(gmedici@scoe.org) from sdawson@scoe.org

IP: 209.129.224.1

04 / 21 / 2022

22:10:18 UTC

Viewed by Sabrina Dawson (sdawson@scoe.org)

IP: 209.129.224.1

04 / 21 / 2022

22:10:27 UTC

Signed by Sabrina Dawson (sdawson@scoe.org)

IP: 209.129.224.1

04 / 24 / 2022

23:46:23 UTC

Viewed by Tami Pallingston (tpallingston@pousd.org)

IP: 98.210.46.31

04 / 24 / 2022

23:46:35 UTC

Signed by Tami Pallingston (tpallingston@pousd.org)

IP: 98.210.46.31

380



Audit Trail

Title


File Name


Document ID


Audit Trail Date Format


Status

04 / 25 / 2022

15:46:49 UTC

Viewed by Greg Medici (gmedici@scoe.org)

IP: 209.129.224.1

04 / 25 / 2022

15:47:03 UTC

Signed by Greg Medici (gmedici@scoe.org)

IP: 209.129.224.1

The document has been completed.04 / 25 / 2022

15:47:03 UTC

Please Sign: Piner-Olivet Union SD SMAA Interagency...

Contract Cover Sheet - Sabrina Only.docx and 1 other

8ef6cbb7420e86b7a34671ba977c1df3e5698545

MM / DD / YYYY

Signed

381



PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT
CONFIDENTIAL/SUPERVISORY EMPLOYEES SALARY SCHEDULE

2021-2022

STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 STEP 4 STEP 5 STEP 6 STEP 10 STEP 15 STEP 20

PERSONNEL TECHNICIAN 5,045 5,298 5,563 5,841 6,133 6,441 6,955 7,267 7,594

 12 Month

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY 5,730 6,015 6,317 6,633 6,964 7,312 7,898 8,253 8,625

 12 Month

SUPERVISOR OF

BUILDINGS & GROUNDS

   (SUPERVISOR II) 5,420 5,691 5,976 6,274 6,588 6,917 7,471 7,808 8,159

 12 Month

SUPERVISOR OF FOOD SERVICES

   (SUPERVISOR I) 4,205 4,415 4,637 4,868 5,110 5,367 5,796 6,056 6,330

 12 Month

SUPERVISOR OF INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

12 Month 5,949 6,246 6,559 6,887 7,231 7,593 8,201 8,569 8,955

A new employee will begin at the lowest step on the range and move one (1) step each year of satisfactory service until on the highest

step of the range.

The Board may give up to three (3) years credit for previous related experience (no higher than Step 4).

Professional Growth Units - $450.00 for each 4 units

$800/Single, $950 Double, $1,100 Family Month Health Cap - 10/1/19
$850/Single, $1,000 Double, $1,200 Family Month Health Cap - 10/1/20

Effective: 7/1/2021 - 06/30/2022
Approved by Governing Board: 3/10/2021

382



383



384



CONTRACT 
 

AGREEMENT FOR VENDED MEAL SERVICES 
 
 This AGREEMENT, for the period June 3, 2022 through August 10, 2022,  
is hereby entered into between City of Santa Rosa High School District of the State of 
California, hereinafter referred to as “CITY SCHOOLS” and: Piner Olivet Union School 
District,  hereinafter referred to as:  District.   
 
 WHEREAS, CITY SCHOOLS has the capability for providing vended meal 
services Reimbursable Breakfast and Lunches to various sites and programs on a cost-
reimbursement basis: 
 
 NOW THEREFORE:  the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
CITY SCHOOLS SHALL: 
 
 (1) Prepare and deliver Reimbursable Breakfast and Lunches, including milk, 
using the Santa Rosa City Schools Choice Menu to: 
 
 

See Attachment A 
 
 

By 9:00 a.m. 
 
EACH SCHOOL DAY, including minimum days, in accordance with the number of meals 
requested for that day.  Eating utensils, straws, and napkins will also be provided. 
 
 (2) Be responsible for meeting the nutritional standards for Reimbursable 
Lunches as set forth by the United States Department of Agriculture for the National 
School Lunch Program, and Reimbursable Breakfasts as set forth by the USDA for the 
School Breakfast Program, and also for the quality of the breakfasts and lunches at the 
time of delivery. 
 
 (3) Pick up transport baskets from the previous day’s delivery at the time of the 
current day’s delivery. 
 
 (4) Present itemized invoice the tenth working day of each month for the 
previous month’s deliveries.   
 
Reimbursable breakfasts for elementary schools will be billed at two dollars and five cents 
($2.05) each, including milk.  
 
Reimbursable lunches will be billed at the rate of three dollars and thirty-five cents ($3.35) 
each for elementary lunch, including milk. 
 

385



 
 (5) Assume all liability for proper use and protection of surplus commodities 
assigned to District.  Commodities will only be used for the preparation of breakfast and 
lunch meals and may not be sent to sites for snacks. 
 
 (6) Provide District with a monthly menu one week prior to the beginning of the 
month covered by said menu. 
 
 (7) Maintain all necessary records on the nutritional components of the 
breakfasts and lunches, the number of breakfasts and lunches delivered to, and make 
said records available for inspection by the State and Federal authorities upon request. 
 
 (8) Shelf stable meals will be provided in the event your District is open on a 
scheduled CITY SCHOOLS holiday. Alternatively two days of meals will be provided on 
the delivery prior to the CITY SCHOOLS holiday. 
 
 (9) CITY SCHOOLS shall charge for a minimum of fifteen (15) lunches at any 
given site.  Fewer lunches may be received, but CITY SCHOOLS will not charge less for 
a regularly scheduled stop. 
 
 (10) Sack lunches can be provided for field trips with ten (10) working days’ 
notice to the site providing lunches. 
 
 
District SHALL: 
  
 (1) A.   Orders must be placed by 9:30 AM three days prior to the 
delivery date to ensure we will have the number of lunch choices available and for the 
efficient operation of our services.  Shelf stable meals are available to purchase as a 
back-up supply, should you ever need additional meals. 
 
  B. Ensure that adequate storage shall be provided for the meals from 
time of delivery until served to the student in accordance with Health and Safety Codes. 
 
  C. Ensure that lunches are heated to 165 degrees in accordance with 
Health and Safety Code #27601. 
 
  D. Ensure that an employee is available at sites each school day to 
verify quality and quantity of said breakfasts and lunches.  Errors in count called in shall 
be the responsibility of District.   
 
  E. Ensure that breakfasts and lunches are delivered and served at sites 
approved on the District National School Lunch Agreement. 
 
Failure to comply shall constitute sufficient reason for CITY SCHOOLS to immediately 
cease providing lunches under this AGREEMENT. 

 
 

386



 
(2) Provide CITY SCHOOLS with school calendars.  Each site shall give notice 

to CITY SCHOOLS Central Kitchen Manager of calendar changes.  Also, notice must be 
given for minimum day meal requirements and any holidays not clearly indicated on the 
calendar.  THIS NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN THREE (3) WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO 
SAID SCHEDULE CHANGE.   
 
 (3) Provide personnel to serve meals, clean the serving and eating areas, 
assemble and deliver transport baskets by Santa Rosa City Schools delivery the next 
day. 
 
 (4) Establish collection procedures which are in accordance with State and 
Federal regulations relating to the overt identification of needy students, and keep 
accurate records of the number of free, reduced price, paid, and adult lunches served 
daily. 
 
 (5) Prepare all claims for reimbursement under its own agreement number, 
receive and approve all free and reduced price meal applications, and maintain all 
necessary records to substantiate the above items. 
 
 (6) Assign to CITY SCHOOLS one hundred percent (100%) of the commodities 
to which District is entitled and the responsibility for proper use of such commodities.  If 
there is a short-fall of commodities, cash-in-lieu of commodities shall be given to CITY 
SCHOOLS.  Commodities may not be sent to school sites except as they appear on the 
listed menu. 
 
 (7) Pay CITY SCHOOLS within 60 days of invoice or a fee of 1% will be charged 
on the balance due. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

387



TERM 
  
This AGREEMENT becomes effective this day June 3, 2022, and will continue until 
August 10, 2022.  This AGREEMENT may be renegotiated and renewed as revised and 
agreed upon by both parties.  This AGREEMENT is valid through August 10, 2022. 
 

TERMINATION/INDEMNIFICATION 
 
Termination 
CITY SCHOOLS or DISTRICT may terminate this AGREEMENT, with or without cause, 
upon 30 days’ written notice to DISTRICT or CITY SCHOOLS. 
 
Indemnification 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, each party shall defend, indemnify, and hold the 
other party, its Governing Board, officers, agents, and employees harmless from and 
against any and all liability, loss, expense (including reasonable attorney’s fees), or claims 
for injury or damages arising out of the performance of this AGREEMENT but only in 
proportion to and to the extent such liability, loss, expense, or claims for injury or damages 
are caused by or result from the willful or intentional misconduct or negligent acts or 
omissions of the indemnified party, its officers, employees, volunteers, or agents. 
 
Each party to this agreement understands and is aware that the School and College Legal 
Services, Sonoma County Office of Education, provides legal advice and services to each 
of the parties on this and other matters.  Each party has no objections to the 
representation of the other parties by the same legal counsel. 
 
APPROVED BY 
 
 
By___________________________________  __________________________  
        Signature                                                                     Title   
    
____________________________________               __________________________ 
                       School District/Agency                                                    Date 
 
APPROVED BY 
 
Santa Rosa City Schools 
 
By____________________________________            _________________________ 
    Deputy Superintendent-Business Services       Date 
 
Board Approved: 
 
 
_____________________________________   _________________________ 
  Legal Counsel         Date 
  

388



ATTACHMENT A 
         
   
  
Jack London Elementary School 
2707 Francisco Ave. 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

389


	16.1 2022.5.11 Enrollment Projections.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Agenda
	Slide Number 3
	Piner-Olivet USD Overview
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Historical Enrollment Trends
	Kindergarten and TK Trends
	Community Demographics
	Slide Number 10
	Student Generation Rates, �New Construction
	Residential Development
	Slide Number 13
	Local Births
	Ratio of Births to Kindergarten/TK
	Full Year Transitional Kindergarten
	Grade-to-Grade Migration
	POUSD Enrollment Projection
	POUSD Enrollment Projection
	POUSD Enrollment Projection
	POUSD Enrollment Projection
	School Enrollment Projections
	School Enrollment Projections
	School Enrollment Projections
	Slide Number 25
	Next Steps
	Slide Number 27

	17.3  a ACTION Jack London Families School Connected Summary.pdf
	Presented by: Dr. Charbonneau, Superintendent
	Background
	Plan/Discussion/Detail
	Fiscal Impact
	Options
	Recommendation

	17.4 a ACTION Piner-Olivet Charter Parent Club School Connected Summary.pdf
	Presented by:  Dr. Charbonneau
	Background
	Plan/Discussion/Detail
	Fiscal Impact
	Options
	Recommendation

	17.7 b. 2021_Expanded_Learning_Opportunities_Program_Plan_Jack_London_Elementary_School__20220504.pdf
	Name of Local Educational Agency and Expanded Learning Opportunities Program Site(s)
	Purpose
	Definitions
	Instructions
	1—Safe and Supportive Environment
	2—Active and Engaged Learning
	3—Skill Building
	4—Youth Voice and Leadership
	5—Healthy Choices and Behaviors
	6—Diversity, Access, and Equity
	7—Quality Staff
	8—Clear Vision, Mission, and Purpose
	9—Collaborative Partnerships
	10—Continuous Quality Improvement
	11—Program Management

	General Questions
	Existing After School Education and Safety (ASES) and 21st Community Learning Centers (21st CCLC) Elementary and Middle School grantees.
	Transitional Kindergarten and Kindergarten
	Sample Program Schedule

	Below are additional legal requirements for the ELO-P. Please ensure your Program Plan meets all of these legal requirements:
	EC Section 46120(b)(2):
	EC Section 46120(b)(1)(A):
	EC Section 46120(b)(1)(B):
	EC Section 46120(b)(3):
	EC Section 46120(b)(4):
	EC Section 46120(b)(6):
	EC Section 46120(c):
	EC Section 8482.3(d):
	EC Section 8482.6:
	EC sections 8483.4 and 46120(b)(2)(D):
	EC Section 8482.3(c)(1)(A–B):


	18.3 b. Vendor Warrants 4.1.22-4.30.22.pdf
	Board Report
	1
	1888507
	1888508
	1888509
	1888510
	1888511
	1888512
	1888513
	1888514
	1888515
	1888516
	1888517
	1888518
	1888519
	1888520
	1888521
	1888522
	1888523
	1888524
	1888525
	1888526
	1888527
	1888528
	1889383
	1889384
	1889385
	1889386
	1889387
	1889388
	1889389
	1889390
	1889391
	1889392
	1889393
	1889394
	1889395
	1889396
	1889397
	1889398
	1889399
	1889400
	1890139
	1890140
	1890141
	1890142
	1890143
	1890144
	1890145
	1890146
	1890147
	1890148
	1890149
	1890150
	1890151
	1890152
	1890153
	1890154
	1890155
	1890860
	1890861
	1890862
	1890863
	1890864
	1890865
	1890866
	1890867
	1890868
	1890869
	1890870
	1890871
	1890872
	1891588
	1891589
	1891590
	1891591
	1891592
	1891593
	1891594
	1891595
	1891596
	1891597
	1891598
	1891599
	1892167
	1892168
	1892169
	1892170
	1892171
	1892172
	1892173
	1892174
	1892175
	1892176
	1892177
	1892178
	1892922
	1892923
	1892924
	1892925
	1892926
	1892927
	1892928
	1892929
	1892930
	1892931
	1892932
	1893554
	1893555
	1893556
	1893557
	1893558
	1893559
	1893560
	1893561
	1893562
	1893563
	1893564
	1893565
	1893566
	1893567
	1893568
	1893569
	ACH-00019985

	2
	01
	04
	05
	07
	09
	13
	21
	25



	18.4 b. Budget Updates 4.1.22-4.30.22.pdf
	Transfer of Budget Appropriations
	43
	2,022
	
	
	BR22-00947
	BR22-00948
	BR22-00949
	BR22-00950
	BR22-00951
	BR22-00952
	BR22-00953
	BR22-00954
	BR22-00955
	BR22-00956
	BR22-00957
	BR22-00958
	BR22-00959
	BR22-00960
	BR22-00961
	BR22-00962
	BR22-00963
	BR22-00964
	BR22-00965
	BR22-00966
	BR22-00967
	BR22-00968
	BR22-00969
	BR22-00970
	BR22-00971
	BR22-00972
	BR22-00973
	BR22-00974
	BR22-00975
	BR22-00976
	BR22-00977
	BR22-00978
	BR22-00979
	BR22-00980
	BR22-00981
	BR22-00982
	BR22-00983
	BR22-00984
	BR22-00985
	BR22-00986
	BR22-00987
	BR22-00988
	BR22-00989
	BR22-00990
	BR22-00991
	BR22-00992
	BR22-00993
	BR22-00994
	BR22-00995
	BR22-00996
	BR22-00997
	BR22-00998
	BR22-00999
	BR22-01000
	BR22-01001
	BR22-01002
	BR22-01003
	BR22-01004
	BR22-01005
	BR22-01006
	BR22-01007
	BR22-01008
	BR22-01009
	BR22-01010
	BR22-01011
	BR22-01012
	BR22-01013
	BR22-01014
	BR22-01015
	BR22-01016
	BR22-01017
	BR22-01018
	BR22-01019
	BR22-01020
	BR22-01021
	BR22-01022
	BR22-01023
	BR22-01024
	BR22-01025
	BR22-01026
	BR22-01027
	BR22-01028
	BR22-01029
	BR22-01030
	BR22-01031
	BR22-01032
	BR22-01033
	BR22-01034
	BR22-01035
	BR22-01036
	BR22-01037
	BR22-01038
	BR22-01039
	BR22-01040
	BR22-01041
	BR22-01042
	BR22-01043
	BR22-01044
	BR22-01045
	BR22-01046
	BR22-01047
	BR22-01048
	BR22-01049
	BR22-01050
	BR22-01051
	BR22-01052
	BR22-01053
	BR22-01054
	BR22-01055
	BR22-01056
	BR22-01057









